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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
income statement for the year ended 31 December 2012

Consolidated Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
Note 008 $000 $000 3000
Income and expenses of shareholders, policyholders,
and non-controlling interests
Continuing Operations: .
Life insurance premium and related revenue 17{a} 220,309 212,263 220,309 212,263
Fee revenue 5(a) 161,092 84,679 2,470 3,026
Other revenue 5(b) 3,882 1,491 - (25)
Invesiment gains and (losses) 5(c} 298,066 273,234 239,838 267,513
Life insurance claims and related expenses 17(p)  (208,451) (214,018) (208,451) (214,019)
Operating expenses B(a) {220,844) (180,795) {72,398) (76,172}
Finance cosls 6(b) (119) (319) {109) (293)
Change in policyholder liabilities
- life insurance contracts 17(e}  (103,865) 29,710  (103,865) 28,710
- investment contracls 18(g) {13,934} 292 (13,934) 292
Profit for the year before income 1ax 136,136 206,436 143,860 222 205
Income tax expense 7(a) (50,798)  (107,227) {45,507}  (111,039)
Profit from continuing operations after tax 85,338 89,208 68,353 111,256
Discontinued Operations:
Profit / (loss) from discontinued aperations after tax 8(a) {13,644) 1,392 - -
Profit for the year 71,694 100,601 68,353 111,256
Profit for the year is atlributable to:
Non-controlling interests (7.557) 5185 - -
Shareholder of AMP Life Limited 79,251 100,086 68,353 111,256
Profit for the year 71,694 100,601 68,353 111,256

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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ANP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)

Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2012

Gonsolidated Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $000 $000 3000
Profit for the year 71,694 100,601 68,353 111,256
Other comprehensive income recognised in retained
earnings
Defined benefit plans
- actuarial gains and (losses) {1,049) (7.128) - -
- income tax (expense) credil 294 1,996 - -
{755) (5,132) - -
Cther comprehensive income recognised in reserves
- other gains 549 436 - -
540 436 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 71,488 95,905 68,353 111,256
Total comprehensive income for the year is atlributable {o:
Non-controlling interests {7,557) 515 - -
Shareholder of AMP Life Limited 79,045 95.380 68,353 111,256
Total comprehensive income for the year 71,488 95,805 68,353 111,256

The accompanying noles form part of these financial statements
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012

Consolidated Parent
201270 2011 2011
Note L $000 $000
Assets .
Cash and cash equivalents 21(b) 137,713 26,338
Receivables ' e 82,301 51,423
Current tax assets 13,585 4,444
inventories and other assets 11 14,772 ¢ 42
Investment in financial assets 10 2,464 BT 2,604,218
Plant and equipment 12 11,365 -
Intangibles 13 19,048 - -
Deferred tax assets 7(c) 15,267 . -
Total assets of shareholder of AMP Life Limited, _
policyholders and non-controlling interests 2,758,568 2,686,466
Liabilities
Payables 14 60,360 - 66,335
Provisions 15 31,320 - -
Borrowings 16 3,534 - -
Derivative financial liabilities 19(f) 13,628 - - 397
Deferred tax liabilities 7{d) 2151768 i 215,176
Life insurance contract liabilities 17(e) = 1,818,412 & 1,818,412
Investment contract liabilities 18(g)ii} 113,324 113,324
Defined benefit plan liabilifies 22(e) 17,248 -
Total liabilities of shareholder of AMP L.ife Limited, :
policyholders and non-controlling interests 2,273,002 . 2,213,644
Net assets of shareholder of AMP Life Limited and
non-controlling interests 485,566 472 822
Equity :
Reserves : 06 1,047 -
Retained earnings ;585455 476,959 472,822
Total equity attributable to shareholder of AMP Life SRR
Limited . .5_57 51 478,006 472,822
Non-controlling interests 3 7,560 -
Total equity of shareholder of AMP Life Limited and hrey e L
non-controlling interests S B5B7054 ° 485,566 1541175 472,822

For and on behalf of the Board who authorised these financial statements for issue on 3 May 2013:

CAMM ¢

Director Director

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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ANMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2012

Consolidated
Equity attributable to shareholder of AMP Life Limited
Total Non-
Retained Other shareholder controlling
earnings reserves equity interest Total equity
$000 000 $000 $000 $000

31 December 2012
Balance at the beginning of the year

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2011

74560 . AB5,566

I _(}',ésn

-:'(7,55? :

Balance at the beginning of the year 382,005 611 382,616 7,045 389,661
Profit for the year 100,086 - 100,086 515 100,601
Other comprehensive income (5,132) 436 {4,686) - {4,696)
Total comprehensive income 04 954 436 95,390 515 95,905
Balance at the end of the year 476,959 1,047 478,006 7,560 485,566
W i
Parent
Total
Retained Other shareholder
Earnings reserves equity
31 December 2012 _ _ N )
Balance at the beginning of the year (472822 e 472,822
Profit for the year 68,353 Lo 68,353
Total comprehensive income .. .68,353 L e _63,35'3
Balance at the end of the year i BAMATE e e BT
31 December 2011
Balance at the beginning of the year 361,566 - 361,566
Profit for the year 111,256 - 111,256
Total comprehensive income 111,256 - 111,256
Balance at the end of the year 472,822 - 472,822

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2012

~ Consolidated _ Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
Note . '$000 - 3000 - $000 $000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts in the course of operations 315,743 216,910
interest received 98,450 39,809
Dividends and distributions received _ 283
Cash payments in the course of operations (443,456} & (328,989)
Finance costs (293)
Income tax refunded / (paid) : ( (40,047}
Cash flows from operating activities {70,671} . :{22,540) . (112,327)
Cash flows from investing activities :
Net proceeds from sale of / (payments to acquire)': e
- investments in financial assets measured at fair value 11,017 31,477 101,060
- investments in financial assets measured at amortised cost 3,248 364 6
Proceeds from disposal of controlled entity L
Purchase of plant and equipment (1,596) i -
Purchase of intangibles {12,877) i -
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities (210) - 31,541 101,066
Cash flows from financing activities '
Receipts from repayment of advances of borrowings 680 - -
Cash flows from financing activities 680 .- - -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (70,201) "119__,_"(110'1 (11.261)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 207,914 - 0 726,339 . 37,600
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 21y 181435 137,713 _-?_-_3_5;34O 26,339

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

' The amounts shown represent the net cash flows for the financial year.



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

1. CORPORATE INFORNATION
Repaorting entity

in February 2012 the Reserve Bank of New Zealand ("RBNZ"} granted AMP Life Limited ("AMP Life") a provisional
licence to carry on insurance business under the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010* (“Insurance Act").
AMP Life is incorporated in New South Wales, and registered under Australia’s Life Insurance Act 1995 ("Life
Act"). AMP Life carries on its life insurance business in New Zealand through a Branch establishment and is
deemed to be an “issuer” as defined under the New Zealand Financial Reporting Act 1983. AMP Life is not a self-
contained legal entity in New Zealand except to the extent that New Zealand incorporated subsidiaries carry out its
business. A summarised group structure is as follows:

AMP Limited**

h 4
AMP Group Holdings Limited

y
AMP Holdings Limited

h 4

AMP Financial Services Holdings
Limited

h 4
AMP Life Limited

Y ¥
No. 1 Statutory Fund Shareholder Fund
AMP Life Limited (New Zealand \ AMP Life Limited (New Zealand
Branch) No. 1 Statutory Fund Branch) Shareholder Fund
v v
AMP Life Limited (New Zealand AMP Life Limited (New Zealand
Branch) No. 1 Statutoery Fund Brarich) Shareholder Fund
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

* As part of the grant of that licence, AMP Life was granted certain exemptions from the Act by virtue of its status
as an Australian regulated entity. This status requires AMP Life to ensure that it meets all standards and
regulations applicable in Australia and enforced by the Australian Prudential Reguiation Authority. AMP Life is
currently working with the RBNZ to obtain a full New Zealand licence by the statutory deadline, September 2013,

*“*AMP Limited is the ultimate holding company of the AMP Group and is dual listed on the Australian and New
Zealand stock exchanges.

The life insurance operations of the AMP Life New Zealand branch (hereafier referred to as the ‘Branch’ or
‘Parent’) are conducted within a separate statutory fund as required by the Life Act, and are reported in aggregate
in the Income statement, Statement of comprehensive income, Statement of financial position, Staterment of
changes in equity and the Statement of cash flows. Further information on the Statutory Fund and Shareholders’
Fund is provided in Note 18.

For the purpose of these financial statements the parent entity comprises AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
No. 1 Statutory Fund (“SF1") and AMP Life Limited {New Zealand Branch) Shareholder Fund ("Shareholder
Fund”). The consolidated entity comprises the parent entity and the subsidiaries of each of the Statutory Fund and
the Shareholder Fund. These financial statements have been prepared as if this were a group formed and
registered in New Zealand. In line with this approach the AMP Life interest in the Branch and its consolidated
ertities has been disclosed as equity in these financial statements. The financial statements are prepared in this
way to comply with Sections 8 and 9 of the New Zealand Financial Reporting Act 1993.

1
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Reporting entity {continued)

AMP Life is the registered issuer of life insurance policies in New Zealand. The liability under New Zealand
policies is limited to the AMP Life Limited No.1 Statutory Fund (the “Fund”). The No.1 Statutory Fund forms part of
AMP Life. As the assets included and policies issued in the Branch are a component of the AMP Life Limited No. 1
Statutory Fund, New Zealand life insurance policyholders should refer to the financial statements of AMP Life
Limited No. 1 Statutory Fund to gain an understanding of the financial affairs of the Fund.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below, These
policies have been consistently applied to the current year and comparative period, unless otherwise stated.
Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified to be consistent with current period disclosures.
The financial statements include separate financial statements for the Branch (‘Parent’), and for the consolidated
entity, which consists of the parent and ail entities controlled by the parent during the year and at balance sheet
date (‘Consolidated').

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 were authorised by the Directors of AMP Life on
3 May 2013. They have been prepared on a going concern basis and in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand and the requirements of the Companies Act 1993 and the Financial Reporting
Act 1993,

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars ($'000), unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are also prepared in a manner consistent with the financial reporting requirements of:
» The Insurance {Prudential Supervision} Act 2010 {"Insurance Act™)
« The Australian Life Insurance Act 1995 (“Life Act”), and
s+ Prudential Standards issued by Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA) {("Prudential
Standards”)

The Branch is predominantly a life insurance and wealth management business. Where permitted under
accounting standards, the assets and liabilities associated with the life insurance and investment contracts are
generally measured on a fair value basis and other assets and liabilities are generally measured on a historical
cost basis.

Assets and liabilities have been presented on the face of the Statement of financial position in decreasing order of
liquidity and do not distinguish between current and non-current items. The majority of the assets of the Branch
are investment assets held to back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities. Although the amount
of those assets which may be realised and those liabilities which may be settled within twelve months of the
reporting date are not always known, estimates of amounts expected to be recovered or settied (&) no more than
12 months after the reporting date, and (b) more than 12 months after the reporting date, have been provided in
footnotes to the relevant notes.

Changes in accounting policies
Since 1 January 2012, the Branch has adopted all New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards and Interpretations which have become effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012, including:

e NZIFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Disclosures on Transfer of Financial Assets

»  FRS-44 New Zealand Additional Disclosures

e  Amendmentis fo NZ IFRS to Harmonise with IFRS and Australian Accounting Standards

»  NZIAS 12 Amendments to Income Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

Adoption of these Standards and Interpretations has not had any material effect on the financial position or
performance of the Branch.

Change in presentalion of the Statement of cash flows

The 2011 comparatives in the Statement of cash flows has been revised to treat reinvested disfributions as non-
cash transactions. Previously, reinvested distributions had been included in the Statement of cash flows on a
gross basis. These changes have resulted in:

L]
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation {continued)

Consolidated (2011 figures)
+ adecrease in Dividends and distributions received of $19.9m;
« adecrease in Cash flows from operating activities of $19.9m
« adecrease in Net payments to acquire investments in financial assets of $19.9m
« adecrease in Cash flows used in investing activities of $19.9m

There was no impact in the Parent in the comparative period.

Issued standards that are not yet effective

A number of new Accounfing standards have been issued but not yet effective during 2012. The Branch has

elected not to early adopt any new standards or amendments in these financial statements. The Branch is still

evaluating the potential impact of these accounting standards and amendments when applied to future periods,
however they are not expected to have a material impact on the financial position or perfermance of the Branch.

The most significant issued standards that are not yet effective are as follows:

. NZ IFRS 8 Financial instruments: Classification and measurement: This standard makes significant changes
to the way thaf financial assets are classiffed for the purpose of determining their measurement basis and
also to the amounts relating to fair value changes which are fo be faken direclly fo equity. NZ IFRS 9 js
mandatory for adoption by the Branch in the year ending 31 December 20185.

. NZ IFRS 9 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This standard makes changes to the
accounting for financial assets and financial liabilities. NZ IFRS 9 is mandatory for adopfion by the Branch in
the year ending 31 December 2015.

. NZ IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements. This standard introduces a new control model which may
lead to more entities being consolidated. NZ IFRS 10 is mandatory for adoption by the Branch in the year
ending 371 December 2013.

. NZ IFRS 12 Disclosure of Inferests in Other Entities. This standard requires summarised information about
associates and subsidiaries with non-controliing inferests. NZ IFRS 12 is mandatory for adoption by the
Branch in the year ending 31 December 2013,

. NZ IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. This standard centralises the definition and guidance for calculating
fair values where required to be applied by various other accounting standards and removes some minor
inconsistencies that previously existed between the guidance for determining fair value in these standards.
The new standard requires quantitative and qualitative disclosures of all fair value measurements. NZ IFRS
13 is mandatory for adoption by the Branch in the year ending 31 December 2013.

. NZ IAS 1 Presentation of Other Comprehensive Income. This standard requires items in the Statement of
comprehensive income fo be segregafed between those that will be eventually realised in the Income
statement in future periods and those that will not. NZ IAS 1 is mandatory for adoption by the Branch in the
year ending 31 December 2013.

. NZ IAS 19 Employee Benefits. This standard revises the method of accounting for defined benefit plans.
The amendment removes the options for accounting for the liability, and requires that the liabilities arising
from such plans are recognised in full with actuarial gains and losses being recognised in other
comprehensive income. [t also revises the method of calculating the return on plan assets. Under the
revised standard it is appropriate to use a gross of investment fax discount rate. A prefiminary estimate of the
superannuation expense for the year ended 31 December 2013, using a discount rate of 3.6% (compared fo
the 2.6% discount rate used af 31 December 2012) is an expense ifem of $0.4m (this compares fo the 2012
income item of $0.4m). The increase in the superannuation expense is mostly due fo the removal of the
expected refum on assets component. The value of the defined benefit liability is expected to decrease by
approximately $3m. NZ IAS 19 is mandatory for adoption by the Branch in the year ending 31 December
2013,

. NZ |AS 32 Amendments fo Financial Instruments: Presentation- Offsefting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities. These amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has legally enforceable right fo set off’. The
amendments also clarify the application of the NZ IAS 32 offsetting criteria to setflement systems which apply
gross setflernent mechanisms that are not simultaneous. NZ IAS 32 is mandatory for adoption by the Branch
in the year ending 31 December 2014.

(b) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (NZ GAAP"). They comply with New Zealand equivalenis to International Financial Reporting Standards
(NZIFRS’) and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards as appropriate for profit oriented entities. The
financial statements also comply with international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS’).



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Principles of consolidation

These financial statements consolidate the financial information of controlled entities. Control is determined as the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity or business so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. The majority of the Branch’s investments are held through controlling interests in unit trusts and
companies.

The financial information for controlled entities is prepared for the same reporting period as the parent entity, using
consistent accounting policies. Where dissimilar accounting policies may exist, adjustments are made to bring
these into line.

The Branch conducts its life insurance business (see note 2(d)below) through Statutory Fund No. 1. Income,
expenses, assets and liabilities attributable to policyholder activities within this life statutory fund are consolidated
into the Branch financial statements, along with those attributable to the shareholders of the parent entity.

Consolidation principles require the total amounts of each underlying asset, liability, income and expense of the
controlled entities to be recognised in the consolidated financial statements. When a controlled unit trust is
consolidated, the share of the unitholder’s liability attributable to the Branch is eliminated but amounts due to
external unitholders remain as liabilities in the consolidated Statement of financial position. The share of the net
assets of controlled companies attributable to non-controlling interests is disclosed as a separate line item in the
Statement of financial position. In the Statement of comprehensive income, the profit or loss of the Branch is
allocated between profit or loss attributable to non-controlling interests and profit or loss attributable to the parent
entity.

Controlled entities that are acquired are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. Information
from the financial statements of controlled entities is included from the date the parent entity obtains control until
such time as control ceases. Where the Branch ceases to control an entity, the consolidated financial statements
include the results for the part of the reporting period during which the parent entity had control.

The maijority of the Branch's statutory fund’s investments are held through controlling interests in unit trusts and
companies. These investment assets are held on behalf of policyholders and the Branch’s statutory fund
recognises a liability to the policyholders valued as described in Note 2(r) for Life insurance contract liabilities and
Note 2(s) for Investment contract liabilities. In certain cases, the amount of the net assets of the controlled entities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements may not match the valuation of the relevant liability to the
policyholder which results in certain policyholder asset movements impacting the profit attributable to shareholder
of AMP Life.

Certain controlled entities of the life statutory fund are operating companies which carry out business operations
unrelated to the core wealth management operations of the Branch.

(d)  Accounting for wealth management and life insurance business

The accounting treatment of certain transactions in these financial statements varies depending on the nature of
the contract underlying the transactions. The two major contract classifications relevant to the wealth
management and insurance business of the Branch are investment contracts and life insurance contracts.

For the purpose of these financial statements holders of investment contracts or life insurance contracts are
collectively and individually referred to as policy-holders.

Life insurance contracts

The Branch issues contracts that transfer significant insurance risk from the policyholder, covering death, disability
or longevity of the insured. In addition, there are some policies that are similar to investment contracts, but the
timing of the vesting of the profit attributable to the policyholder is at the discretion of the Branch. These policies
are referred to as discretionary participating contracts.

Under accounting standards such contracts are defined as life insurance contracts.

Investment contracts

Part of the business of the Branch relates to wealth-management products such as savings, investment linked and
retirement income policies. The nature of this business is that the Branch receives deposits from policyholders and
those funds are invested on behalf of the policyholders. The resulting liability to policyholders is linked to the
performance and value of the assets that back those liabilities.

Under accounting standards such contracts are defined as /ife investment contracts and described as investment
contracts throughout these financial statements.



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{CONTINUED)

{d)  Accounting for wealth management and life insurance business (continued)

Assels measurement basis
Asseis backing investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are measured on a basis that is
consistent with the measurement of the liabilities, to the extent permitted under accounting standards.

Investment contract liabilities are measured at fair value as described in note 2(s) and life insurance contract
liabilities are measured as described in Note 2(r). Assets backing such liabilities are measured at fair value, to the
extent permitted under accounting standards. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value are recognised in the Income statement, to the extent permitted under accounting standards. The
accounting policies for individual asset classes, and any restrictions on application of fair value, are described later
in Note 2.

All assets that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are included within the life statutory
fund and, as such, are separately identifiable.

To ensure consistency across the Branch and, except where specifically stated otherwise, all financial assets and
all non-financial assets, including those not backing investment or insurance coniract liabilities, are also
recognised at fair value through profit or loss to the extent permitted under accounting standards. Similarly,
adjustments to the value of such assets are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income when the
corresponding accounting standards allow such treatment. The accounting policy for the parent entity's
investments in controlled entities is set out in Note 2(g).

{¢}  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand that is available on demand and deposits that are held at call
with financial institutions. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value, being the principal amount. For
the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash also includes other highly liquid investments not subject to
significant risk of change in value, with short periods to maturity, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in the Statement of financial position.

(f) Receivables

Receivables that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are financial assets and are
measured at fair value. Reinsurance and other recoveries are discounted to present value. Receivables that do
not back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are measured af nominal amounts due, less any
allowance for doubtful debts. An allowance for doubtful debts is recognised when collecticn of the full amount is no
longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred. Given the short-term nature of most receivables, the
recoverable amount approximates fair value

{g) Investments in financial assets

Investments in financial assets measured af fair vafue through profit or loss

Investments in financial assets designated on initial recognition as financial assets measured at fair vaiue through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value determined as the purchase cost of the asset, exclusive of any
transaction costs. Any realised and unrealised gains or losses arising from subsequent measurement at fair value
are recognised in the Income statement in the period in which they arise.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair value of investments measured at fair value through profit or loss is

determined as follows:

. the fair value of equity securities in an active market and listed managed investment schemes reflects the
guoted bid price at the reporting date. In the case of equity securities and listed managed investment
schemes where there is no active market, a fair value is established by using valuation techniques
including the use of recent arm's length transactions, references to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

. the fair value of listed debt securities reflects the bid price at the reporting date. Listed debt securities that
are not frequently traded are valued by discounting estimated recoverable amounts. The fair value of
unlisted debt securities is estimated using interest rate yields obtainable on comparable listed investments.
The fair value of loans is determined by discounting the estimated recoverable amount using prevailing
interest rates.

. the fair value of investments in unlisted managed investment schemes is determined on the basis of
published redemption prices of those managed invesiment scheme at the reporting date.
» the fair value of derivative financial assets is determined in accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(p).
10
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch) _
‘Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2,  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

{g} Investments in financial assets (continued}

There is no reduction for realisation costs in determining the fair value of financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

investmenis in financial assets measured at amorfised cost

Investments in financial assets measured at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value plus fransaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. These assets are subsequently
measured at amoriised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Investments in controlled entities

Investments by the Branch shareholders fund in controlled entities (excluding unit trusts) are measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Investments in controlled entities by the Branch statutory funds that back
investrnent contract and life insurance contract liabilities are treated as financial assets and are valued in the same
manner as equity securifies described in this note.

{h) Associates

Investments in associates held to back life insurance or life investment confracts are exempt from the requirement
to apply equity accounting and have been designated on initial recognition as financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss. These are valued in the same manner as financial assets described in Note 2(g).

(i} Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is inifiaily measured at cost, including transaction costs. It is subsequently measured at cost
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The written down amount
approximates fair value.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Office fittings, furniture and equipment 3~ 13 years
Computer and communication equipment 2 -4 years
Derecognition

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the Income statemeni.

{i) Intangible assets

Capitalised costs

Capitalised costs which primarily reflect software and software development costs, are capitalised only when the
Branch can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availahility of resources to complete the development and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development. Otherwise, all costs are recognised as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred. Capitalised costs are amortised over the useful life of the asset,
being a period not exceeding 5 years, commencing at the time the asset is first put into use or held ready for use
(whichever is the earlier). Capitalised costs are initially recognised at cost and subsequenily measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any impairment in value.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{(CONTINUED)

(k) Other assets including inventories

Other assets mainly comprise of inventories, prepayments and other similar assets. inventories are predominately
finished goods, which are stated at the lower of cost (determined on a first in first out basis) and net realisable
value. Cost includes the cost of direct material, direct labour and a proportion of overhead expenses incurred in
putting the inventories in their present location and condition based on normal capacity.

{l) Impairment of assets

Assets measured at fair value, where changes in value are reflected in the Income statement, are not subject to
impairment testing. As a result, all financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are not subject to
impairment testing. Other assets such as property, plant and equipment and intangible assets including goodwili
are subject to impairment testing.

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, such as goodwill, are not subject to amortisation but are tested at least
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Any impairment loss, being the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
is recognised in the Income staternent. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment of goodwill, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates.

(m) Taxes

income tax expense
The income tax expense is the tax payable on taxable income for the current period, based on the income tax rate
and adjusted for changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to:
= temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
Statement of financial position,
¢ unused tax losses and
» the impact of changes in the amounts of deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from changes in tax
rates or in the manner in which these balances are arranged to be realised.

Adjustments to income tax expense / credit are also made for any differences between the amounts paid or
expected to be pald in relation o prior periods and the amounts provided for these periods at the start of the
current period.

Any tax impact on income and expense items that are recognised directly in equity is also recognised directly in
equity. :

Income tax for investment contracts and life insurance contracts business
The income fax expense recognised in the Income staternent of the Branch reflects tax imposed on the
shareholder as well as policyholders.

Investment contract liabilities and life insurance contract liabilities are established exclusive of the policyholders'
share of any current tax payable and deferred tax balances of the Branch.

The policy liabilities (being the sum of the life insurance contract and investment contract liabilities, including any
asset or liability arising in respect of the management services element of an investment contract) and solvency
reserves are determined at the reporting date in accordance with the Life Act. Risk business policy liabilities for
the Life Act purposes is calculated on a before tax basis.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

{m) Taxes {continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates which are expected to
apply when the assetfs are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates and tax laws which are
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

In New Zealand, the tax regime recognises a deduction for acquisition expenses as they are incurred rather than
over the life of the policy. This results in a difference in the tax and accounting recognition and creates a deferred
tax liability.

The relevant tax rate is applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to
measure the deferred tax asset or liability. An exception is made for certain temporary differences arising from the
initial recognition of an asset or a liability. No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation fo these
temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the
transaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax, including amounts in respect of investment contracts and life insurance contracts, is not discounted to present
value.

Goods and services fax

All income, expenses and assets are recognised net of any GST paid, except where they relate to products and
services that are input taxed for GST purposes or where the GST incurred is not recoverable from the Inland
Revenue Department. In such circumstances, the GST paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
assets or as part of the particular expense.

Receéivables and payables are recorded with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable
from or payable to the Inland Revenue Department is included as either receivable or payable in the Statement of
financial position.

Cash flows are reported on a gross basis reflecting any GST paid or collected. The GST component of cash flows
arising from investing or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue
Department are classified as Operating cash flows.

(n) Payables

Payables that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are financial liabilities and are
measured at fair value. Other payables are measured at the nominal amount payable. Given the short-term
nature of most payables, the nominal amount approximates fair value.

(o)} Provisions

Provisions are recognised when:

. the Branch has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resuit of a past event,

. it is probable that an outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and

. a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Branch expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virfually certain. The
expense relating o any provision is presented in the Income statement net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date. For provisions other than employee entitlements, the discount rate
used to determine the present value reflects current market assessmengs of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised in the Income
statement.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{CONTINUED)

{o) Provisions {continued)

Employee entiflemnents

Liabilities arising in respect of salaries and wages, annual leave and any other employee entitlements expected to
be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at their nominal amounts. All other employee
entittements are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. In determining the present value of future cash outflows,
discount rates used are based on the interest rates attaching to government securities that have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related liability.

(p} Derivative financial assets and hedging

The Branch is exposed to changes in interest and foreign exchange rates. To mitigate the risks arising from these
exposures, the Branch uses derivative financial instruments such as cross-currency and interest-rate swaps,
forward rate agreements, futures, options and foreign currency contracts. Derivative financial instruments are aiso
used to gain exposure to various markets for asset and liability management purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value exclusive of any transaction costs on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.

All derivatives are recognised as assets when their fair value is positive, and as liabilities when their fair value is
negative.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognised in the Income statement in the period
in which they arise.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets {such as publicly traded derivatives) is based on
quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted market price for financial assets is the current bid price;
the quoted market price for financial liahilities is the current offer price.

The fair value of financial instruments not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net present value technigues, option-pricing
models, discounted cash-flow methods and comparison to quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

{q) Recognition and derecagnition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets are recognised at the date the Branch becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial asseis are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
assets expire, or are transferred. A transfer occurs when substaniially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are passed to a third party. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r) Life insurance contract liabilities

The financial reporting methodology used to determine the fair value of life insurance contract liabilities is referred
to as Margin on Services (MoS).

Under MoS the excess of premium received over claims and expenses (the margin) is recegnised over the life of
the contract in a manner that reflects the pattern of risk accepted from the policyholder (the service). The planned
release of this margin is included in the movement in life insurance contract liabilities recognised in the income
statement.

Life insurance contract liabilities are usually determined using a projection methad, whereby estimates of policy
cash flows (premiums, benefits, expenses and profit margins to be released in future periods) are projected using
best-estimate assumpticns about the future. The liability is calculated as the net present value of these projected
cash flows. When the benefits under a life insurance contract are linked to the assets backing it, the discount rate
applied is based on the expected future earnings rate of those assets. Where the benefits are not linked to the
performance of the backing assets, a risk-free discount rate is used. The risk-free discount rate is based on the
zero coupon New Zealand government bond rate and a liquidity margin which depends on the nature, structure
and terms of the contract liabilities.

An accumulation method may be used if it produces results that are not materially different from those produced
by a projection method. A medified accumulation method is used for some discretionary paricipating business,
where the life insurance liability is the accumulation of armounts invested by policyholders, less fees specified in
the policy, plus investment eamings and vested benefits, adjusted to allow for the fact that crediting rates are
determined by reference to investment income over a period of greater than one year. The accumulation method
may be adjusted to the extent that acquisition expenses are o be recovered from fulure margins between fees
and expenses.

Alflocation of operafing profit and unvested policyholder benefifs
The operating profit arising from discretionary participating contracts is allocated between shareholders and
participating policyholders by applying the MeS principles in accordance with the Life Act.

Once profit is allocated to participating policyholders it can only be distributed to these policyholders. Any
distribution of this profit to the shareholder is only allowed with specific approval of the regulators.

Profit allocated to participating policyholders is recognised in the Income statement as an increase in policy
liabilities. Both the element of this profit that has not yet been allocated to specific policyholders {i.e. unvested),
and that which has been allccated to specific policyholders by way of bonus distributions (i.e. vested), are included
within life insurance contract liabilities.

Bonus distributions to participating policyholders are merely a change in the nature of the liability from unvested fo
vested and, as such do not alter the amount of profit attributable to shareholders.

The principles of allocation of the profit arising from discretionary participating business are as follows:

(iy Investment income (net of tax and investment expenses) on retained earnings in respect of discretionary
participating business is allocated between policyholders and the shareholder in proportion to the balances
of policyholders' and the shareholder's retained earnings. This proportion is 80 per cent policyholders and
20 per cent sharehoider.

i) Other MoS profits arising from discretionary participating business are allocated 80 per cent to
policyholders and 20 per cent to the shareholder, except for the profit arising from corporate
superannuation business, which is apportioned such that the shareholder is allocated 15 per cent of the
profit allocated to policyholders.

(i)  All profits arising from non-participating business, including net investment returns on shareholder capita!
and retained earnings in the statutory fund {excluding retained earnings dealt with in () above) are
allocated to the shareholder.

Allocation of expenses within the life statutory fund

All operating expenses relating to the life insurance contract and invesiment contract aclivities are apportioned
between acquisition, maintenance, and investment management expenses. Expenses which are directly
attributable to an individuat fife insurance contract or investment contract are allocated directly to a particular
expense category, class of business and product line as appropriate.
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ANP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

{r) Life insurance contract liabilities (continued)

Allocation of expenses within the life statutory fund (confinued)

Where expenses are not direcily atiributable, they are appropriately apportioned, according to detailed expense
analysis, with due regard for the objective in incurring that expense and the outcome achieved. The apportionment
basis has been made in accordance with APRA Prudential Standards and on an equitable basis to the different
classes of business in accordance with the Life Act.

The costs apportioned to life insurance contracts are included in the determination of margin described above.
Investment management expenses of the life statutory fund are classified as operating expenses (see note 2(y)).
(s) Investment contract liabilities

An investment contract consists of a financial instrument and an investment management services element, both
of which are measured at fair value. With the exception of fixed refirement-income policies, the resulting liability to
policyholders is closely linked to the performance and value of the assets (after tax) that back those liabilities. The
fair value of such liabilities is therefore the same as the fair value of those assets (after tax charged to the
policyholders) except where accounting standards prevent those assets from being measured at fair value.

For fixed retirement-income policies, the financial instrument element of the liability is the fair value of the fixed
retirement-income payments, being their net present value using a fair value discount rate. The fair value of the
associated management services element is the net present value, using a fair value discount rate, of all expenses
associated with the provision of services and any profit margins thereon.

() Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency
Both the functional and presentation currency of the Branch is New Zealand dollars (8).

Transactions and balances

Income and expense items denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are translated at the spot
exchange rates at the date of the fransaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Exchange variations are recorded in the
Income statement.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

(4} Insurance premium and related revenue

Life insurance contracts

Life insurance contract premiums are separated into their revenue and deposit components. Premium amounts
earned by bearing insurance risks are recognised as revenue. Other premium amounts received, which are in the
nature of deposits, are recognised as an increase in life insurance contract liabilities.

Premiums with no due date or fixed amount are recognised on a cash-received basis. Premiums with a regular
due date are recognised on an accruals basis. Unpaid premiums are only recognised during the days of grace or
where secured by the surrender value of the life insurance contract and are reported as outstanding premiums and
classified as receivables in the Statement of financial position.

Investment coniracts

There is no premium revenue in respect of investment contracts. Amounts received from policyholders in respect
of investment contracts comprise:

(i) origination fees and ongoing investment management fees. See note 2(v).

(i) amounts credited directly to investment contract liabilities. See note 2(s).
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

{v} Fee and other revenue

Fees are charged to customers in connection with investment contracts and other financial services contracts.
Revenue is recognised as services are provided. In some cases services are provided af the inception of the
contract while other services are performed over the life of the contract.

investment contracts consist of a financial instrument and an investment-management services element. The
payment by the policyholder includes the amount to fund the financial instrument and a fee for the origination of
the contract. In many cases, that origination fee is based on amounts paid to financial planners for providing initial
advice. The financial instrurment is classified as an investment contract and is measured &t fair value. See note
2(s).

The revenue that can be attributed to the origination service is recognised at inception. Any amounts paid to
financial advisers is also recognised as an expense at that time. See note 2(y).

Fees for on-going investment management services and ofher services provided are charged on a regular basis,
usually daily, and are recognised as income as the service is provided.

Fees charged for performing a significant act in relation to funds managed by the Branch are recognised as
revenue when that act has been completed.

(w} Investment gains or losses

Dividend and interest income are recognised in the Income statement on an accruals basis when the Branch
obtains control of the right to receive the revenue.

Net realised and unrealised gains and losses represent the change in value between the previously reporied value
and the amount received on sale of the asset as well as changes in the fair value of financial assets recognised in
the period.

{(x} Insurance claims and related expense

Life insurance contracts

Life insurance contract claims are separated into their expense and withdrawal components. The component that
relates to the bearing of risks is treated as an expense. Other claim amounts, which are in the nature of
withdrawals, are recognised as a decrease in life insurance contract liabilities.

Claims are recognised when the liability to the policyholder under the life insurance contract has been established
or upon notification of the insured event, depending on the type of claim.

investment contracts
There is no claims expense in respect of investment contracts. Amounts paid to policyholders in respect of
investment contracts are withdrawals and are recognised as a decrease in investment contract liabilities (see note

2(s)).
{y} Operating expenses

All operating expenses, other than those allocated to life insurance contracts (see note 2(r)), are expensed as
incurred.

The majority of investment contracts issued result in payments to external service and advice providers. Where
the amount paid equates to a fee charged to policyholders for the provision of advice, the amount is expensed
either at inception or over the period of the contract consistent with the basis for recognising the fee revenue on
the respective contracts (see note 2{v)).

Operating lease payment

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Income statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease term or other systemnatic basis representative of the patterns of the benefits obtained. Operating lease
incentives are recognised as a liability when received and subsequently reduced by allocating lease payments
between rental expense and reduction of the liability.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
cperating leases.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(z) Finance costs
Finance costs include:

(i) Borrowing costs:
« interest on bank overdrafts and borrowings
« amortisation of discounts or premiums related to borrowings
(il Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs
(i) Foreign exchange gains and losses and other financing related amounts.

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses when incurred.
{aa) Superannuation funds

Certain controlled entities are participating employers in the AMP (New Zealand) Staff Superannuation Plan that
provides benefits for employees and their dependants on resignation, retirement, disability or death of the
employee. The Plan has both defined contribution and defined-benefit sections. The Plan is no longer open to new
members.

For the defined contribution section, the Branch pays contributions to the Plan on a mandatory basis. The Branch
has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised in the
Income statement as an operating expense when they fall due.

For the defined benefit sections, the Branch recognises the net deficit or surplus position in the Staternent of
financial position. The deficit or surplus is measured as the difference between the fair value of the fund's assets
and the discounted defined-benefit obligation of the fund, using a discount rate based on the interest rate of
government securities which have a term to maturity approximating the term of the obligation. The defined-benefit
obligation is calculated annually, with half-yearly reviews, by independent actuaries.

After taking into account any contributions paid into the defined-benefit sections during the period, movements in
the net surplus or deficit, except actuarial gains and losses, are recognised in the Income statement. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes In actuarial assumptions over the period are
recognised in full {net of tax), directly in other comprehensive income. :

Contributions paid into defined benefit sections are recognised as reductions in the deficit,

Contributions are also paid to other defined contribution schemes. The employer has no further payment
obligations once the contiibutions have been paid and the contributions are recognised in the Income statement
as an employment benefit expense when they fall due.

(bb) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale
and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single
coordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately on the face of the statement
of comprehensive income and the assets and liabilities are presented separately on the face of the statement of
financial position.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The making of judgements, estimates and assumptions is a necessary part of the financial reporiing process and
these judgements, estimates and assumptions can have a significant effect on the reported amounts in the
financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are determined based on information available to management
at the time of preparing the financial report and actual results may differ from these estimates and assumptions.
Had different estimates and assumptions been adopted, this may have had a significant impact on the financial
statements. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions are re-evaluated at each reporting
date in the light of historical experience and changes to reasonable expectations of future events. Significant
accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions include but are not limited to:

{a) Consolidation

Entities are included within the consclidated financial statements of the Branch where the Branch has controf of
these enfities, being the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as fo obtain benefits
from its activities. Judgement is applied by management in assessing whether control exists, and in particular.
whether the rights held by the Branch amount to being the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
those entities and whether the Branch is able to use such power to obtain benefits from the activities of the
entities.

(b}  Fair value of investments in financial assets

The Branch measures investments in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Where available, quoted
market prices for the same or similar instruments are used {o determine fair value. Where there is no market price
available for an instrument, a valuation technique is used. Management applies judgement in selecting valuation
techniques and setling valuation assumptions. Further detail on the determination of fair value of financial
instruments is set out in note 19,

(c) Tax

The Branch is subject to taxes in New Zealand. The application of tax law to the specific circumstances and
transactions of the Branch requires the exercise of judgement by management. The tax treatments adopted by
management in preparing the financial statements may be impacted by changes in legislation and interpretations
or be subject {o challenge by tax authorities.

Judgement is also applied by management in determining the extent to which the recovery of deferred tax assets
is probable for the purpose of meeting the criteria for recognition as deferred tax assets.

(d) Provisions

A provision is recognised for items where the Branch has a present obligation arising from a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. The provision is measured as the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation. Management apply judgement in assessing whether a particular item
satisfies the above criteria and in determining the best estimate. Note 15 sets out further information on provisions
and Note 26 provides information of contingent liabilities which management determined did not meet the criteria
for recognition as provisions.

(e} Life Insurance contract liabilities

The measurement of life insurance contract liabilities is determined using the Margin on Services (MoS)
methodology. The determination of the liability amounts invoives judgement in selecting the valuation methods and
profit carriers for each type of business and setting valuatton assumptions. The determination is subjective and
relatively small changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the reponted profit. The Appointed
Actuary is responsible for these judgements and assumptions. Further detail on the determination of life insurance
contract fiabilities is set out in Note 17.

{H) Investment contract liabilities

Investment contract liabilities are measured at fair value. For the majority of contracts, the fair value is determined
based on published unit prices and the fair value of backing assets, and does not generally require the exercise of
judgement. For fixed income products, fair value is determined using valuation models. Judgement is applied in
selecting the valuation model and setting the valuation assumptions. Further details on investment contract
liabilities are set out in Note 18.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Branch is not required to present segment reporting under NZ [FRS 8.

5. REVENUE AND INVESTMENT INCOME

_Consolidated Parent
] 2011 201200 2011
$000 . $000" $000

{a) Fee revenue

Investment management fees 3,026

Service fees’ -

Total fee revenue 3,026

{(b) Other revenue

Other revenue’ 1491 . - (25)

Total other revenue 1,491 i (25)
]

{c) Investment gains and (losses) )

Interest’ p

- other entities 99,289 40,323

Dividends and distributions o

- subsidiaries e - -

- associated entities 9,276 12,651 | -3 66

- other entities 19,668 7,789 . T03 218

Net realised and unrealised gains and losses® L:167,014.. 150,454 . 240,945. 226,913

Other investment income i B36 3,051 i 1(80) (7

Total investment gains and (losses) 298,086 273234 3. 267,513

Investments in financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Equity securities and listed managed invesiment schemes 6,561 {4,153) 196,870 38,092

Debt securities 48,163 63,323 1,628 1,034

Investments in unlisted investment schemes 145,933 (40,923) (2,732) 558

Derivative financial assets 85,590 238,414 91,851 223,801

Investments in financial assets at amortised cost

Debt securities 3,797 3,879 - -

Ofher investment gains

Bank and other 7,486 9,543 2,301 4,035

Miscellaneous income 536 3,051 {80) {7)

Total investment gains and (losses) 298,066 273,234 289,838 267,513

T Fee revenues include fee income from trust and fiduciary activities that result in the holding or investing of assets on behalf of
individuals, trusts, retirement plans, and other instituiions.

Cther revenue includes trading revenue (other than that received through service fees) from business operations in which the
Branch holds a conirolling interest.
Interest includes interest income from financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, designated as such upon
initial recognition.

4 Net reatised and unrealised gains and {osses include net gains and losses on financial assets and financial llabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

6. EXPENSES

Consolidated

2011
Nate 3000

{a) Operating expenses --
Commission expense 60,076
Investment management expenses 11,358
Fee and commission expenses 71,434
Wages and salaries 39,773 -
Superannuation costs — defined contribution scheme 2,170 =
Other staff costs 500
Staff and related expenses 42,443
Service fee expense — related parties 27(c)(i) 9,520
Service fee expense recovery — related parties 27(c)(iD) -
Auditor's remuneration — audit services {group entities) 28 455 ..
Auditor's remuneration — other assurance related
services 28 255
Minimum lease payments - Operating lease 2,240
Depreciation and amortisation 3,835
Impairment 21
IT and communication 24,085 -
IT consulting 8,944
Other expenses 17,563
Other operating expenses 66,918

Total operating expenses 180,795

{b) Finance costs

Interest expense on borrowings 34
Other finance costs 285
Total finance costs 319

7. INCOME TAX

_ _Co__r_ls_qlidated
= 2012 2011

L8000 $000

{a) Analysis of income tax expense

Current tax expense

(Decrease) / increase in deferred tax assets
Increase in deferred tax liabilities

Under / {over) provided in previous years including
amounts attributable to policyholders:

24,636 25,338
(2,922)
87,353 87,353

- current fax : (4,877) (1,730}
- deferred tax 2,982 - - -
Other 55 . 78

Income tax expense 107,227 111,039
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

7. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

(b} Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit

The following provides a reconciliation of differences between prima facie tax calculated at 28% (2011: 28%) of
the profit before income tax for the year and the actual income tax expense recognised in the Income statement
for the year. The income tax expense amount reflects the impact of both income tax attributable to the

shareholders as well as income tax attributable fo policyholders.

Income tax attributable fo policyholders is based on investment income allocated to policyholders less expenses
deductible against that investment income. The impact of the tax is charged against the policyholder liabilities. The
rate applicable to New Zealand life insurance business during the period was 28% (2011: 28%).

Consolidated  Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 . 3000 $000.. . $000
Profit before income tax from continuing operations 136,136 206436 - 113,860 222,295
Profit (loss) before tax from discontinued operations { 3'688) ) 1563 i _
Total profit before income tax 122,448 207,989 ~ 113)860 222,295
Policyholder tax expense recognised as part of the change RO S
in policyholder liabilities in determining profit before income SR O
tax (35,716) - (72,571) . ({35,716) . (72,571)
Profit before income tax excluding policyholder tax 86,732 . 135418 . 78144 149724
Prima facie shareholder tax at the rate of 28% (2011: A LT
28%) 24,285 37,917 21,880 41,923
Tax effect of the differences hetween recognition of o
income statement items for accounting and those
deductible / assessable in calculating taxable income: e
Shareholder impact of par-business tax treatment {9,148) (37,322) . - (9,148)" (37,322)
Non-taxable or deductible items 3,857 (583) 2,953 . (565)
Investment revenue related items -(7,490) 5434 (7,520) 5434
Tax offsets and credits s N i 16
Deferred fax on poticy liabilities 13,632 30,799 73,632 30,799
Other items “{841) 474 {1,442) {1,370
Over / (under) provided in previous years after excluding BT SR
amourts atfributable to policyholders 1,043 (1,885) - .. ... (564) (447)
Income tax expense attributable to shareholder 15,038 34,817 09,791 38,468
Income tax expense attributable to policyholders 35716 ° 72571 0 .35716 . 72,571
Aggregate Income Tax expense ‘50,754 107,388 - .:"-._45,'5”07 - 111,039
income Tax expense atiributable to: :
Continuing operations 107,227 . 111,039
Discontinued operations 44 161 -
" 50,754 . 107,388 7. 111,039
(c) Analysis of deferred tax asset S , :
Accruals and provisions 9,803 ° -
Plant and equipment and capitalised costs 5,464 -
Total deferred tax assets 15,267 .- -
{d) Analysis of deferred fax liability i
Deferred acquisition cost within policy liabilities 157,806 - 161,439 157,806
Fair value adjustments on investments 31,339 . 43,565 31,339
Accruals and provisions 72y o(7B) (72)
Portfolio Investment Entity allocated losses 26,103 23,430 26,103
Total deferred tax liabilities 228,356 215,176 . 228,356 215,176
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes 1o the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

7. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

{e) Unused tax losses and deductible tempaorary differences not recognised

There are no unused tax losses or deductible temporary differences not recognised (2011: nil} in either the
Branch or the Group.

(f) Dividend withholding payment account

The Branch has elected to maintain a dividend withholding payment account.

Consolidated and

Parent
s 2011
3000
Opening balance brought forward 6,615
Closing balance 6,615

{g) Imputation credit account

Under the imputation system, the Branch may allocate or impute the tax it pays on its income attributable to its
shareholder on the distributions it makes to its shareholder.

Consolidated o Pal_'ent

2012 2011 2011
3000 3000 $000
Closing balance 323,688 292212 - 249,978

8. DISCONTINUED CPERATIONS

In June 2012, the Board of a controlled entity in which the Branch has an investment, disposed of its investment in
the Donaghys group of companies {(which was involved in the agricultural and marine industries).

{a) Financial performance of operations disposed of: _ _ o
- Consolidated i

Revenue

Expenses

Loss on Disposal :

Profit {loss) for the year before income tax

Income tax (expense) credit

Profit (loss) from discontinued operations for the year

Profit (loss) attributable to non-controfling interests

Profit (loss) from discontinued operations atfributable to the shareholder of AMP
Life Limited

The comparative information in the income statement has been restated fo reflect the results of the discontinued
operations.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) The major assets and liabilities of the Donaghys group at the date of disposal were as follows:

Receivables

Inventories and other assets
Plant and equipment
Intangibles

Other assets

. :SOO:OI -

" (7.993)

Payables 993)
Borrowings - (3,534)
Other liahilities .+{4,342)
{15,869)
Net assets attributable to discontinued operations 19,537
{c) Consideration received or receivable: 2012
3000
Cash 14,000
Present value of deferred sales proceeds 2,362
Total disposal consideration 16,362
Less net assets disposed of .. 19,537
Loss on disposal before income tax (13,175)
Income tax credit Y.}

Loss on disposal after income tax

(d) Net cash flows of operations disposed of:

13431)

Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

Net cash inflow / (outflow)
9. RECEIVABLES

Consclidated ~ Parent
2012 2011 2012
L $000 - $000
Reinsurers' share of life insurance contract liabilities 8,008
Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable 5,560 .
Investment income, sales proceeds and margins
receivable’ 6,787
Life insurance contract premiums receivable 29,786
Other receivables
- related entities : 1
- other entities 25,024 32,169

Total receivables

405,651

82301 - 59781 51423

For the Parent Nil (2011: Nil) and for the Group $7.4m (2011: $7.9m)} of total receivables is expected to be

recovered more than 12 months from reperting date.

1 Receivables backing insurance and investment liabilities and carried at fair value.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

10. INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS

_ p_oqsolidated _ Parent
20120 201 202 201
8000 $000

Investments in financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss

Investments in controlled entities backing insurance
contract liabilities and investment liabilities

Equity securities and listed managed investment
schemes

Debt securities

Investments in unlisted managed investment schemes
Derivative financial assets'"

Total investment in financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss

Investments in financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Investment in controlled entities by the Shareholder
Fund

Loans

Loans to controlled entities

Total investments measured at amortised cost

Total investment in financial assets
m

11. INVENTORIES AND OTHER ASSETS

8000 5  $000

. 4,515,700 1,328,149

79,527

927,738 & 34,981

1,184,017 19,603

218,501 147,970

517,617 2,409,783 41,206 1,530,703
2,005

25711223 2464517 . 2814357, 2,604,218

All financial assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss with the exception of derivative
financial assets that are classified as trading under NZ IAS 39,

Consolidated _ Parent
2012 2011 2012 0 201

$000. .. $000 - $000-  $000
Inventories e - : 13,231 -
Prepayments 2,210 1.541 _ 42
Total inventories and other assets 210 14,772 42
- ]

(i) The inventory held by the Group related to inventory of an invesiment in a controlled entity involved in the
agricultural and marine industries. This investment was disposed of in June 2012.

(il There has been no impairment of inventory during the reporting period (2011: $nil)

(iii) Al other assets are expected fo be recovered within 12 months from the reporting date.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

12. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2012 Office fittings, Computer &
furniture and communication
equipment equipment Total
Consolidated o000 3000 $000

Plant and equipment
Gross carrying amount
Less: accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

.. 26,765

10,884 65
' -(-14,2?'6} :

E ...15,989)

Plant and equipment at written down value 11,489

Movements in plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year

Additions 2,2 : 111 718
Disposals - (5,356) L R R L (5,356)
Depreciation expense for the period e (1,133%) . o ' G i {2,400)
Reclassification between asset classes S (1,991y ~ - -
Transfer from intangible assets i e LY '
Balance at the end of the year B .'.4;895 11,489
31 December 2011 Office fittings, Computer &

furniture and communication

equipment equipment Total

Consolidated $000 $000 $000
Plant and equipment
Gross carrying amount 17,088 9,237 26,325
Less: accumulated depreciation and impairment losses {6,728) (8,232) (14,960)
Plant and equipment at written down value 10,360 1,005 11.365
Movements in plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 11,369 801 12,170
Additions 1,181 950 2,131
Disposals (531) (4) (535)
Depreciation expense for the period (1,658) (742} (2,401}
Balance at the end of the year 10,360 1,005 11,365

There was no restriction on the title of any assets as at 31 December 2012 or 2011.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financia! Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

13. INTANGIBLES

31 December 2012 Goodwill Other intangibles Total
Consolidated $000 $000 $000
Intangibles

Gross carrying amount ’

Less: accumulated amortisation and impairment losses

Intangibles at written down value

Movemernts in intangibles
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions

Disposals

Amortisation expense

Transfer to plant and equipment

Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2011 Goodwill Other intangibles Total
Consolidated $000 $000 $000
Intangibles
Gross carrying amount 1,320 44,625 45 945
Less: accumulated amortisation and impairment losses - {26,887) (26,887)
Intangibles at wriften down value 1,320 17,728 19,048
e ——
Movements in intangibles
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,192 6,413 7,605
Additions 128 12,749 12,877
Amortisation expense - (1,434} (1,434)
Balance at the end of the year 1,320 17,728 19,048
e

14. PAYABLES

Consolidated . Parent
2012 . 2011 2012 . 2011
8000 $000 $000
Life insurance contracts in process of settlement 19,710 19,710
Other payables
- subsidiaries and related entities 5,247 ° 36,168
- reinsurers 5710 5,710
- other entities 29,693 _ 4,747
Total payables 749 60,360 © 129,325 66,335

$2.0m (2011: $2.0m) of payables are expected to be settled more than 12 months from reporting date.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

15. PROVISIONS

Consolidated Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
3000 .. $000 $000 . $000
(a) Provisions . E e
Employee entittements 42,156 6555 -
Loyalty bonuses 21,421 18,991 -
Rectification 5,707 4,365 - - -
Other 4,708 1,409 -
Total provisions 40,992 31320 - .
Consolidated Employee Loyalty
entitlements bonuses Rectification Other Total
$000 $600 s$coo $000 $000
(b) Movements in provision
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,558 18,991 4,365 1,409 31,320
Additional provisions made during the year 10,314 3,868 . . 2054 1,601 . 17,837
Provisions used during the year - (4,252) . (1,438). 0 - o(B42) L 0(1,302) 0 (7,534)
Reversal of unused provisicn CAGM) R e s o 1T0) i “{631)
Balance at the end of the year BT 40,992

Employee entitiements
Employee entitlements include provision for holiday pay and long service leave.

Loyalty Bonuses

For some financial products managed by the Branch, an amount is payable to customers primarily depending
upon the length of time those customers have remained within the product. This loyalty bonus has been calculated
based on best estimate assumptions about future cusiomer behaviour. Some bonuses are payable at set dates,
however others will not be paid until the customer exits a product. As such it is not always possible to estimate
when liabilities will fall due. Where there are no set dates for repayment falling due within 12 months these
liabilities are treated as a non-current liability.

Rectification Provision

This provision primarily relates to the expected costs associated with fulfilling and rectifying certain service level
obligations to some Branch managed entities and entities where the Branch provides, or has provided
administration services. The liabilities are based on an average of the cost of historical unit pricing errors that have
been made. This is deemed to be management’s best estimate and the provision is expected to crystallise over
the next few years.

Other Provisions

Other provisions include restructuring and onerous contracts provisions. The restructuring provision refates to
costs incurred in the process of significantly restructuring operational areas of the business. Prior to 31 December
2012 the Branch undertook action, incurred the obligation and was committed to this expenditure (e.g. the AXA
integration has commenced and a restructuring plan was drawn up). The provision is determined based on the
Branch’'s following policy:

» Eight times One Week's Salary for the employee’s first year of current continuous service with the Company or
part year thereof; pius

»  Two times One Week’s Salary for each subsequent year of service or part year thereof. The amount is based
on their current salary determined at the date of termination.

The onerous contracts provision represents the lease commitments and make good costs on a building that AMP
has moved out of but has an obligation to make good the premises. As well as the obligation for make good costs
relating to current premises occupied by AMP. The provisions are expected fo be utilised by mid 2013 and in
2021.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

15. PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)

Consolidated Employee Loyalty
entittements honuses Rectification Other Taotal
2012 2000 $600 $000 $000 $000

Current
Non-Current

|

Consolidated Employee Loyaity
entitlements bonuses Rectification Other Total
2011 $000 $0600 $000 $000 $000
Current 6,555 1,329 4,365 1,409 13,658
Nen-Current - 17,662 - - 17,662
6,555 18,991 4,365 1,409 31,320
16. BORROWINGS
Qpn_splidated _ __Earent
2012 . 2011 2012 . 2011
600 $O00 L $000 $000

Borrowings
Bank loans

Total borrowings

3,534 -

L 3 ag

The bank loans were secured by a charge over cerain assets and undertakings of the controlled entity who was
party o the borrowings. These borrowings were fully repaid in the current year.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS

Consolidated and Parent
2012 2011

L $000 3000
(a) Analysis of life insurance contract premium and related revenue T i
219,697 221,180

Total life insurance contract premiums received and receivable o _

Less: component recognised as change in fife insurance contract liabilities L 7{14,359) {18,724)
Life insurance contract premium revenue ! 202,456
Reinsurance recoveries 9,807
Total life insurance contract premium and related revenue 212,263
{b) Analysis of life insurance contract claims and related expenses

Total life insurance contract claims paid and payable 218,279 222,507
Less: component recognised as a change in life insurance contract liabilities o {24,222) (22,347)
Life insurance contract claims expense 194,057 200,160
Qutwards reinsurance expense 4,394 13,859
Total life insurance contract claims and related expense . ..208,451 214,019
{c} Analysis of life insurance operating expenses

Life insurance contract acquisition expenses

- Commission -8,109 9,330
- Other expenses 18,288 21,135
Life insurance contract maintenance expenses : SRR R

- Commission 13,976 13,990
- Other expenses 29,667 29,867
Investment management expenses 4,930 4,234
(d) Life insurance contract liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities determined using projection method

Best estimate liability

- Value of future life insurance contract benefits 2,290,445
- Value of future expenses 422,882
- Value of future premiums (2,167,749}
Value of future profits R

- Life insurance contract holder bonuses - .0 '394,678 326,901
- shareholders’ profit margins ;380,610 360,307
Total life insurance contract liabilities determined using projection R

method ::4,313,140 1,232,786

Life insurance contract liabilities determined using accumulation
method

Best estimate liability

- Value of future life insurance contract benefits

122,186 124,456
Total life insurance contract liabilities determined using accumulation s

422,186 . 124,456

method

Value of declared bonus ) 16,818 23,188
Unvested policyholder benefits liabilities® Lo 452,263 429,974
Total life insurance contract liabilities before reinsurance & :_1;9b4,§_9? 1,810,404

Add: Reinsurers share of life insurance contract liabilities
Total life insurance contract liabilities per the Statement of financial

12,668 8,008
position 1,917,075

1,818,412

| ite insurance contract premium revenue consists entirely of direct insurance premiums, there is no inward reinsurance
component.

@ Eor participating business in the Branch, part of the assets in excess of the life insurance contract and other liabilities
calculated under Mo$S are attributed to policyholders. Under the Life Act, this is referred to as policyholder retained profits. For
the purpose of reporting under accounting standards, this amount is referred to as unvested policyholder benefits liabilities and is
included within life insurance contract liabilities even though it is yet to be vested as specific polieyholder entitlements.
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Cpr_l_so_lidated and Parent

2012 2011
; $000

(e} Reconciliation of changes in life insurance confract liabilities
Total fife insurance contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 1,849,916
Change in life insurance contract liabilities recognised in the Income
statement (29,710)
Changes in reinsurers’ share of life insurance contract liabilities 1,829
Premiums recognised as an increase in life insurance contract
lizbilities 18,724
Claims recognised as a decrease in life insurance contract liabilities (22,347)
Total life insurance contract liabilities at the end of the year 1,818,412

(f} Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities, and hence the net profit from life insurance contracts, are calculated by applying
the principles of Margin on Services (MoS). Refer to note 2(7) for a description of MoS and the methods for
calculating life insurance contract liabilities.

The methods and profit carriers used to calculate life insurance contract liabilities for particular policy types are as
follows:

Profit carriers (for business valued

Business Type Method using projection method)
Conventional Projection Bonuses

Investment account Modified accumulation N/A

Retail Risk (lump sum) Projection Expected premiums
Retail Risk (income benefits) Projection Expected claims

Group Risk {lump sum) Accumulation N/A

Group Risk {income benefits) Accumulation N/A

Life annuities Projection Annuity paymenis

Key assumptions used in the calculation of life insurance contract liabilities are as follows:
(i) Risk free discount rates
Except where benefits are contractually linked to the performance of the assets held, a risk-free discount rate

based on current observable, objective rates that relate to the nature, structure and term of the future obligations is
used. The rates are determined as shown in the following table!":

231 Deécember 7 7:': 31 December

Business Type Basis g 2011

Retail risk (other than income Zero coupon government bond yield

benefit open claims) curve 2.5%-4.1%

Group risk and Retail risk (income  Zero coupon govermment bond yield

benefit open claims) curve (including liguidity premium) 2.8% - 4.4%
Zero coupon government bond yield

l.ife annuities (non-CPI) curve (including liquidity premium) 2.8% - 4.8%

Government indexed bond yield curve
Life annuities (CPL) (including liquidity premium)

1.3%

M The discount rates vary by duration in the range shown above.

31

Eg_g



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

{f) Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities
(continued)

(i} Participating business discount rates

Where benefits are contractually linked to the performance of the assets held, as is the case for participating
business, a discount rate based on the expected market return on hacking assets is used. The assumed earning
rates for backing assets for participating business are largely driven by long-term {eg 10 year) government bond
yields. The 10 year government bond yields used at the relevant valuation dates are as shown below.

Assumed earning rates for each asset sector are determined by adding to the bond vyield various risk premiums
which reflect the relative differences in expected future earning rates for different asset sectors. For products
backed by mixed portfolio assets, the assumption varies with the proportion of each asset sector backing the

product. The risk premiums applicable at the valuation dates are shown in the table below:

10 Year
Government International Fixed
Bonds Local eguities equities Property interest Cash
31 December 2012 gm0 as% T sE% T T T2B%  08% U (0.5%)
31 December 2011 3.8% 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.8% {0.5%)

The risk premium for local equities includes allowance for imputation credits. The risk premium for fixed interest
reflects credit ratings of the portfolio held.

The averages of the asset mixes assumed for the purpose of setting future investment assumptions for
participating business at the valuation date are as shown in the table below. These asset mixes are not
necessarily the same as the actual asset mix at the valuation date as they reflect long term assumptions.

Equities Property Fixed interest Cash
31 December 2012 e ' ' .-45_% o 17% e T a7% 6%
31 December 2011 40% 17% 37% 6%

The asset mix in ithe table above includes both conventional and investment account business. Where an
assumption used is net of tax, then tax on investment income is allowed for at rates appropriate to the class of
business and asset sector, including any allowance for imputation credits on equity income. For this purpose, the
total return for each asset sector is split between income and capital gains. The actual split has varied at each
valuation as the total return has varied.

(i) Future participating benefits

For participating business, the total value of future bonuses (and the associated shareholders’ profit margin)
included in life insurance contract liabilities is the amount supported by the value of the supperting assets, after
allowing for the assumed future experience. The pattern of bonuses and shareholders profit margin assumed to
emerge in each future year depends on the assumed relationship between reversionary bonuses (or interest
credits) and terminal bonuses. This relationship is set to refiect the philosophy underlying actual bonus
declarations.

Actual bonus declarations are determined to reflect, over time, the investment returns of the particular fund and
other factors in the emerging experience and management of the business. These factors include:

» allowance for an appropriate degree of benefit smoothing,

« reasonable expectations of policyholders,

* equity between generations of policyholders applied across different classes and types of business, and

s on going capital adequacy.

Given the many factors involved, the range of bonus structures and rates for participating business is extremely
diverse,

Typical supportable bonus rates on major product lines are as follows (31 December 2011 in parentheses):

Reversionary Bonus

Bonus on sum insured 0.4%-0.7% (0.3%-0.5%)
Bonus on existing bonuses 0.4%-0.7% (0.3%-0.5%)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

() Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities
{continued)

(i)  Future participating benefits (continued)

Terminal Bonus
The terminal bonus scales are complex and vary by duration, product lines and class of business.

Crediting Rates {investment account) 2.9%-3.1% (2.4%-2.9%)
(iv) Future maintenance and investment expenses

Unit maintenance costs are based on budgeted expenses in the year following the reporting date (including GST,
as appropriate and excluding one-off expenses). For future years, these are increased for inflation as described in
(v) below. These expenses include fees charged to the life statutory fund by the service company. Unit costs vary
by product line and class of business based on an apportionment which is supported by expense analyses.

Future invesiment expenses are based on the fees currently charged by the asset managers.
(v) Inflation and indexation

Benefits and premiums under many regular premium policies are automatically indexed by the published
consumer price index (CPI}. Assumed future take-up of these indexation options is based on AMP Life's own
experience with the annual CPI rates derived from the difference between long-term government bonds and
indexed government bonds. '

The assumptions for expense inflation have regard to these rates, recent expense performance, AMP Life's
current plans and the terms of the relevant service company agreement, as appropriate.

The assumed annual inflation and indexation rates at 31 December 2012 are 2.5% for CPl and 3.0% for expenses
(31 December 2011: 2.5% for CPl and 3.0% for expenses).

(vi) Basis of taxation

The bases of taxation (including deductibility of expenses) are assumed to continue in accordance with legislation
current at the valuation date.

{vii) Voluntary discontinuance

Assumptions for the incidence of withdrawals, paid ups and premium dormancy are primarily based on
investigations of AMP Life's own historical experience. These rates are based upon the assessed global rate for
each of the individual products (or product groups) and then, where appropriate, further adjusted for duration
premium structure, smoker status, age attained or shori-term market and business effects. Given the variety of
influences affecting discontinuance for different product groups the range of voluntary discontinuance rates across
AMP Life is extremely diverse.

The assumptions for future rates of discontinuance for the major classes of life insurance contracts are shown in
the table below.

Business Type .31-December:2012 ' 31 December 2011

Conventional
Retail risk (Jump sum)
Redail risk (income benefit)

% 1.3%-25%
10; 0% 10.5%- 12.0%
7.0% - 12.0% 7.0% - 12.0%

Voluntary discontinuance assumptions are unchanged from those used at 31 December 2011.
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

{f) Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities
(continued)

(viii} Surrender values

The surrender bases assumed are those current at the reporting date. There have heen no changes to the bases
during the year (or the prior year) that would materially affect the valuation results.

(ix) Mortality and morbidity

Standard mortality tables, based on national or industry wide data, are used. They are then adjusted by factors
that take account of AMP Life’s own experience.

Rates of mortality assumed at 31 December 2012 are unchanged from those assumed at 31 December 2011,
except for conventional business — added an adjustment to allow for future mortality improvements.

Typical mortality assumptions in aggregate, are as follows:

Conventional 73% (M/F) 1A95 — 97
Term 63% (M/F) 1A95 — 97
Annuities 95% IMLOO* f 80% IFLOO*
Footnote:

i. Base |A 95-97 table modified for future mortality improvements

For disability income business, the claim assumptions are currently based on IAD89-93, which is derived from
Australian experience. ltis adjusted for AMP's experience, with the adjustment dependent on age, sex, waiting
period, occupation, smoking status and claim duration.

Typical morbidity assumptions in aggregate are as follows:

Incidence rates - % of lAD89-93 Termination rates{ultimate} - % of [AD89-93
Income protection 60% 54%-90%

For trauma cover, standard tables are not available and assumptions are mostly based on Australian population
statistics, with adjustment for smoking status as well as recent claims experience. Trauma assumptions at 31
December 2012 are unchanged from those used at 31 December 2011.

The actuarial tables used were as follows:;

[A95-97 A mortality table developed by the Institute of Actuaries of Australia
based on Australian insured lives experience from 1895 to 1997,

IMLOO* / IFLOO* IMLOO and IFLOO are mortality tables developed by the Institute of
Actuaries and the Facully of Actuaries based on United Kingdom
annuitant lives experience from 1989 to 2002. The tables refer to male
and female lives respectively and incorporate factors that allow for
mortality improvements since the date of the investigation.

IMLOO * and IFLOO* are these published tables amended for some
specific AMP expetience.

1ADB9-93 A disability table developed by the Institute of Actuaries of Australia
based on Australian disability income experience from 1989 - 1993.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

{f) Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities
{continued) ’

(¢} Impact of changes in assumptions

Under MoS, for life insurance contracts valuations using the projection method, changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised by adjusting the vajue of future profit margins in life insurance contract liabilities. Future profit
margins are released over future periods.

Changes in assumptions do not include market related changes in discount rates such as changes in benchmark
market yields caused by changes in investment markets and economic conditions. These are reflected in both life
insurance contract liabilities and asset values at the reporting date.

The impact on future profit margins of changes in actuarial assumptions from 31 December 2011 to 31 December
2012 in respect of life insurance contracts (excluding new business contracts which are measured using
assumptions at reporting date) is as shown in the table below:

Change in future profit Change in life insurance Change in shareholder
Assumption change margins ($000) contract liabilities ($3000)  profit and equity ($000)
Non-market related changes to
discount rates (10,221) 58 (58)
Mortality and morbidity 8,187 “ -
Riscontinuance rates - - -
Maintenance expenses 1,712 - -
Other assumptions "’ 29,660 - -

» Cther assumptions changes are the impact of product and premium rate changes.

In most cases, the overall amount of life insurance contract liabilities and the current period profit are not affected
by changes in assumptions. However, where in the case of a particular related product group, the changes in
assumptions at the end of a period eliminate any future profit margins for the related product group, and results in
negative future profit margins, this negative balance is recognised as a loss in the current period. If the changes in
assumptions in a period are favourable for a product group currently in loss recognition, then the previously
recognised losses are reversed in the period.

{g) Insurance risk sensitivity analysis - life insurance contracts
For life insurance contracts which are accounted for under MoS, amounts of liabilities, income or expense

recognised in the period are unlikely to be sensitive to changes in variables even if those changes may have an
impact on future profit margins.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED}

{g) Insurance risk sensitivity analysis - life insurance contracts (continued)

This table shows information about the sensitivity of life insurance confract liabilities, current year shareholder
profit after income tax, and equity, 1o a number of possible changes in assumptions relafing to insurance risk:

Change in life insurance
contract liabilities

Change in shareholder profit

after income tax and equity

Gross of Net of Gross of Net of
reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance
Variabhie {$000) {$000) {$000) ($000)
10 % increase in
Mortality mortality rates (1,767) {1,767} 1,767 1,767
50 % increase in the rate
Annuitant mortality of mortality improvement 748 748 (748) {748)
Morbidity — lump sum 20 % increase in lump
disablement sum disablement rates - - - -
Morbidity — disability 10 % increase in
income incidence rales - - - -
Morbidity — disability 10 % decrease in
income recovery rates - - - -
10 % increase in
Discontinuance rates discontinuance rates - - - -
10 % increase in
Maintenance expenses maintenance expenses 79 79 (79) (79)

{h) Life insurance risk

The life insurance activities of AMP Life involve a number of non-financial risks concerned with the pricing,
acceptance and management of the mortality, morbidity and longevity risks accepted from policyholders, often in
conjunction with the provision of wealth-management products.

The design of products carrying insurance risk is managed to ensure that policy wording and promotional
materials are clear, unambiguous and do not leave AMP Life open to claims from causes that were not
anticipated. Product prices are set through a process of financial analysis, including review of previous AMP Life
and industry experience and specific product design features. The variability inherent in insurance risk, including
concentration risks, is managed by having a large portfolio of individual risks, underwriting and use of reinsurance.

Underwriting is managed through a dedicated underwriting department, with formal underwriting limits and
appropriate training and development of underwriting staff. Individual policies carrying insurance risk are
underwritien on their merits and are generally not issued without having been examined and underwritten
individually. Individual policies which are transferred from a group scheme are generally issued without
underwriting. Group risk insurance policies meeting certain criteria are underwritten on the merits of the employee
group as a whole.

Claims are managed through a dedicated claims management team, with formal claims acceptance limits and
appropriate training and development of staff to ensure payment of all genuine claims. Claims experience is
assessed regularly and appropriate actuarial reserves are established to reflect up-to-date experience and any
anticipated future events. This includes reserves for claims incurred but not yet reporied.

AMP Life reinsures (cedes) to specialist reinsurance companies a proportion of its portfolio or certain types of
insurance risk. This serves primarily to:
i reduce the net liahility on large individual risks
ii. cbtain greater diversification of insurance risks
jii. provide protection against large losses

The specialist reinsurance companies are regulated by APRA or industry regulators in other jurisdictions and have
strong credit ratings from A- to AA+.
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS {CONTINUED)

(h) Life insurance risk {continued}

Terms and conditions of life insurance coniracis
The nature of the terms of the life insurance contracts written by AMP Life such that certain external variables can
be identified on which related cash flows for claim payments depend. The table below provides an overview of the
key variables upon which the timing and uncertainty of future cash flows of the various life insurance contracts

issued by AMP Life depend.

Type of contract

Detail of contract workings

Nature of compensation for
claims

Key variables affecting
future cash flows

Non-pariicipating life
insurance conlracts with
fixed and guaranteed
terms (term life and
disability and yearly
renewable)

These policies provide
guaranteed benefits, which
are paid on death or ill-health,
that are fixed and not at the
discretion of AMP Life.
Premium rates for yearly
renewable business are not
guaranteed and may be
changed at AMP Life's
discretion for the portfolio as
a whole.

Benefits, defined by the
insurance contract, are not
directly affected by the
performance of underlying
assets or the performance of
any associated investment
contracts as a whole,

Mortality, morbidity, lapses,
expenses and market earning
rates on assets backing the
liabilities.

Life annuity contracts

In exchange for an initial
single premium, these
policies provide a guaranteed
regular income for the life of
the insured.

The amount of the
guaranteed regular income is
set at inception of the policy
including any indexation,

Longevity, expenses and
market earning rates on
assets backing the liabilities.

Conventional life
insurance coniracts with
discretionary participating
benefits (endowment and
whole of fife}

These policies combine life
insurance and savings. The
palicyholder pays a regular
premium and receives the
specified sum assured plus
any accruing bonuses on
death or maturity. The sum
insured is specified at
inception and guaranteed.
Reversionary bonuses are
added annually, which once
added (vested) are
guaranteed. A further
terminal bonus may be added
on death or maturity.

Benefits arising from the
discretionary bonuses are
based on the performance of
a specified poo! of contracts
and the assets supporting
these contracts.

Market earning rates on
asseis backing the liabilities,
interest rates, iapses,
expenses, and mortality.

Investment account
contracts with
discretionary participating
features

The gross value of premiums
received is invested in the
invesiment account with fees
and premiums for any
associated insurance cover
being deducted from the
account balance. Interest is
credited regularly,

The payment of the account
balance is generally
guaranteed, although it may
be subject to certain penalties
on early surrender or limited
adjustment in adverse
markets. Operating profit
arising from these contracts
is allocated between the
policyholders and
shareholders in accordance
with the Life Act. The amount
allocated to policyholders is
held as an unvested policy
liability until it is distributed to
specific policyholders as
interest credits.

Fees, lapses, expenses and
market earning rates on the
assets backing the liabilities,
interest rates.
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)
(i} Liquidity risk and future net cash outflows

The table below shows the estimated timing of future net cash outflows resulting from insurance contract liabilities.
This includes estimated future surrenders, death/disability claims and maturity benefits, offset by expected future
premiums or contributions and reinsurance recoveries. All values are discounted o the reporting date using the
assumed future investment earning rate for each product.

Up to 1 year 1to 5years Over 5 years Total
$000 $000 $000 3000
31 December 2012 i e s Ll EA00 7,000 5 0 UE6;000 T 601,000

31 December 2011 20,000 36,000 512,000 568,000

18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES

Consolidated and Parent

eo12 2011
e : 3000
{a) Analysis of life insurance and investment contract profit
Components of profit related to life insurance and investment contract
liabilities:
- Planned margins of revenues over expenses released 41,523
- Profits {losses) arising from difference between actual and assumed
experience 48,547
- Capitalised (losses) reversals 941
Profit related fo life insurance and investment contract liabilities 91,011
Attributable to:
- Life insurance contracts 90,129
- Investment contracts 882
Investment earnings on assets in excess of kife insurance and
investment contract liabilities 20,245

{b) Restrictions on assets in statutory fund

AMP Life conducts investment linked and non-investment linked business. For investment linked business,
deposits are received from policyholders, the funds are invested on behalf of the policyholders and the resulting
liability to policyholders is linked to the performance and value of the assets that back those liabilities.

The Life Act requires the life insurance business of AMP Life to be conducted within life statutory funds.

AMP Life has three statutory funds. All of the business of the Branch is held in the No.1 statutory fund. The
business includes whole of life, endowment, investment account, retail and group risk, investment linked and
immediate annuities.

Investments held in the life statutory fund can only be used in accordance with the relevant regulatory restrictions
imposed under the Life Act and associated rules and regulations. The main restrictions are that the assetsin a
statutory fund can only be used to meet the liabilities and expenses of that fund, to acquire investments to further
the business of the fund or as distributions provided solvency, capital adequacy and other regulatory requirements
are met. See further details about solvency and capital adequacy in Note 18(d).

38

B
tw



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(c) Capital guarantees

Consolidated and Parent

2012 2011
$000 $000
Life insurance contracts with a discretionary participating feature
- Amount of the liabilities that relate to guarantees 1,492,530 1,498,174
Investment linked contracts
- Amount of the liabilities subject to investment performance
guarantees 1,797 1,922

(d) Solvency and capital adequacy

Registered life insurance entities are required to hold prudential reserves, over and above their life insurance
contract and investment contract liabilities, as a buffer against adverse experience and poor investment returns.
These prudential reserving requirements are specified by the Life Act and Prudential Standards. The AMP Life
holds additional amounts of reserves to provide a higher level of security for policyholder benefits than would be
achieved by holding the statutory minimum.

Under the Life Act, there are two requirements for each life statutory fund:
® The solvency requirement: and
e The capital adequacy requirement.

Solvency requirements

The solvency requirement is the absolute minimum that must be satisfied for the business to be allowed to
continue to operate. Its purpose is to ensure, as far as practicable, that at any time the fund will be able to meet
all existing life insurance contract liabilities, investment contract liabilities and other liabilities as they become due.

The Appointed Actuary of AMP Life has confirmed that the available assets of the No. 1 statutory fund have
exceeded the solvency reserve required at all times during the reporting period.

Capital adequacy requirements

The capital adequacy requirement is a separate requirement (usually higher) that must be satisfied for the life
entity to be allowed to make distributions to its shareholders and to operate without regulatory intervention. Its
purpose is to ensure, as far as practicable, that there is sufficient capital in each life statutory fund for the
continued conduct of the life insurance business, including writing new business, in a way which is in the interests
of policyholders and in accordance with the Life Act.

The Appointed Actuary of AMP Life has confirmed that the available assets of the No. 1 statutory fund have
exceeded the capital adequacy reserve required at all times during the reporting period. For this purpose, the
capital adequacy reserve is defined as the solvency reserve, plus the difference between the capital adequacy
requirement and the solvency requirement.

The assets included and policies issued in the Branch financial statements represent only a segment of the No.1

statutory fund, and as such separate solvency reserves are not required to be maintained specifically for the
Branch.
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d) Solvency and capital adequacy (continued)

Distribution of retained profits, including shareholder’s Life Act capital, is limited by prudential capital requirements
of the Life Act, the detailed provisions of which are specified by APRA Prudential standards. The solvency
standard prescribes a minimum capital requirement, the solvency requirement, for each statutory fund of the
company. The figures below are shown net of reinsurance on a basis consistent with the calculation of these ratios
in the APRA retums.

The solvency requirements shown below are stated in Australian dollars and apply to the entire No 1 Statutory
Fund.

No 1 Statutory Fund
C2012 2011

CAUDSM .. AUD$m

Solvency requirement

Net minimum termination value (MTV) 18,260
Adjusted other liabilities 2,332
Solvency reserve B 2,145
Total solvency requirement A 23,737
Assets available for solvency

Net assets 1,740
Liability for unvested policy owner benefits 1,267
Excess of net policy liabilities (including policyholder bonuses)

over MTV 361
Total assets available for solvency c 3,368
Solvency reserve % (B/(A-B))*100 9.9%
Coverage of solvency reserve ciB 1.6

(e) Actuarial information

Mr Rocco Mangano (Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of Australia), as the Appointed Actuary of AMP Life, is
satisfied as to the accuracy of the data used in the valuations in the Financial Statements and in the tables in this
Note and Note 17.

The liabilities to policyholders (being the sum of the life insurance contract and investment contract liabilities,
including any asset or liability arising in respect of the management services element of an investment contract)
and solvency reserves have been determined at the reporting date in accordance with the Life Act.

(f) Amounts which may be recovered or settled within 12 months after the reporting date

Based on assumptions as to likely withdrawal patterns of the various product groups, it is estimated that
approximately $242m (2011: $232m) of policy liabilities may be settled within 12 months from the reporting date,
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
{4) Disaggregated information

Under the Life Act, the life insurance business of AMP Life is conducted within a separate life statutory fund that is
distinguished from the shareholders fund. Information for all major components of the financial statements

disaggregated between the life statutory fund and the shareholders’ fund is provided within this note.

(i) Disaggregated Income statement

Non Total
Investment Investment Statutory  Shareholder Total
Linked Linked Elimination Fund Fund
2012 2012 2012

600

Income and expenses

Life insurance premium and
related revenue

Fee revenue

Cther revenue

Investment gains and (losses)
Life insurance claims and
related expenses

Operating expenses

Finance costs

Change in policyholder liabilities
-Investment contracts

-Life insurance contracts

(208,451)
*(72,398)

Profit before income tax
Income tax (expense) / credit

5,507)

Net profit for the year

Non Total
Investment investment Statutory Shareholder Total

Linked Linked Elimination Fund Fund Parent

2011 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011

$000 3000 $000 3000 $000 3060
Income and expenses
Life insurance premium and
related revenue - 212,263 - 212,263 - 212,263
Fee revenue 3,026 - - 3,026 - 3,026
Other revenue - (25) 25) (25)
Investment gains and (losses) 672 266,841 - 267,513 - 267,513
Life insurance claims and
related expenses - (214,019) - (214,019) - {214,019)
Operating expenses (1,350) (74,822) : (76,172) - (76,172)
Finance costs {7 (2886) - (293) - (293)
Change in policyholder liabilities
-lnvestment contracts 292 - “ 292 “ 292
-Life insurance contracts - 29,710 - 29,710 - 28,710
Profit before income tax 2,633 219,662 - 222,295 - 222,295
Income tax (expense)} / credit (1,751) {109,288) - {111,039} - {111,039)
Net profit for the year 882 110,374 - 111,256 - 111,256
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(9) Disaggregated information (continued})

(il Disaggregated Statement of financial position

Non Total
Investment Investment Statutory  Shareholder Total
Linked Linked Elimination Fund Fund Parent
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
$000 000 $000 3000 $000 $000

Assets
Investments in financial assets
Other assets

Total assets of policyholders and
the shareholder

Liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities
Investment contract liabilities
QOther liabilities

Total liabilities of policyholders
and the shareholder

Net assets
Equity
Retained earnings
Total equity
Non Total
investment Investment Statutory Shareholder Total
Linked Linked Elimination Fund Fund Parent

2011 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011

$000 3000 3000 3000 $000 3000
Assets
Investments in financial assets 197,327 2,435,073 (30,187) 2,602,213 2,005 2,604,218
Other assets (107,015} 160,849 28,419 82,253 (5) 82,248
Total assets of policyholders and
the shareholdear 90,312 2,595,922 (1,768) 2,684,466 2,000 2,686,466
Liabilities
Life insurance contract liabilities - 1,818,412 - 1,818,412 - 1,818412
Investment contract liabilities 113,324 - - 113,324 - 113,324
Other liabilities (23,894) 307,570 (1,768) 281,808 - 281,808
Total liabilities of policyholders
and the shareholder 89,430 2,125,982 (1,768) 2,213,644 - 2213644
Net assets 882 469,940 - 470,822 2,000 472,822
Equity .
Retained earnings 882 469,940 - 470,822 2,000 472,822
Total equity 882 469,940 - 470,822 2,000 472,822
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{g) Disaggregated information {continued}

(iiiy Disaggregated movement in retained earnings

Investment
Linked

2012

$000

Non

investment

Linked
2012
F000

Total

Statutory

Fund
2012

Shareholder Total
Fund Parent
2012 2012

Opening retained earnings
Profit for the year
Transfer

§000 _

$000 ____ 8000

Closing retained earnings

Non Total
Investment Investment Statutory Shareholder Total

Linked Linked Fund Fund Parent

2011 2011 2011 2011 2011

$000 $000 3000 Jooo $000
Opening retained earnings - 359,566 359,566 2,000 361,566
Profit for the year 882 110,374 111,256 - 111,256
Closing retained earnings 882 469,940 470,822 2,000 472,822

d and Parent
2011
$000

(h) Analysis of other life insurance and investment contract

operating expenses

Other life insurance and investment contract acquisition expenses

- Commission
- Other expenses

Other life insurance and investment contract maintenance expenses

- Commission
- Other expenses
Investment management expenses
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES

AMP Life’s financial risk management is carried out in accordance with the policies set by the AMP Limited Board
for management of the risks within the AMP group. Below is a summary of the AMP group’s financial risk
management policies which may impact AMP Life.

Financial Risk Management

The AMP Limited Board has ultimate responsibility for risk management and governance, including ensuring that
an appropriate risk framework and appetite is in place and is operating effectively. This includes setting the
financial risk appetite and approval of the AMP group Financial Risk Management Framework (FRM Framework),
its sub-policies, the shareholder capital investment strategy, capital and financing plans.

The principal objective of AMP's financial risk management is to establish a robust structure for identifying,
assessing, managing, quantifying, reporting and escalating financial risks. The FRM Framework is consistent with
both the AMP group Risk Appetite Statement, which outlines AMP’s appetite, to take certain risks in order to grow
its profits and the AMP Enterprise Risk Management Policy which establishes the principles, requirements, roles
and responsibilities for the management of all categories of risk across AMP.

The FRM Framework includes delegations, roles and responsibilities, escalations and reporting, as well as
outlining AMP group’s FRM objectives. in addition, the FRM Framework provides an overview of each of the key
financial risks including the nature of the risks, objectives in seeking to manage the risks, the key policy variables
for the management of the risks and the business unit responsibility for managing and reporting them.,

Executive Committees oversee the management and monitoring of financial risks and capilal management. These
Committees include Group Asset and Liability Committee (Group ALCO) for AMP group, AFS ALCO for AMP Life
and NZ ALCO for the Branch. AMP group Treasury {(Group Treasury) is responsible for the execution of the FRM
Framework and capital and financing plans in compliance with Board approved targets and limits. Group Treasury
is also responsible for the execution of the approved investment strategy for AMP shareholder capital, for analysis
and reporting of financial risks and the capital position to Group ALCO, the AMP Limited Audit Committee and the
Board, monitoring compliance with the FRM Framework, and for identifying and reporting breaches of policy to
Group ALCO, relevant Audit Committees and the Board.

The Audit Committee ensures the existence of effective FRM policies and procedures, and is responsible for the
oversight of the execution of the FRM Framework, The AMP Life Audit Committee is delegated responsibility for
the elements specific 1o its businesses. Internal Audit reviews the design and operational effectiveness of the FRM
Framework as part of its on-going audit cycle.

Operating entities are required to comply with the Board approved risk appetite and are also responsible for
approving policyholder asset and liability strategies.

The Appointed Actuary provides oversight to the AMP Life Board, Audit Committee, Group ALCO, AFS ALCO and
NZ ALCO as well as, externally to APRA, on the financial condition of the AMP Life. The Appointed Actuary is
also responsible for giving advice to AMP Life on the distribution of profits, premium rates, charges, policy
conditions and reinsurance arrangements. The Life Act also imposes obligations on the Appointed Actuary to bring
to the attention of AMP Life, or in some circumstances, APRA, any matiter that the Appointed Actuary believes
requires action to avoid prejudice to the interests of policyholders.

Information about the capital management activities within the AMP group, including the relationship with
regulatory requirements on the regulated entities is provided in Note 20.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES

(a} Risks and mitigation

For the purposes of the FRM Framework, risk management involves decisions made about the allocation of
investment assets across asset classes and/or markets and includes the management of risks within these asset
classes.

Financial risk in the AMP group is managed by reference to the probability of loss relative to expected income over
a one-year time horizon at a 90 per cent confidence level (profit at risk). in respect of investments held in the
shareholder fund and in the life statutory fund, the loss tolerance over the discretionary investments is set at a low
level because AMP Life has equity market exposure in its businesses (for example through fees on Assets Under
Management).

Financial risks arising in the AMP group include market risk {investment risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange
risk, property risk, and equity price risk); liquidity and refinancing risk; and credit risk, These risks are managed
according to the FRM Framework including through the use of derivative financial instruments such as cross-
currency and interest-rate swaps, forward rate agreements, futures, options and foreign currency contracts to
hedge risk exposures arising from changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of assets and liabilities or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to movements in the financial markets. These movements include foreign exchange rates, interest
rates, credit spreads, equity prices or property prices. Market risk in the AMP group arises from the management
of insurance contracts and investment of shareholder capital including investments in equities, property and
interest bearing investments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis

The paragraphs below include sensitivity analysis tables showing how the profit after tax and equity would have
been impacted by changes in market risk variables including interest rate risk and currency risk as defined in NZ
IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’. They show the direct impact on the profit afier tax or equity of a
reascnably possible change in factors which affect the carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities
held at the end of the reporting period.

The sensitivity is required to show the impact of a reasonably possible change in market rate (it is not intended {o
illustrate a remote, worst case, stress test scenario nor does it represent a forecast. In addition it does not include
the impact of any mitigating management actions) over the period to the subsequent reporting date. The
categories of risks faced and methods used for deriving sensitivity information did not change from previous
pericds.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of an impact on AMP group's profit after tax and equity from movements in market
inferest rates, including changes in the absolute levels of interest rates, the shape of the yield curve, the margin
between different yield curves and the volatility of interest rates.

Interest rate risk arises from interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities in varlous activities of the AMP
group. Management of those risks is decentralised according to the activity. Details are as follows:

As discussed in Note 2(c), the AMP Life conducts its life insurance business through a separate life statutory fund.
Investment assets of the life statutory fund including interest-bearing financial assets are held to back investment
contract liabilities, fife insurance contract liabilities, retained profits and capital.

The interest rate risk of the AMP Life which impacts shareholders arises in respect of financial assets and liabilities
held in the life statutory fund. A risk arises to the extent that there is an economic mismatch between the timing of
payments to life policyholders and the duration of the assets held in the life statutory fund to back the policyholder
liabilities. Where a liability in respect of investment contracts is directly linked to the value of the assets (where
applicable, net of related labilities) held to back that liability {investment-linked business), there is no residual
interest rate exposure which would impact the shareholder.

Management of various risks associated with investments undertaken by the life statutory fund and the life
shareholder fund, such as interest rate risk is subject to the relevant regulatory requirements governed by the Life
Act. AMP Life is required to satisfy solvency requirements, including holding statutory reserves to cater for interest
rate risk to the exient that assets are not matched against liabilities.

AMP Life manages interest rate and other market risks pursuant to an asset and liability management policy that
has regard to policyholder expectations and risks to the AMP Life Board's target surplus philosophy for both
capital adequacy and solvency as advised by the Appointed Actuary.
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19.RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(b} Market risk sensitivity analysis (continued)
(i} interest rale risk (continued)

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
This analysis demonstrates the impact of a 100 basis points change in New Zealand and International interest
rates, with ail other variables held constant, on profit after tax and equity. It is assumed that all underlying
exposures and related hedges are included in the sensitivity analysis, that the 100 basis point change occurs as at
the reporting date and that there are concurrent movements in interest rates and parallel shifts in the yield curves.
The impact on equity includes both the impact on profit after tax as well as the impact of amounts that would be
taken directly to equity in respect of the portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that qualify as cash flow
hedges for hedge accounting. A sensitivity level of 100 basis points is determined considering the range of interest
rates applicable to interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities in the Branch.

2012 2011
Impacton =il impacton
profit ; ‘Impacton’ . profit after Impact on
X equity tax equity
.~ Increase . Increase Increase
ase) . (decrease) (decrease)  (decrease)
Change in variables Sl 8000 $000 $000
+ 100 basis points CLiT(22,530) {9,182) (9,182}
- 100 basis points SETAR TR 11,959 11,959

(ii) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of an impact on the Branch’s profit after tax and equity from movements in foreign
exchange rates. Changes in value would occur in respect of translating the Branch's capital invested in overseas
operations into New Zealand dollars at reporting date (translation risk) or from foreign exchange rate movements
on specific cash flow transactions (transaction risk).

AMP group does not hedge the capital invested in overseas operations thereby accepting the foreign currency
translation risk on invested capital.

Currency risk sensitivity analysis

The analysis demonstrates the impact of & 10 per cent movement of currency rates against the New Zealand
dollar with all other variables held constant, on the profit after tax and equity due to changes in fair value of
currency sensitive monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting date. It is assumed that the 10 per cent change
occurs as at the reporting date. A sensitivity level of 10% is determined considering the range in currency
exposures in the Branch.

2011
Impact on
profit after Impact on
tax aguity
Increase [ncrease
(decrease) (decrease)
Change in variables $000 8000
10 % depreciation of NZD 1,765 1,765
10 % appreciation of NZD (1,775 (1,775)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

19.RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
{b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (continued)
(i) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk of an impact on AMP group’s profit after tax and equity from movements in equity
prices. The Branch measures equity securities at fair value through profit or loss. Group Treasury may, with Group
ALCC approval, use equity exposures or equity futures or options to hedge other enterprise-wide equity
exposures.

Equily price Sensitivity analysis

The analysis demonstrates the impact of a 10 per cent movement in New Zealand and international equities held
at the reporting date. This sensitivity analysis has been performed to assess the direct risk of holding equity
instruments. Any potential indirect impact on fees from the Branch's investment linked business is not included. A
sensitivity level of 10 per cent is determined considering the widely spread portfolios held by the AMP group and
the range of movements in equity markets for the periods.

2012 2011

simpact on s Impact on

v.profitafter  Impacton  profit after Impact on

Cacitax o equity tax equity

“Increase " - -Increase Increase Increase

~(decrease) : {(decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
Change in vatriables SUNS000 . o 3000 $000 $000
10 % increase in New Zealand equities 938 938 1,254 1,254
10 % increase in international equities CooAme 710 2,015 2,015
10 % decrease in New Zealand equities {924) . (924) (1,260) (1,260)
10 % decrease in international equities A4702) - (1,702) {2,024) (2,024)

{c) Liguidity and refinancing risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the AMP group is not able to meet its debt obligations or other cash outflows as they
falt due because of an inability to liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding when required. Refinancing risk, a
sub-set of liquidity risk, is the risk that the maturity profile of existing debt is such that it would be difficult to
refinance (or rollover) maturing debt, or there is excessive exposure to potentially unfavourable market conditions
at any given time.

To ensure that AMP group has sufficient funds available, in the form of cash, liquid assets, borrowing capacity and
un-drawn committed funding facilities to meet its liquidity requirements, Group Treasury maintains a defined
surplus of cash plus six months of debt maturities to mitigate refinancing risk, satisfy regulatory requirements and
protect against liquidity shocks in accordance with the liquidity risk management policy approved by the AMP
Limited Board.

In the current year no breaches of banking covenants have occurred (2011: nil). The carrying amount of the
borrowings at 31 December 2012 was $nil (2011: $3.5m) - refer Note 16. The borrowings have been fully repaid at
the reporting date but at no time did the financiers have legal recourse beyond the operating subsidiary borrower.

The following table summarises the maturity profiles of the Branch's undiscounted financial liabilities and off-

balance sheet items at the reporting date. The maturity profiles are based on contractual undiscounted repayment
obligations. Repayments that are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

19.RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
{c) Liquidity and refinancing risk {continued)

Maturity profiles of undiscounted financial liabilities’

Upto 1 year More than
2012 - Consolidated or no term 1to 5 years 5 years Other 2 Total
£000 F600 $000 SUOQ $000
FPayables T : - - —

60,172,
Derivative financial liabilities oy :
Investment contract liabilities™
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities ©

Upto 1 yearor More than
2011 - Consoclidated no term 1 to 5 years 5 years Other Total
$000 $000 $000 fooo g000
Payables 58,0676 232 - 2,052 60,360
Borrowings 3,534 - - - 3,534
Derivative financial liabilities 1,926 8,105 3,597 - 13,628
Investment contract liabilities - - - 113,324 113,324
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities 63,536 8,337 3,597 115,376 150,846
e ..
Up to 1 year More than
2012 — Parent or no term 1 to 5 years 5 years Other ? Total
$000 __$000 ‘ $000 £000 $000

Payables 42T ETT
Derivative financial liabilities P

Investment contract fiabilities™
Total undiscounted financial St
liabilities L BA2T6TT

Upto 1yearor More than

2011 - Parent no term 11to 5 years 5 years Other Total

$000 3000 $000 3000 F000
Payables 64,440 18 - 1,877 66,335
Derivative financial liabilities - - 397 - 297
Investment contract liabilities - - - 113,324 113,324
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities 64,440 18 397 115,201 180,056

Y The table provides maturity analysis of the Branch’s financial liabilities and non-linked investment contracts
including term annuities.

) Investment contract liabilities of $110.6m {2011: $113.3m) are liabilities to policyholders for investment linked
business linked to the performance and value of assets that back those liabilities. If all those policyholders claimed
their funds, there may be some delays in settling the liability as assets are liquidated, but the shareholder has no
direct exposure to any liquidity risk.

% Estimated net cash out flow profile of life insurance contract liabilities is disclosed in Note 17(i).

{d) Credit risk

Credit risk includes both settlement credit exposures and traded credit exposures. Credit default risk is the risk of
an adverse impact on results and asset values relative to expectations due to a counterparty failing to meet their
contractual commitments in full and on time (cbligator's non-payment of a debt). Traded credit risk is the risk of an
adverse impact on results and asset values relative to expectations due to changes in value of a traded financial
instrument as a result of changes in credit risk on that instrument.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

19.RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d) Credit risk (continued)

The AMP Concentration Risk Policy sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk. The
policy has set exposure limits for each counterparty and credit rating. Compliance with this policy is monitered and
exposures and breaches are reported to senior management and NZ ALCO.

Credit risk management is decentralised in business units within the AMP group. However, credit risk directly and
indirectly (ie. in the participating business) impacting shareholder capital is measured and managed by Group
Treasury on a Group basis, by aggregating risk from credit exposures taken in business units, as detailed below.

+ AMP Life - Credit risk on the invested fixed income porifolios in AMP Life's statutory funds is managed by the
AMP Capital Risk and Compliance Commitiee (AMP Capital R&C) and reported to the fund managers, within
specified credit criteria in the mandate approved by the AMP Life Board. The shareholder portion of credit risk
in the Branch is reported to NZ ALCO by Group Treasury. )

(i} Management of credit risk concentration

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the
same counterparty or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities that would
cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other
conditions. Concentration of credit risk is managed through both aggregate credit rating limits and individual
counterparty limits, which are determined predominantly on the basis of the counterparty's credit rating.

At reporting date, there is no specific concentration of credit risk with a single counterparty arising from the use of
financial instruments, other than the normal clearing-house exposures associated with dealings through
recognised exchanges.

The counterparies to non-exchange traded coniracts, at the fime of entering those contracts, are limited to
companies with investment grade credit (BBB- or greater). The credit risks associated with these counterparties
are assessed under the same management policies as applied to direct investments in AMP group’s portfolio.

Compliance is monitored and exposures and breaches reported to senior management and NZ ALCO.

(i) Exposure fo credif risk

The exposures on interest bearing securities and cash equivalents which impact the AMP group’s capital position
are managed by AMP Treasury within limits set by the AMP Concentration Risk Policy. The following table

provides information regarding the credit risk exposures for items monitored by AMP Treasury according {o the
credit rating of the counter parties.

5000 - $000

AAA 47 420
AA 942,752
A 211,870
BBB 117,750
Below BEB 6,329
Unrated 1
Total financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss with credit

risk exposure managed by AMP Treasurym 1,326,122
Other assets ¥ 1,432,446
Total assets 2,758,568

) Balance mainly comprises interest bearing securities and cash equivalents
The unrated securities mainly comprise amounts due under deferred settlements of disposals of investments
in controlled entities during the year.
! Balance includes all other financial and non financial assets with no credit risk exposure
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

19.RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{d}  Credit risk {continued)

(i)} Past due but not impaired financial assels

The following table provides an aging analysis of financial assets that are past due as at reporting date but not

impaired:

Past due but not impaired

Less than 31 to 60 61 - 90 More than
2012 - Consclidated 30 days days days 91 days Total

$600 £000 £000

QOther receivables — other entities
Reinsurance and other recoveries

Totai "
Past due but not impaired
Less than 31 to 60 61-90 More than
2011 - Consolidated 30 days days days 91 days Total
3000 $000 $000 3000 000
Other receivables — other entities 861 261 102 1,151 2,375
Total ™ 861 261 102 1,151 2,375
AT ——————
Past due but not impaired
l.ess than 31 to 60 61~ 90 More than
2012 - Parent 30 days days days 91 days Total
3000 0____ 5000 $000

$000 %0

Reinsurance and other recoveries

529

3,258 208 0 580 -
2 PYY 550

Total
Past due but not impaired
Less than M6 &1 -390 More than

2011 - Parent 30 days days days 91 days Total

$000 $000 $000 $000 3000
Other receivables — other entities 352 201 - 11 854
Total ™ 352 291 - 11 654

]

M For investment linked business, the liability to policyholders is linked to the performance and value of the assets
that back those labilities. The shareholder has no direct exposure {o any credit risk in those assets. Therefore,
the tables above do not show any past due financial assets that back investment linked business.

(e) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value in the Statement of financial position as assets and
liabilities. Asset and liability values on individual transactions are only netted if the transactions are with the same
counterparty and the cash flows will be settled on a net basis. Changes in values of derivative financial
instruments are recognised in the Income statement.

(i) Derivative fransactions undertaken as part of life insurance operations

AMP Life uses derivative financial instruments including financial futures, forward foreign exchange contracts,
exchange traded and other options and forward rate agreements to hedge the impact of market movemenits on the
value of assets in the investment portfolios, and to effect a change in the asset mix of investment portfolios.

In respect of the risks assocciated with the use of derivative financial instruments, price risk is controlied by
exposure limits, which are subject to menitoring and review. Foreign exchange hedges are monitored on a regular
basis to ensure they are effective in the reduction of price risk.

{ivl Risk relaling to derivative financial instruments
The market risk of derivatives is managed and contrelled as an integral part of the financial risk of the AMP group
The credit risk of derivatives is also managed in the context of the AMP group’s overall credit risk policies.



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

18.RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(f) Fair value measures

Financial instruments measured at fair value are categorised under a three level hierarchy, reflecting the
availability of observable market inputs when estimating the fair value. If different levels of inputs are used to
measure a financial instrument's fair value, the classification within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement. The three levels are:

Level 1: Valued by reference to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabiliies. These quoted
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arms length basis.

Level 2: Valued using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices), including: quoted prices in active markets for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets in which there are few transactions for identical or similar
assets or liabilities, and other inputs that are not quoted prices but are observable for the asset or Hability, for
example interest rate yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, currency rates, option volatilities,
credit risks, and defauit rates. :

Level 3: Valued in whole or in part using valuation techniques or models that are based on unobservable inputs
that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor
based on available market data. Unobservable inputs are determined based on the best information available,
which might include AMP group's own data, reflecting the AMP group’s own estimates about the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques are used to the extent that
observable inputs are not available, and include estimates about the timing of cash flows, discount rates, earnings
multiples and other inputs.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments measured at fair value by each level! of the fair value
hierarchy:

D TR ma - Total falr
2012 - Consolidated Level2 . Level3 . “value

000 . .. . $000 . . -..$000.
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes
Debt securities )
Investment in unlisted managed investment schemes
Derivative financial assets

o t04ee
949,888 oo 040,888
01,329,695 © . 2,918 . 1,332,613
Bl d e iy

Total financial assets

Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Investment contract liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Total fair

2011 - Consolidated Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value

3000 $000 $000 $600
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes 10,263 67,657 1,607 79,527
Debt securities - 922 427 5,311 927,738
investment in unlisted managed investment schemes - 1,181,141 2,876 1,184,017
Derivative financial assels 32,482 186,019 - 218,501
Total financial assets 42,745 2,357,244 9,794 2,409,783
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities 1,661 11,967 - 13,628
Investment contract liabilities - 12,298 101,026 113,324
Total financial liabilities 1,661 24,265 101,026 126,952

e
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measures (continued)

2012 - Parent

Assets

Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes
Debt securities

Investment in unlisted managed investment schemes
Derivative financial assets

Total financial assets

Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Investment contract liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Total fair
2011 - Parent Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
$000 $000 3000 $000

Assets
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes - 1,328,149 - 1,328,149
Debt securities - 34,981 - 34,981
Investment in unlisted managed investment schemes - 16,727 2,876 19,603
Derivative financial assets - 147,970 - 147,970
Total financial assets - 1,527,827 2,876 1,530,703

e —— bttt
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities - 397 - 397
investment contract liabilities - 12,298 101,028 113,324
Total financial liabilities - 12,695 101,026 113,721

A

The following table shows a reconciliation of the movement in the fair value of financial instruments categorised
within Level 3 between the beginning and the end of the reporting date:

Totat
gzins and
losses on
assets and

Balance at liahilities
R the Tota! Net Balance held at
2012 - Consolidated beginning gains / Purchases Sates / transferin  at the end reporting
of the year ({losses) fdeposits  withdrawal { {ouf) of the year date
$0600 $000 000 $000 $000 $000 _

5000
Assets
Equity securities and listed
managed investment schemes
Debt securities
Investment in unlisted managed
investment schemes

Total financial assets

Liabilities
Investment contract liabilities

Total financial liabilities
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19.RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(fy  Fair value measures (continued)

Total gains
and losses
an assets

and
Balance at liabilities
the Balance at held at
i beginning Total gains Purchases / Sales / Net transfer the end of reporting
2011 - Consolidated of the year 1 (losses) deposits withdrawals in / {out) the year date
$000 3000 $000 3000 $000 o000 3000
Assets
Equity securities and listed
managed investment schemes 2,338 82 - (813) - 1,607 82
Debt securities - 774 - (5,261} 9,798 5,311 774
Investment in unlisted managed
investment schemes 12,011 (2,359) - (6,776) - 2,876 {2,359)
Total financial assets 14,349 {1,503) - {12,850) 9,798 9,794 {1,503)
Liabilities
investment contract liabilities 113,761 (2,730) 3.464 {13,469) - 101,026 (2,730)
Total financial liabilities 113,761 {2,730) 3,464 {13,469) . 101,026 (2,730}
Total gains
and losses
on assets
and
Balance at liakilities
the Net Balance at held at
heginning Total gains  Purchases Sales / transfer in the end of reporting
2012 - Parent of the year  {(losses) Ideposits  withdrawals I {out) the year date
$600

Assels

Investment in unlisted managed
investment schemes

Total financial assets
Liabilities

Investment contract liabtlities

Total financial liabilities

$000

$000

$600

__so00

$000

5000

=4



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES {(CONTINUED)

{f)  Fair vaiue measures (continued)

Total gains
and losses
on assets
and
Balance at liabilities
the Balance at held at
beginning of  Totalgains/  Purchases/ Sales/ Net fransfer the end of reporting
2011 — Parent the year {losses) deposits withdrawals in / (out) the year date
$000 $000 $000 $000 £000 3000 $0600
Assets
investment in unlisted managed
investment schemes 12,011 (2,359) - {6,776) - 2,876 {2,359)
Total financial assets 12,011 (2,359 - (6,776 - 2,876 2,359
Liabilities
Investment contract liabilities 113,761 {2,730) 3,464 {13,469) - 101,026 (2.730)
Total financiat liabilities 113,761 {2,730) 3,464 (13,469) - 101,026 (2,730)
The following table shows the sensitivity of the fair value of level 3 instruments to changes in key assumptions:
2012 2011
; et Effect of
reasonably
passible
alternative
assumptions
Carrying
Consolidated amount {+) -}
$000 3000 $000
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed investment .
schemes 1,607 85 (85)
Debt securities 5,311 1,036 (687)
Investments in unlisted managed investment
schemes 2,876 95 -
Total financial assets 9,794 1,216 (772)
2011
Effect of
reasonably
possible
alternative
assumpfions
Carrying
Parent amount " (-}
$£000 $000 $000
Assets
Investment in unlisted managed investment
schemes 2,876 95 -
Total financial assets 2,876 g5 -

The sensitivity has been calculated by changing key inputs such as discount rates and eamings multiples by a
reasonably possible amount.

55

i
m



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

19.RISK MANAGENENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
] Fair value measures {continued)

The Branch recognises loans against policies with a carrying value of $53.6m (2011: $54.7m) on the amortised
cost basis. These loans attract interest at a rate of 6.0 % p.a. (2011: 6.0 % p.a.) Because the loans are 100 %
secured against policies no impairment is expected to occur and the fair value of the loans approximate the
carrying value.

20. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

AMP Life and its subsidiaries holds capital to protect customers, creditors and shareholders against unexpected
losses to a level that is consistent with AMP's risk appetite and approved by the Board.

AMP Life assesses the adequacy of its capital requirerﬁents against regulatory capital requirements. AMP Life
Limited {New Zealand Branch) is a branch of AMP Life which is an operating entity within the AMP group and is an
APRA regulated company.

The AMP group’s capital management strategy forms part of the AMP group's broader strategic planning process.
In addition to managing the level of capital resources, the AMP group also aims to optimise the mix of capital
resources to minimise the cost of capital and maximise shareholder value.

The minimum regulatory capital requirement (MRR) is the amount of capital required by each of AMP’s regulated

businesses to meet their capital requirements as set by the appropriate regulator. These requirements are as

follows:

« AMP Life Limited No.1 Statutory Fund — Solvency, capital adequacy and management capital requirements
as specified under the Life Act and APRA Life Insurance Prudential Standards. From 1 January 2013, these
will be replaced with revised APRA prudential standards.

AMP Life Limited and its subsidiaries have at all times during the current and prior financiat year comptlied with the
externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject.

AMP's regulated businesses each target a level of capital equal to MRR plus a target surplus. The AMP Life No. 1
Statutory Fund's target surplus is set by reference to a probability of breaching regulatory capital requirements.
This is a two tiered test where the target surplus is set as the greater of the amount required for a:

. 1 per cent probability of breaching sclvency over one year

. 10 per cent probability of breaching capital adequacy over one year.

The target surplus policy for AMP Life has been revised following the introduction of revised life insurance APRA
Prudential Standards, which take effect from 1 January 2013.

APRA has introduced revised Prudential Standards relating to minimum financial requirements of superannuation

funds. These revised prudential standards will commence on 1 July 2013, with transitional arrangements applying
over the three years following the commencement date.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

21. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

_ Consolidated

Parent

2011 2011
$000 $000
{(a) Reconciliation of the net profit after income tax
attributable to the shareholder fo cash flows from
operating activities .
Net profit after income tax 100,601 | 111,256
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and loss on
disposals 3,835 o
Other non-cash items 458 -
Net realised and unrealised gains and losses on
investment assets

Loss on disposal of controlled entity

Loss on disposal of plant and equipment

Dividends and distributions reinvested

Defined benefit expense

Increase f (decrease) in life insurance contract liabilities
Decrease in investment contract liabilities

Decrease in income tax balances

(Increase) / decrease in other operating assets and
liabilities

Cash flows from / (used in) operating activities

) - (150,455)

'(26,968) (19,919
(2,328 (2:328)
98,663  (31,504)
(2,693)  (15,040)
{2,851) 64,060

{20,380)

98,663 (31,504)
(2,693) (15,040
- 1(523) 70,992

{21,140)

(70,671

{112,327}

Consolidated

_ Parent

2012 2011 2011
$000 . $000 . $000
(b} Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents S :
Comprises: : ' :
Cash on hand 39,542, 21,127 14,204
Cash on deposit .141,893 116,586 12,135
Balance at the end of the year 181,435 137,713 _ 26,3390

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the above. Gash and cash
equivalents earn interest at floating rates predominantly based on overnight cash rates.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

22. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN LIABILITY AND COMMITMENTS

The following tables summarise the components of the net armounts recognised in the Income statement and the

net amounts recognised in the Statement of financial position for the superannuation plan of a controlled entity. As

noted in note 2(aa), certain controlled entities are participating employers within the AMP (New Zealand) Staff
Superannuation Plan and the figures below represent the Branch’s share of the total plan.

The Branch's share is determined using information on the actual liability owed o individual members of the plan.

As a result, the Branch recognises 96% of the total plan,

. ... Consolidated
2012 2011

{a) Defined benefit income
Current service cosis

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets
Contributions income

Total defined benefit income

(b) Amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income
immediate recognition of ioss

Total recognised via the Statement of comprehensive income

Cumulative amount of income recognised via Statement of comprehensive
income at the start of the period

Cumulative amount of income recognised via Statement of comprehensive
income at the end of the period

Actual return on plan assets

{c)} Movement in defined benefit obligation
Balance at the beginning of the period
Current service cost

interest cost

Contributions by plan participants

Actuarial gains and losses

Benefits paid

Balance at the end of the period

(d} Movement in fair value of plan assets
Balance at beginning of the period
Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gains and losses

Contributions by the employer
Contributions by plan participants

Benefit paid

Balance at the end of the peried

(e) Defined benefit deficit

Present value of wholly funded defined benefit obligations

Less fair value of plan assets

Contributions tax

Net defined benefit deficit recognised in the Statement of financial
position

58

5000 $000

L (18)
Vi {964) (1,246}
S 1,208
o A0 17
(7,127)

! (7.127)

- .. {15,568) {10,449)
- (16,617) (17,576)
(467)

2,35 30,421
o2t 18
7 eea 1,246
o4 15
2,421 2,996

(2,338) (2,345)

3439 32,351

S a0g2 22,047
S eviA,225 1,298
A (1,781)
©..71,645 1,688
ST 4 15
o (2,839) (2.345)
S o522
(33,439) (32,351)
22,438 20,822
e (4, T14) {5.719)

s (17,248)

I
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

22. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN LIABILITY AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

i Consolidated

2011
3000
(f} Movement in net defined benefit deficit
Deficit at the beginning of the period (12,500}
Plus total income recognised in income 51
Plus employer contributions 2,329
Less actuarial losses recognised in other comprehensive income (7,128)
Deficit at the end of the period {17,248)
(g) Historical analysis of defined benefit / (deficit) surplus 012 2011 2010 2009
..$000 . $000 $000 $000
Present value of wholly funded defined benefit obligations e 33,439 - 32,351 30,422 32,006

Less fair value of plan assets : f' 0 '_"':".'.'-'2=2,'2138' 20,822 22,047 22,494

Net defined benefit (deficit)/surplus before contributions
tax recognised in the Statement of financial position

Actuarial gains/{losses) arising on plan liabilities B RT (326) - 516 361 1,189
Actuarial gains/{losses) arising on plan assets Conmeary oo 1,781 (1,025) {1,540)
Change in assumptions gain/{loss) — plan liabilities 2,747 3,429 259 (2,328)

Expected contributions for the financial year ending 31 December 2013 are $1,522,000. This expectation is based
on the latest information from the external actuaries, Mercer (N.Z.) Limited in their report of 31 December 2012.

Fair Value of Plan Assels
The fair value of Plan assets includes no amounts relating to:
» any of the Employer's own financial instruments "
+ any properly occupied by, or other assets used by, the Employer

The expected return on assets assumption is determined by weighting the expected long term retum for each
class by the target allocation of assets to each asset class. The returns used for each asset class are net of
invesiment tax and investment fees.

{h} Principal actuarial assumptions at reporting date

The following table sets out the principal actuarial assumptions used as at the reporting date in measuring the
defined-benefit obligations of the defined-benefit fund:

2011

%

Discount rate {net of tax) 3.00
Expected rate of return on assets (after tax and expenses) 6.00
Inflation increases 250
Future pension increases 1.88

The decrease in the liability totals $1.56m. The change in discount rate is driven by the reduction in
bond yields from 3.0% to 2.6%.

Pensioner mortality is based on the NZ Life table 2005-2007 rated down two years.

™ More than 90% of the Plan assets are invested in AMP managed investment funds.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

22. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN LIABILITY AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

{i) Arrangements for employer contributions for funding defined benefit funds

At the dates of the most recent financial reports of the plan, the deficit measured as the difference between the net
market value of plan assets and the accrued benefits of the plans was $11.0m (2011: $11.5m)} for the defined
benefit fund.

Funding methods and current recommendations

The defined benefit funds funding policy is intended to fully cover benefits by the fime they become payable. The
main group of benefits is the pension rights of retired members and their spouses. The retirement benefits of
active members are valued on a simplified actuarial projection basis as they are not material to the valuation of the
fund.

{j} Allocation of assets

Shown in the following fable are the asset allocations of the defined benefit funds.

2012 2011
The percentage invested in each asset class at the balance date: : EE
Equity _ - 55% 59 %
Fixed income T 28 % 23 %
Property S TR B 11 %
Cash 11 % 7%
23. INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Details of significant investments in controlled entities are as follows:

% Holdings

NAME OF ENTITY INCORPORATION Share type 2011
N .. 5
Allmarg Corporation Limited New Zealand Crdinary, Preference 100.0
. 4 Ordinary A & B,
AMP Capital Investments No. 2 Limited New Zealand Preference 99.9
Donaghys Limited New Zealand Ordinary 58.0
Donaghys Australia Pty Limited Australia Ordinary 58.0
Donaghys Industries Limited New Zealand Ordinary 58.0
Donaghys International Limited New Zealand Ordinary 58.0
Donaghys Pty Limited Australia Ordinary 58.0
. ) Ordinary A & B,
AMP Capital Investments No. 8 Limited New Zealand Preference 99.9
AMP Capital Investments No. 11 Limited‘;"4 New Zealand Ordinary A & B 80.0
AMP Capital Investments No. 14 Limited New Zealand Ordinary A & B 99.9
Kiwi Kat Limited 4 New Zealand Ordinary 70.0
AMP Life (NZ) Investments Holdings Limited New Zealand Ordinary . 1004 100.0
, .4 . Rre

AMP Life (NZ) Investmentsé_lmlted New Zealand Ordinary 00,0 - 100.0
AMP Services (NZ) Limited New Zealand Ordinary ' 0 100.0
AMP/ERGO Mortgage and Savings Limited5 Mew Zealand Ordinary 00,0 100.0
Roost 2007 Limited ™* New Zealand Ordinary CoUiRrel 00,0

' Roost 2007 Limited was amalgamated into AMP Services (NZ) Limited on 31 December 2012.
2 AMP Capital Investments No.2 Limited disposed of its investments in the Donaghys group of companies on 30 June 2012.
* AMP Capital Investments No.11 Limited was liquidated on 7 December 2012.

4 Controlled entities of AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch) No. 1 Statutory Fund
® Controlled entities of AMP Life Limited {New Zealand Branch) Shareholder Fund
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

24. ASSOCIATES

Investments in associates held by the life statutory fund measured at fair value through profit or loss’

Ow ershlp interest  Carryi g amount
PRINCIPAL : ; : 2011
NAME OF UNIT TRUSTS AND QTHER ENTITIES ACTIVITY 3060
Consolidated
AMP Pencarrow Private Capital Joint Venture Fund Invesiment vehicle 2,876
Passive Equity
AMP Capital NZ Shares Index Fund Investment -
AMP Capital NZ Shares Fund Equity Investment 125,875
AMP Capital Strategic NZ Shares Fund Equity Investment 166,659
Passive International
AMP Capital Globa! Shares Fund Equities 38,602
Passive International
AMP Investments World Index Fund Equities 67,657
AMP Capital Property Portfolio Property Investment 301,573
Wholesale Global Share Index Fund Equity Investment -
Total investments held by the life statutory fund
in associated unit trust{s and other entities 703,242

‘Investment in associated entities that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are treated as financial
assets and are carried at fair value. Refer to Note 1(h). The balance date for all significant associated entities is 31 December.

In the course of normal operating investment activities the life statutory fund helds investrments in varicus cperating businesses.
Investments in associated entities reflect investments where the life statutory fund helds between a 20% and 50% equity interest.

25. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Parent
' 2011

Note g000

Operating lease commitments (non-cancellable)
Due within one year

Due within one year to five years

Due later than five years

Total operating lease commitments

The above leases are primarily in respect of propetrties from which the Branch and its controlled entities operate,
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Branch from time fo time may incur obligations arising from litigation or various types of contracts entered into
in the normal course of business including guarantees issued by the Branch for performance obligations to
controlled entities in the Branch's group.

Where it is determined that the disclosure of information in relation io a contingent liability can be expected to
prejudice seriously the position of the Branch {or its insurers) in a dispute, accounting standards allow the Branch
not to disclose such information and it is the Branch’s policy that such information is not to be disclosed in this
note.

At reporting date there were no material contingent liabilities where the probability of any outflow in settlement was
greater than remote.

The Branch has an investment in an associated entity for which it may have a commitment to make further capital
contributions if called. The amount that may be called at any time is $4.2m (2011: $4.2m).

27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Branch transacts with other entities within the AMP Group of companies and cther related parties in the
normal course of its business.

{a} Key management personnel details

The following individuals were the key management personne! of AMP Life Limited (being those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirecily,
including any director (whether executive or otherwise)) of AMP Life for the whole or part of the reporting period as
indicated:

Name Position

Craig Dunn Director, Chief Executive Officer - AMP Limited

Catherine Brenner Non-Executive Director

Anthony Coleman Non-Executive Director

Craig Meller Managing Director - AMP Financial Services

John Palmer Non-Executive Director

Peter Shergold Non-Executive Director

Geoffrey Roberts Non-Executive Director Resigned: 31 March 2012
Diana Eilert Non-Executive Director Appointed: 10 August 2012

The following individuals were key management personnel of the Group:

Name Position

Anthony George Regan  Managing Director

James Georgeson Chief Financial Officer

Therese Singleton Executive Legal Counsel

Gregory Bird General Manager, Actuarial, Strategy and Risk

(b) Remuneration of key management personnel

The following table provides aggregate details of the compensation of key management personnet of AMP Life
Limited (in Australian dollars).

Short term Post employment Share-based
benefits benefits payments Total
2012 5,613,285 103,037 3,376,000 9,092,332
2011 5,396,426 85,318 3,341,000 8,822,744

The fees paid to non-executive directors of AMP Life are the combined fees for AMP Life and the National Mutual
Life Association of Australasia Limited.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

27.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
{b) Remuneration of key management personnel {continued)

Remuneration details for the key management personnel of the Group are as follows (in thousands of New
Zealand dollars):

Short term Post employment Other
benefits benefits Total
2012 2,191 183 63 2,437
2011 1,908 140 27 2,076

{c) Transactions with key related parties

Transactions with related parties are made at arms length and on normal commercial terms. Qutstanding
balances at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012 are unsecured, non interest bearing and settlement
oceurs in cash or through inter-company accounts as necessary.

(i) Parent

The Parent purchases administrative services from AMP Services (NZ) Limited on a fee service basis. Services
purchased include product distribution, marketing, payroll, personnel, computing and accounting services.

The Parent receives administrative services from AMP Capital investors Limited in Australia and investment
services from AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited (AMP Capital). AMP Capital manages the investment
assets of the policyholder fund and the shareholder fund. AMP Capital is also the responsible entity of a number
of the controlled enfities and associated unit trusts detailed in notes 23 and 24.

In additicn the parent received a dividend from AMP Capital Investments No.14 Limited in the current year.

In the previous year, the Parent acquired tax losses from Summerset Group Holdings Limited of $1.9 million which
were used to offset its taxable profit for the tax year ended 31 December 2009. No consideration was paid for
these |losses as they relate to the period before the investment in this company was sold, No tax losses have been
acquired in the current year.

The following table provides the amount of transactions which the Parent has entered into with related parties for
the relevant financial year:

For the year ended 31 December As at 31 December

Service, Service,
management management Amounts Amounts
and other fee and other fee owed by owed to
revenue from expense to related related
related parties  related parties parties parties
Fellow subsidiaries of AMP $000 $000 $000 $000
AMP Services {NZ) Limited 2012 L e S L 46,218 e 1 2,104
2011 - 48,615 - 3,009
AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited P02 T S Ry e
2011 - 415 - -
AMP Capital Investors Limited 20142 - 0 Pan 1117 e o828
- 201 - 525 - 984
AMP [ ERGO Mortgage and Savings Limited 012 TR TR s
2011 - 525 -
AMP Life {NZ) Investments Holdings Limited 20124 s S el T 07,482 T e L
2011 - - 1,071,152 -
AMP Life (NZ) Investments Limited 2012 B L - -~ .80,746
2011 66 - - 32,075
AMP Capital Investments No.14 Limited 2012 o ,049 e e o- -
2011 - - . -
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

27.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
{c) Transactions with key related parties (continued)
(ii) Consolidated

The Branch provides administrative services to AMP Wealth Management New Zealand Limited, The National
Mutual Life Association of Australasia and Spicers Portfolio Management Limited. The Branch also receives
administrative services from AMP Services Limited (Australia) and investment services from AMP Capital
investors Limited and AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited.

In the previous year, the Branch acquired tax losses from Summerset Group Holdings Limited of $8.4 million
which were used to offset its taxable profit for the tax year ended 31 December 2009. No consideration was paid
for these losses as they relate to the period before the investment in this company was sold. No tax losses were
acquired in the current year.

The following table provides the amount of transactions which the Branch has entered into with related parties for
the relevant financial year:

For the year ended 31 December As at 31 December
Service, Service,
management management Amounts Amounts
and other fee and other fee owed by owed to
revenue from expense to related related
related parties  related parties parties parties
Fellow subsidiaries of AMP $000 $000 $000 $000
AMP Services Limited (Australia) 2012 - 145809 - 27,230 T 147 /]
2011 - 25,423 - 3,108
AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited 012 B T B s e 2,830
2011 228 7,549 - 1,137
AMP Capital Investors Limited 2012 - 4,828 - 842
2011 - 4,035 - 1,002

AMP Wealth Management New Zealand Limited
{(formerly AXA Wealth Management New Zealand
Limited)

AXA Asia Pacific Holdings Limited

The National Mutual Life Association of
Australasia Limited (NMLA) — New Zealand
Branch

Spicers Portfolio Managerment Limited
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

28, AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
Amounts paid to the Auditor of the Branch for;

Consolidated

2012 2011

'$000 . $000
Audit of the financiat statements of the Branch and controlled entities : ng; ' 574 455
Other services 1183 255

The Branch has paid audit fees on behalf of other fellow subsidiaries within Group in 2012.

29, EVENTS OCCURING AFTER REPORTING DATE

Parent
2012 2011
.$000 - 3000
304 264

e 272

At the date of this repon, the directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance that has arisen since the
reporting date which has significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Branch, the results
of its operations or its state of affairs, which is not already reflected in this report, other than the following:

»  From 1 January 2013, revised life insurance APRA Prudential Standards relating to capital adequacy apply to
AMP Life. Separate solvency reserves are not required to be maintained specifically for the Branch. As such
an analysis has been performed over AMP Life Statutory Fund No. 1 (*SF1”) to determine the impact of the
new Prudential Standards. As at 31 December 2012, AMP Life SF1's capital adequacy multiple for its would
have been 1.6 had these revised requirements applied {the capital adequacy multiple is a coverage ratio that
expresses the total capital base divided by the prescribed capital amount). The equivalent multiple under the
current standards at 31 December 2012 is 1.3. As at 1 January 2013, the total capital base of AMP Life SF1

exceeds iis prescribed capital amount under these revised standards
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Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholder of AMP Life Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the New Zealand branch of AMP Life Limited and its subsidiaries on
pages 1 to 65, which comprise the statement of financial position of the New Zealand branch of AMP Life Limited
and group as at 31 December 2012, and the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

This report is made solely to the company's shareholder, as a body, in accordance with Section 19(3) of the
Financial Reporting Act 1993. Our audit has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's shareholder
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the New Zealand branch of the
company and the company's shareholder as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements, in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand, and that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). These auditing standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we have considered the internal control relevant to the New Zealand branch of the company's
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the New Zealand branch of the company'’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Ernst & Young provided assurance-related services to the New Zealand branch of AMP Life Limited and group
during the year. We have no other relationship with, or interest in the New Zealand branch of AMP Life Limited and
group.

Partners and employees of our firm may deal with the New Zealand branch of the company on normal terms within
the ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the New Zealand branch of the company.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 1 to 65:

» comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;
»  comply with International Financial Reporting Standards; and

> give a true and fair view of the financial position of the New Zealand branch of AMP Life Limited and the group
as at 31 December 2012 and the financial performance and cash flows of the New Zealand branch of the
company and group for the year then ended.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Financial Reporting Act 1993, we report that:
»  We have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required.

» Inour opinion proper accounting records have been kept by the New Zealand branch of AMP Life Limited as
far as appears from our examination of those records.

Auckland






Appointed Actuary’s Report
To the Directors of AMP Life Limited (“AMP Life”)

This report has been prepared for AMP Life in accordance with Section 78 of the Insurance
(Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (“the Act”).

In terms of Section 77(1) of the Act, | have reviewed the actuarial information contained in, or
used in the preparation of the Financial Statements for AMP Life (New Zealand Branch) for the
year ended 31 December 2012. ("the Financial Statements”)

For the purposes of this report, “actuarial information” is as defined in Section 77(4) of the Act,
together with paragraph 4.1.1 of the Attachment to the Section 59 “Exemption from Compliance
with Solvency Standard” granted to AMP Life by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand under the
Act.

| certify that in my opinion:

a) The value of policy liabilities of AMP Life and the solvency of AMP Life have been determined
using methods and assumptions consistent with the actuarial prudential standards issued by
the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (“APRA”).

b) The allocation and distribution of the profits of Statutory Fund No 1 of AMP Life have been
made in accordance with Divisions 5 and 6 of Part 4 of the Australian Life Insurance Act 1995
(Life Act) and the Constitution of AMP Life.

c¢) Proper records have been kept by AMP Life from which its policy liabilities and solvency have
been able to be properly determined.

d) The apportionment of income and outgo used in preparing the AMP Life accounts at 31
December 2012, as required under sections 78 and 79 of the Life Act, is appropriate.

e) | have obtained all of the information and explanations that | require from AMP Life.

In addition, | certify that in my opinion, and from an actuarial perspective:

f) The actuarial information contained in the Financial Statements has been appropriately
included in those statements.

g) The actuarial information used in the preparation of the Financial Statements has been used
appropriately.

h) AMP Life has fully complied with the APRA solvency standard and capital adequacy standard
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012 in relation to Statutory Fund No 1. Note that
the APRA solvency standard is the applicable standard that applies under the Section 59
exemption granted by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand.

Other than my relationship as Appointed Actuary of AMP Life Limited, | am an employee of the
AMP Group, of which AMP Life forms part, and a member of the AMP Employees’
Superannuation Plan. | hold shares and options in AMP Limited, the ultimate holding company
of AMP Life. I am a customer of AMP Bank Limited, which is also part of the AMP Group.

This report is provided solely in my capacity as the AMP Life Limited Appointed Actuary. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, | do not accept responsibility to anyone for the contents of this
report other than the Reserve Bank of New Zealand, AMP Life Limited and its directors and
shareholders.

O o gao

Rocco Mangano FIAA
Appointed Actuary, AMP Life Limited
24 April 2013
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ANMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No.1 Financial Report

Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2012

Consolidated

2012 201 2012 2011
Note $m $m $m $m .
Income and expenses of shareholders, |
policyholders, external unitholders and non-
controlling interests®
Life insurance premumand related revenue 14(a) 1,204 1,140 1,204 1,140
Fee and other revenue 3(a) 60 54 51 44
Investment gains and (losses) 3(b) 2,070 1,689 2,070 1,598
Lite insurance claims and related expenses 14(b) (1,263) (1,228) (1,263) (1,228)
Operaling expenses 4(a) (653) (685) (629) (628)
Finance costs 4(b) (34) (84) (32) (65)
Change in policyholder liabililes
- investment contracls (194) (179) (194) (179)
- life insurance contracls 14(e) (657) 82 (557) 82
Movement in external unitholdars' liabilties 17 (25) - -
Profit for the year before income tax 650 764 650 764
Income tax expense 5(a) (320) (327) (320) (327)
Profit for the year 330 437 330 437
Other comprehensive income recognised in
reserves
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
- exchange gains/(losses) 16 (1) 16 (1)
16 (1) 16 (1)

Total comprehensive income for the year 346 436 346 436
Total comprehensive loss allributable to non-
controling interests - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 346 436 346 436

Faolnote:

() Income and expenses include amounts allributable lo the sharehalders' interests and policyholders' interests in the life stalutory fund exermal unitholders' interest and
nen-conlrol’nginlerests. Amounts included in respect of the life statutory fund have a substantialimpact on most of the statement of comprehensive income Ines,
especiallyinvestment gains and losses and tax. In general, policyholders' interests in the transaclions far lhe period are attribuled to them in the lines Change in

policyholder liabilities.



AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No.1 Financial Report

Statement of financial p
as at 31 December 2012

osition

Consolidated Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011

Note $m $m $m $m
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 3,945 3,417 3,712 3,213
Receivables 6 1,040 882 726 874
Intercompany tax receivable 20 3 20 3
Other assels 7 3 16 1 1
Investments in financial assets 8(b) 20,998 21,320 21,248 20,565
Investment properly 9 579 1,357 132 130
Property, plant and equipment 10 26 25 23 22
Deferred lax assels 5(c) 62 67 62 67
Total assets of policyholders,
shareholder, external unitholders and
non-controlling interests 26,673 27,087 25,924 24,875
Liabilities
Payables 11 742 450 513 478
Intercomrpany tax payable 122 173 122 172
Provisions 12 7 5 1 1
Other financial liabilities 8(c) 707 1,194 663 725
Other liabilities - 3 - -
Borrow ings 13 303 513 384 388
Deferred tax liabilties 5(d) 511 386 511 386
Investment contract liabilities 3,962 3,640 3,962 3,640
Life insurance contract liabilities 14(e) 17,944 17,345 17,944 17,345
External unitholders' liabililies 539 1,621 -
Total liabilities of policyholders,
shareholder, external unitholders and
non-controlling interests 24,837 25,330 24,100 23,135
Net assets of shareholder and non-controlling
interests 1,836 1,757 1,824 1,740
Equity
Conlributed equity 303 303 303 303
Reserves (18) (34) (18) (34)
Retained earnings 1,539 1,471 1,539 1,471
Total equity attributable to the
shareholder of AMP Life Limited 1,824 1,740 1,824 1,740
Nen-controlling interests 12 17 - -
Total equity of the shareholder of AMP
Life Limited and non-controlling
interests 1,836 1,757 1,824 1,740

Foatnote:

(1) Further information on Equity is provided on the Statement of changes in equityon the following page.

sed these financial statements for issue on 3 May 2013:

For and on behalf of the Board who authorj
)
) o
I ; Y AN P U/

Director

Director



AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No.1 Financial Report

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Consolidated

Equity attributable to shareholder of AMP Life Limited

Foreign
currency Total Non-
Contributed  translation Retained  shareholder conlrolling
equily reserve earnings equity interest  Total equity
$m $m $m $m $m $m
31 December 2012
Balance al the beginning of the year 303 (34) 1,471 1,740 17 1,757
Profit for the year - - 330 330 - 330
Other comprehensive income - 16 - 16 - 16
Total comprehensive income - 16 330 346 - 346
Transfer to AMPLife Limited Shareholder Fund - - (262) (262) - (262)
Nan-controling interest on sales and acquisitions - - - = (5) (5)
Balance at the end of the year 303 (18) 1,539 1,824 12 1,836
31 Decenber 2011
Balance at the beginning of the year 303 (33) 1,206 1,476 17 1,493
Profit for the year - 437 437 - 437
Other comprehensive income - {1) : (1) : (1
Total comprehensive income - (1) 437 436 - 436
Transfer to AMP Life Limited Shareholder Fund - - (172) (172) - (172)
Balance at the end of the year 303 (34) 1,471 1,740 17 1,757
Parent
Foreign
currency Total
Contributed  translation Retained  shareholder
equity reserve earnings equity
$m $m $m $m
31 December 2012
Balance at the beginning of the year 303 (34) 1,471 1,740
Profit for the year - - 330 330
Other conprehensive income . 16 - 16
Total comprehensive income - 16 330 346
Transfer to AMP Life Limited Shareholder Fund - - (262) (262)
Balance at the end of the year 303 (18) 1,539 1,824
31 December 2011
Balance at the beginning of the period 303 (33) 1,206 1,476
Profit for the year - . 437 437
Other comprehensive income - (1) - (1)
Total conprehensive income - (1) 437 436
Transfer to AMP Life Linited Shareholder Fund - - (172) (172)
Balance al ihe end of the year 303 (34) 1,471 1,740




AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No.1 Financial Report

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Consolidated Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011

Note $m Sm $m $m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash recelpls in the course of operations 2,202 2,366 2,228 2,289
Interest and other items of a simiar nalure received 719 814 677 694
Dividends and distributions received 375 520 255 309
Cash payments in the course of operations (2.443) (3,003) (2,690) (2,899)
Finance costs (37) (84) ’ (33) (65)
Income tax paid (259) (233) (257) (233)
Cash flows from (used in) operating aclivities 18(a) 557 400 180 95
Cash flows from investing activities
Net proceeds from sale of/(payments to acquire):
- investrents in financial assels 10 (1,828) (351) (632)
- investment properlies, plant and equipment 787 (23) ] 9
Nel cash acquired / (disposal of) in business combinations (1,297) 897 - -
Cashflows from / (used in) investing aclivities (500) (954) (353) (641)
Cash flows from financing aclivilies
Net repayment of borrowings (203) (19) 2 (11)
Net movement in deposits from customers (6) - (6) -
Cash flows used in financing activities (209) (19) (4) (11)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (152) (573) (177) (556)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,963 5,536 4,759 5315
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 5 - 1 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18(b) 4,816 4,963 4,583 4,759

Foalnote:
() Net proceeds from the saz of/(payments to acquire) investments inlinancizl assets comprise of purchases and sa'es of financlal assets measured al lalrvalue through profitor loss
held by the statutary funds, lzrgely reflecting policyholder investmenl decislons during the period.
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Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2012

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No.1 (‘AMP Life SF1' or ‘the parent’) is one of three statutery funds which together with a shareholder's
fund comprise AMP Life Limited, a company incorporated in New South Wales and registered under the Australian Life Insurance Act
1995 (Life Act). These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 were authorised by the directors of AMP Life Limited
on 3 May 2013 and have been prepared for the purpose of lodgment with the New Zealand Companies Office in accordance with
Section 9A(3) of the New Zealand Financial Reporling Act 1993. They have been prepared on an ongoing basis and in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB). The
consolidated economic entity comprises AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No.1 (‘the parent’) and all entities controlled by the parent
during the year and at the reporting date.

(a) Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial Report are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to the current year and comparative period, unless otherwise stated. Where necessary, comparative information
has been reclassified to be consistent with current period disclosure.The Financial Report complies with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Boards.

The AMP Life SF1 life insurance operations are conducted as required by the Life Act and are reported in isolation of the other statutory
funds and shareholder's fund of AMP Life Limited (i.e. inter-fund transactions and balances are not eliminated). The life insurance
operations consist of both non investment-linked and investment-linked business. For policy contracts that include elements of multiple
statutory funds, only the components relating to Statutory Fund No.1 are reported in these financial statements.

Investment-linked business is business in which the benefit amount of contracts issued is directly linked to the market value of
investment assets held within the statutory fund in which the policy resides. Whilst the underlying assets are registered in the name of
AMP Life Limited and the investment-linked policy owner has no direct access to the specific assets, the coniractual arrangements are
such that the investment-linked policy owners bear the risks and rewards of the invesiment performance of the underlying assets. AMP
Life SF1 derives fee income from the administration of the investment-linked funds.

Non-investment-linked business is business where the insured benefit of an issued contract is not directly linked to the market value of
the investments held. These benefits are payable on death, or occurrence of an insured event such as injury, illness or disability. The
financial risk of the occurrence of the event which crystallises the payment of the insured benefit is borne by AMP Life SF1.

AMP Life SF1 is predominantly a life insurance and wealth-management business. Where permitted under accounting standards, the
assets and liabilities associated with life insurance and investment contracts are generally measured on a fair value basis and other
assets and liabilities are generally measured on a historical basis.

Assels and liabilities have been presented on the face of the Statement of financial position in decreasing order of liquidity and do not
distinguish between current and non-current items. The majority of the assels of AMP Life SF1 are investment assels held to back
investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities. Although the amount of those assets which may be realised and those
liabilities which may be seliled within 12 months of the reporting date are not always known, estimates of amounts expected to be
recovered or settled (a) no more than 12 months after the reporting date, and (b) more than 12 months after the reporting date, have
been provided in footnotes to the relevant notes.

Changes in accounting palicy
Since 1 January 2012, AMP Life SF1 has adopted all Australian Accounting Standards which have become mandatory for adoption

including:

s AASB 2010-8 Income taxes (amendment) — Deferred tax: Recovery of Underlying Assels
o AASB 2010-6 Amendment to Auslralian Accounting Standards — Disclosures on Transfers of Financial Assets

o AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures
Adoption of these standards has not had any material effect on the financial position or performance of AMP Life SF1.

Australian Accounting Standards issued but not yet effective

A number of new accounting standards and amendments have been issued but are not yet effective. AMP Life SF1 has not elected to
early adopt any of these new standards or amendments in this Financial Report. These new standards and amendments, when applied
in future periods, are not expected to have a material impact on the financial position or performance of AMP Life SF1:

° AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, AASB 11 Joint Arrangements, AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities, revised AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements, revised AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
and AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements
Standards. These standards change the criteria for determining which entities are to be consolidated and which entities are to
be accounted for using the equity method in preparing consclidated accounts and the required disclosures in relation to such
entities. Each of these standards is mandatory for adoption by AMP Life SF1 in the year ending 31 December 2013. It is
expected that the adoption of these standards will result in additional entities being consolidated into AMP Life SF1, however,
the financial impact on AMP Life SF1 of adopting these standards has not yet been quantified.

° AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. This standard centralises the definilion and guidance for calculating fair values where
required to be applied by various other accounting standards and removes some minor inconsistencies that previously
existed between the guidance for determining fair value in these standards. The new standard requires quantitative and
qualitative disclosures of all fair value measurements. AASB 13 is mandatory for adoption by AMP Life SF1 in the year ending
31 December 2013. The financial impact on AMP Life SF1 of adopting AASB 13 is not expected to be material.

° Revised AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements. The revised AASB 101 requires items in the Statement of
comprehensive income to be segregated between those that will be eventually realised in the Statement of comprehensive
income in future periods and those that will not. The revised AASB 101 is mandatory for adoption by AMP Life SF1 in the year
ending 31 December 2013. The changes to AASB 101 relate to presentation only and are not expected to have a financial
impact on AMP Life SF1.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

o AASB 2012-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Disclosures — Offselting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities. This standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures to include information that
will enable users of an entity's financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, including rights
of set-off associated with the enlity's recognised financial assets and recognised financial liabilities, on the entity's financial
position. These amendments are mandatory for adoption by AMP Life SF1 in the year ending 31 December 2013. These changes
are not expected to have a financial impact on AMP Life SF1.

o AASB 2012 — 3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Olfselting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. These
amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set off”. The amendments also clarify the
application of AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation offsetling criteria to setllement systems which apply to gross
selllerment mechanisms that are not simultaneous. These amendments are mandatory for adoption by AMP Life SF1 in the year
ending 31 December 2014, These changes are not expected to have a financial impact on AMP Life SF1.

o AASB 9 Financial Instruments. This standard makes significant changes to the way financial assels are classified for the purpose
of determining their measurement basis and also to the amounts relaling to fair value changes which are to be taken directly to
equity. In subsequent phases, the AASB will address hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets. AASB 9 is mandatory
for adoption by AMP Life SF1 in the year ending 31 December 2015. The financial impact to AMP Life SF1 of adopting AASB 9
has not yet been quantified.

Change in presentation of the Statement of cash flows

The 2011 comparatives in the Statement of cash flows has been revised to treat reinvested distributions as non-cash transactions and
lo separately disclose Net cash acquired / (disposed of) in business combination businesses within Cash flows from investing activities.
Previously, reinvested distributions had been included in the Statement of cash flows on a gross basis and Net cash acquired /
(disposed of) in business combinations were included in in cash receipts/payments in the course of operations in Cash flows from
operating activities. These changes have resulted in:

Parent (2011 figures)
e anincrease in Cash receipls in the course of operations of $693m;
a decrease in Dividends and distributions received of $315m;
an increase in Cash payments in the course of operations of $693m;
a decrease in Cash flows from operaling activilies of $315m;
a decrease in Net payments to acquire investments in financial assets of $315m; and
a decrease in Cash flows used in investing activities of $315m.

Consolidated (2011 figures)
¢ anincrease in Cash receipts in the course of operations of $697m;
a decrease in Dividends and distributions received of $256m;
an increase in Cash payments in the course of operations of $1,590m;
a decrease in Cash flows from operating activities of $1,149m;
an decrease in Net payments to acquire investments in financial assets of $252m;
an increase in Net cash acquired in business combinalions of $897m; and
a decrease in Cash flows used in investing activilies of $1,149m.

(b) Principles of consolidation

The financial statements consolidate the financial information of conltrolled entities. Control is determined as the power 1o govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity or business so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The majorily of AMP Life SF1's
investments are held through controlling interests in a number of unit trusts and companies.

The financial information for controlled entities is prepared for the same reporting date as the parent entity, using consistent accounting
policies. Where dissimilar accounting policies may exist, adjustments are made to bring these into line.

Consolidation principles require the total amounts of each underlying asset, liability, income and expense of the conlrelled entities to be
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. When a controlled unit trust is consolidated, the share of the unitholder liability
altributable to AMP Life SF1 is eliminated but amounts due to external unitholders remain as liabilities in the consolidated Statement of
financial position. The share of the net assets of controlled companies attributable to non-controlling interests is disclosed separately on
the Statement of financial position. In the Statement of comprehensive income, the profit or loss of AMP Life SF1 is allocated between
profit or loss attributable to non-controlling interests and profit or loss atlributable to the parent entity.

Controlled entities acquired are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. Information from the financial statements of
controlled entities is included from the date the parent entity obtains control until such time as control ceases. Where AMP Life SF1
ceases to control an entity, the consolidated financial statements includes the results for the part of the reporiing date during which the
parent entity had conirol.

Most other acquisitions and disposals of conlrolled entities are in relation to unit trusts with underlying net assets typically comprising
invesiment assets including cash, The consideration for acquisitions or disposals reflects the fair value of the investment asseis at the
date of the transactions after taking into account non-controlling interests.

Consolidation impact of investments of AMP Life

AMP Life conducts wealth-management business through separate life statutory funds, including AMP Life SF1. Income, expenses,
assets and liabilities attributable to policyholders within the life statutory funds are consolidated into the AMP Life SF1 financial
statements.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The majority of the AMP Life SF1's investments are held through controlling interests in a number of unit trusts and companies. These
investment assets are held on behalf of policyholders and AMP Life SF1 recognise a liability to the policyholders valued as described in
Note 1(q) for life insurance contract liabilities and Note 1(r) for invesiment contract liabilities. In certain cases, the amount of the net
assets of the controlled entilies recognised in the consolidated financial statements may not match the valuation of the relevant liability
to the policyholder which resulls in certain policyholder asset movements impacting the profit attributable to shareholder of AMP Life
Limited.

Certain conlrolled entities of the life stalutory funds are operating companies which carry out business operations unrelated to the core
wealth management operations of the AMP Life group.

(c) Accounting for wealth management and insurance business

The accounting trealment of certain transactions in this Financial Repert varies depending on the nature of the contract underlying the
transactions. The two major contract classifications relevant to the wealth-management and insurance business of AMP Life SF1 are
investment contracts and life insurance contracts.

For the purpose of this Financial Report, holders of investment contracts or life insurance contracts are collectively and individually
referred to as policyholders.

Investment contracts

The majority of the business of AMP Life SF1 relates to weallh-management products such as savings, invesiment-linked and
retirement income policies. The nature of this business is that AMP Life SFireceives depaosits from policyholders and those funds are
invested on behalf of the policyholders. With the exception of fixed retirement income policies, the resulting liability to policyholders is
linked to the performance and value of the assels that back those liabilities. For fixed retirement income policies, the resulting liability is
linked to the fair value of the fixed retirement income payments and associated management services.

Under Ausltralian accounting standards such conlracts are defined as /life investment contracts and described as investment contracts
throughout this Financial Report.

Life insurance conlracts

AMP Life SF1 also issues cantracts that transfer significant insurance risk from the policyholder, covering death, disability or longevity of
the insured. In addilion, there are some policies known as discretionary participating conltracts, that are similar to investment contracts,
but the timing of the vesting of the profit attributable to the policyholders is at the discretion of AMP Life SF1.

Under Australian accounting standards, such contracts are defined as life insurance conlracts.

Assets measurement basis
Assets backing investment cantract and life insurance contract liabilities are measured on a basis that is consistent with the

measurement of the liabilities, to the extent permilted under Australian Accounting Standards.

Investment contract liabilities are measured at fair value as described in Note 1(r) and life insurance contract liabilities are measured as
described in Note 1(q). Assets backing such liabilities are measured at fair value, to the extent permitted under Australian Accounting
Standards. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive income, to the extent permitted under Australian Accounting Standards. The accounting policies for individual asset
classes, and any restrictions on application of fair value, are described later in Note 1.

All assets that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are included within AMP Life SF1 and, as such, are
separately identifiable.

To ensure consistency across AMP Life SF1 and, except where specifically stated otherwise, all financial assets and all non-financial
assets, including those not backing investment or insurance contract liabilities, are also recognised at fair value through profit or loss to
the extent permilted under Australian Accounting Standards. Similarly, adjustmenits to the value of such assets are recognised in the
Statement of comprehensive income when the corresponding accounling standards allow such treatment. The accounting policy for the
parent entity's investments in conltrolled entities is set out in Note 1(f).

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand that is available on demand and deposits that are held at call with financial
institutions. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value, being the principal amount. For the purpose of the Statement of cash
flows, cash also includes other highly liquid investments not subject to significant risk of change in value, with short periods to maturity,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within Borrowings in the Statement of financial position.

(e) Receivables

Receivables that back invesiment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are financial assets and are measured at fair value.
Reinsurance and other recoveries are discounted to present value. Receivables that do not back investment contract and life insurance
contract liabilities are measured at nominal amounts due, less any allowance for doubtful debts. An allowance for doubtful debts is
recognised when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred. Given the short-term nature of

most receivables, the recoverable amount approximates fair value.
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(CONTINUED)

(f) Investments in financial assets
Investments in financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Investments in financial assets designated on inilial recognilion as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are

initially recognised at fair value determined as the purchase cost of the asset, exclusive of any transaction costs. Any realised and

unrealised gains or losses arising from subsequent measurement at fair value are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair value of investments measured at fair value through profil or loss is determined as follows:

o the fair value of equily securities in an active market and listed managed investment schemes reflects the quoted bid price at the
reporting date. In the case of equily securities and listed managed investment schemes where there is no active market, a fair value
is established by using valuation techniques including the use of recent arm's length transactions, references to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

o the fair value of listed debt securities refiecis the bid price at the reporting date. Listed debt securities that are not frequently traded
are valued by discounting estimated recoverable amounts. The fair value of unlisted debt securilies is estimated using interest rate
yields

o obtainable on comparable listed investments. The fair value of loans is determined by discounting the estimated recoverable
amount using prevailing interest rates.

o the fair value of investments in unlisted managed investment schemes is determined on the basis of published redemption prices of
those managed investment schemes at the reporting date.

o the fair value of derivative financial assets is determined in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1(0).

There is no reduction for realisation costs in determining the fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Investments in controlled entilies

Investments by AMP Life SF1 in controlled entilies (excluding unit trusts) are measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. Investments in controlled entities by AMP Life SF1 that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are treated
as financial assets and are valued in the same manner as equily securities described above.

(g) Associates

Associated entities are defined as those entilies over which AMP Life SF1 has significant influence but there is no capacity to control.
Investments in associates, other than those backing investment contracts and life insurance contracts, are initially measured at cost
plus any excess of the fair value of AMP Life SF1's share of identifiable assets and liabilities above cost at acquisition date
subsequently adjusted for AMP Life SF1's share of post-acquisition profit or loss and movements in reserves net of any impairment. Any
dividend or distribution received from associates is accounted for as a reduction in carrying value of the associate.

Investments in associates held to back life insurance or life investment conlracts liabilities are exempt from the requirement to apply
equity accounting and have been designated on inilial recognition as financial assels measured at fair value through profit or loss.
These are valued In the same manner as equity securities described in Note 1(f).

(h) Investment property
Investment property is held to earn revenue from rentals and/or for the purposes of capital appreciation. Investment property includes all
directly held freehold and leasehold properties. There are no property interests held under operating leases accounted for as investment

property.

Investment property is initially recognised at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is
measured at fair value.

Changes in value of investment property are taken directly to the Statement of comprehensive income and may comprise changes in
the fair value from revaluation of investment property, and fair value adjustments in relation to:

e the straight-lining of fixed rental income;

e tenant incentives including rent free periods, landlord and tenant owned fit out contributions; and

e  capitalised leasing fees.

The process adopted to determine fair values for investment properlies is set out in Note 9.

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. It is subsequently measured at cost less any subsequent

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The wrilten down amount approximates fair value.
Each item of plant and equipment is depreciated on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset of 3-10 years.
Leasehold improvements

Leasehold improvements are recognised as an asset only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the |
asset will flow to AMP Life SFiand the cost of the item can be reliably measured.
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(i) Impairment of assets

Assets measured at fair value, where changes in value are reflected in the Statement of comprehensive income, are not subject to
impairment testing. As a result, all financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are not subject to impairment testing.
Other assels such as properly, plant and equipment and intangible assets including goodwill are subject to impairment testing.

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, such as goodwill, are not subject to amoriisation but are tested at least annually for
impairment. Other Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Any impairment loss, being the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, is recognised in the
Statement of comprehensive income. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use.

(k) Taxes

Tax consolidation

AMP Limited and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities which are Australian domiciled companies (including AMP Life)
comprise a tax-consolidated group of which AMP Limited is the head entity. The implementation date for the tax-consolidated group was

30 June 2003.

Under tax consolidation, AMP Limited, as head enlity, assumes the following balances from entities within the tax-consolidated group:

o current tax balances arising from external lransactions recognised by entities in the tax-consolidated group, occurring after the
implementation date, and

o deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits recognised by entities in the tax-consolidated group.

A tax funding agreement has been entered into by the head enlity and the controlled entities in the tax-consolidated group. Entities in
the tax-consolidated group continue to be respensible, by the operation of the tax funding agreement, for funding tax payments required
to be made by the head entity arising from underlying transactions of the controlled entities. Controlled entities make (receive)
contributions to (from) the head entity for the balances assumed by the head entity, as described above. The contributions are
calculated in accordance with the tax funding agreement. The contributions are payable as set out in the agreement and reflect the
timing of AMP Limited's obligations to make payments to the Australian Taxation Office.

Assets and liabilities which arise as a result of balances transferred from entities within the tax-consolidated group to the head entity are
recognised as related-party balances receivable and payable in the Statement of financial position of AMP Life, The recoverability of
balances arising from the tax funding arrangements is based on the ability of the tax-consolidated group to ulilise the amounts
recognised by the head entity.

Income tax expense
Income tax expense/credit is the tax payable on taxable income for the current period based on the income tax rate for each jurisdiction

and adjusted for changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities altributable to:
e temporary differences between the tax bases of assels and liabilities and their Statement of financial position carrying amounts

e unused tax losses, and
+ the impact of changes in the amounts of deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from changes in tax rates or in the manner in
which these balances are expected to be realised.

Adjustments to income tax expense/credit are also made for any differences between the amounts paid or expected to be paid in
relation to prior periods and the amounts provided for these periods at the start of the current period.

Any tax impact on income and expense items that are recognised directly in equily is also recognised directly in equity.

Income tax for investment contracts and life insurance conlracts business
The income tax expense recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income arising in AMP Life SF1 reflects tax imposed on the

shareholder as well as palicyholders.

Investment contracts liabilities and life insurance contracts liabililies are established in Australia net, and in New Zealand gross, of the
policyholders’ share of any current tax payable and deferred tax balances of AMP Life.

Arrangements made with some superannuation funds result in AMP Life SF1 making payments to the relevant tax authorities in relation
to contributions tax arising in those funds. The amounts paid are recegnised as a decrease in investment contract liabilities and not
included in income tax expense.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates which are expected to apply when the assels
are recovered or liabilities are setlled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted for each jurisdiction.

The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the deferred
tax asset or liability. An exception is made for ceriain temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability.

No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to these temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a
business combination, that at the time of the transaclion did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax, including amounts in respect of investment contracts and life insurance contracts, is not discounted to present value.

Goods and services tax
AMP Life SF1 operates across a number of tax jurisdictions and offers products and services that may be subject to various forms of

goods and services tax (GST) imposed by local tax authorities.

Allincome, expenses and assets are recognised net of any GST paid, except where they relate to products and services which are input
taxed for GST purposes or where the GST incurred is not recoverable from the relevant tax authorities. In such circumstances, the GST
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the assets or as part of the relevant expense.

Receivables and payables are recorded with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable to the
tax authorities is included as either a receivable or payable in the Statement of financial position.

Cash flows are reported on a gross basis reflecting any GST paid or collected. The GST component of cash flows arising from investing
or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, local tax authorities are classified as Operating cash flows.

() Payables

Payables that back investment contract and life insurance conlract liabilities are financial liabililies and are measured at fair value. Other
payables are measured at the nominal amount payable. Given the short-term nature of most payables, the nominal amount payable
approximates fair value,

(m) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when:

¢ AMP Life SF1 has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,

¢ itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and
e areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the cbligation.

Where AMP Life SFiexpects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance conltract, the reimbursement
is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is
presented in the Stalement of comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the reporing date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised in finance

cosls.

(n) Borrowings
All borrowings are financial liabilities and are initially recognised at fair value. Borrowings are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Directly altributable transaction costs are expensed and movements in fair value are recognised in the Statement

of comprehensive income.

(o) Derivative financial assets and derlvative financial liabilities

AMP Life SF1is exposed to changes in interest and foreign exchange rates. To mitigate the risks arising from these exposures, AMP
Life SFiuses derivative financial instruments such as cross-currency and interest-rate swaps, forward rate agreements, futures, options
and foreign currency contracts. Derivative financial instruments are also used to gain exposure to various markets for asset and liability

management purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value exclusive of any transactions costs on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. All derivatives are recognised as assels
when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial
instruments are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivalives) is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. The quoted market price for financial assets is the current bid price; the quoted market price for financial liabilities is

the current offer price.

The fair value of financial instruments not iraded in an active market (for example over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, option pricing models, discounted cash-flow methods
and comparison to quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

(p) Recognition and de-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the date AMP Life SFibecomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assels expire, or are
transferred. A transfer occurs when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are passed to an unrelated
third party. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the abligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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(q) Life insurance contract liabilities
The financial reporting methodology used to determine the life insurance contract liabilities is referred to as Margin on Services (MoS).

Under MoS, the excess of premium received over claims and expenses (the margin) is recognised over the life of the contract in a
manner that refiects the pattern of risk accepted from the policyholder (the service). The planned release of this margin is included in the
movement in life insurance contract liabilities recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income.

Life insurance contract liabilities are usually determined using a projection method, whereby estimates of policy cash flows (premiums,
benefils, expenses and profit margins to be released in future periods) are projected using best-estimate assumptions about the fulure.
The liability is calculated as the net present value of these projected cash flows. When the benefits under a life insurance contract are
linked to the assets backing it, the discount rate applied is based on the expected future eamings rate of those assets. Where the
benefits are not linked to the performance of the backing assets, a risk-free discount rate is used. The risk-free discount rate is based an
the zero coupon government bond rate and a liquidity margin, which depends on the nature, structure and terms of the cenlract
liabilities.

An accumulalion method may be used if it produces results that are not materially different from these produced by a projection method.
A modified accumulation method is used for some discretionary participating business, where the life insurance liability is the
accumulation of amounts invested by policyholders, less fees specified in the policy, plus investment earnings and vested benefits,
adjusted to allow for the fact that crediting rates are determined by reference to investment income over a period of greater than one
year. The accumulation method may be adjusted to the extent that acquisition expenses are to be recovered from future margins
between fees and expenses.

Allocation of operating profit and unvested policyholder benefits
The operating profil arising from discretionary participaling contracts is allocated between the shareholder and participating
policyholders by applying the MoS principles in accordance with the Life Insurance Act 1995 (the 'Life Act’).

Once profit is allocated to participating policyholders it can only be distributed 1o these policyhelders. Any distribution of this profit to the
shareholder is only allowed for overseas business with specific approval of the regulators.

Profit allocated to participating policyholders is recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income as an increase in policy liabilities.
Both the element of this profit that has not yet been allocated to specific policyholders (i.e. unvested) and that which has been allocated
to specific policyholders by way of bonus distributions (i.e. vested) are included within life insurance contract liabilities.

Bonus distributions to parlicipating policyholders are merely a change in the nature of the liability from unvested to vested and, as such,
do not alter the amount of profit allributable to the shareholder.

The principles of allocation of the profit arising from discreficnary participating business are as follows:

(i) Investment income (net of tax and investment expenses) on retained earnings in respect of discretionary participating
business is allocated between policyholders and the shareholder in proportion to the balances of policyholders’ and the
shareholder's retained earnings. This proportion is 80 per cent policyholders and 20 per cent shareholder.

(i) Other MoS praofits arising from discretionary participating business are allocated 80 per cent to policyholders and 20 per cent
to the shareholder, with the following exceptions:

o the profit arising from New Zealand corporate superannuation business is apportioned such that the shareholder is
allocated 15 per cent of the profit allocated to policyholders,

e the profit arising in respect of Preservation Superannuation Account business is allocated 92.5 per cent to policyholders
and 7.5 per cent to the shareholder, and

e  additional tax on taxable income to the shareholder in respect of Australian superannuation business is allocated to the
shareholder only.

(i) All profits arising from non-participating business, including net investment returns on shareholder capital and retained
earnings in the statutory funds (excluding retained earnings dealt with in (i) above) are allocated to the shareholder.

Allocation of expenses within the statutory funds

All operating expenses relating to the life insurance contract and investment contract activities are apportioned between acquisition,
maintenance and investment management expenses. Expenses which are directly attributable to an individual life insurance contract or
investment contract or product are allocated directly 1o a particular expense category, fund, class of business and product line as

appropriate. .

Where expenses are not direclly aitributable, they are appropriately apportioned, according to detailed expense analysis, with due
regard for the objeclive in incurring that expense and the outcome achieved. The apportionment basis has been made in accordance
with Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA) Prudential Standards and on an equitable basis to the different classes of
business in accordance with the Life Act.

The costs apportioned to life insurance contracts are included in the determination of margin described above.
Investment management expenses of the statutory funds are classified as operaling expenses. See Note 1(y).

(r) Investment contract liabilities

An investment contract consists of a financial instrument and an investment management services element, both of which are measured
at fair value. With the exception of fixed retirement-income policies, the resulling liability to policyholders is closely linked to the
performance and value of the assets (after tax) that back those liabilities. The fair value of such liabilities is therefore the same as the
fair value of those assets (after tax charged to the policyholders) except where accounting standards prevent those assets from being

measured at fair value.
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AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No.1 Financial Report

Notes to the financial staiements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For fixed relirement-income policies, the financial instrument element of the liabllity is the fair value of the fixed retirement-income
payments, being their net present value using a fair value discount rate. The fair value of the associated management services element
is the net present value, using a fair value discount rate, of all expenses associated with the provision of services and any profit margins
thereon.

(s) Contributed equity
Issued capital

Issued capital in respect of ordinary shares is recognised as the fair value of consideration received by the parent entity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of certain new shares are recognised in equily as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

.

(t) Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency

The Financial Report is presented in Australian dollars (the presentation currency). Items included in the financial stalements are
measured using the currency of the primary ecanomic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The functional
currency of the company is Australian dollars.

Transactions and balances

Income and expense items denominated in a currency other than the funclional currency are translated at the spot exchange rate at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at
the reporting date, with exchange gains and losses recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using lhe exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined.

Translation of foreign operation
Where the functional currency of a controlled entity is not the presentational currency, the transactions and balances of that operation

are translated as follows:

o Income and expenses are translated al average exchange rates, unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transactlion daltes. In this case, income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
fransactions,

o Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date, and

e Allresulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity in the foreign currency translation reserve.

When a foreign operation is sold, the cumulative amount in the foreign currency translation reserve relationg to that operation is
recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on sale. If a portion of the operation is sold, the
proportionate share of the cumulative amount is recognised.

(u) Insurance premium and related revenue

Life insurance contracts

Life insurance contract premiums are separated into their revenue and deposit components. Premium amounts earned by bearing
insurance risks are recognised as revenue. Other premium amounts received, which are in the nature of deposits, are recognised as an
increase in life insurance contract liabilities.

Premiums with no due date or fixed amount are recognised on a cash-received basis. Premiums with a regular due date are recognised
on an accruals basis. Unpaid premiums are only recognised during the days of grace or where secured by the surrender value of the life
insurance contract and are reported as outstanding premiums and classified as receivables in the Statement of financial position.

Investment contracls
There is no premium revenue in respect of investment contracts. Amounts received from policyholders in respect of investment

contracts comprise:
« origination fees and ongoing investment management fees. See Note 1(v).

o amounts credited directly to invesiment contract liabilities. See Note 1(r).

(v) Fee and other revenue
Fees are charged to customers in connection wilh investment contracts and other financial services contracts. Revenue is recognised
as services are provided. In some cases services are provided al the inception of the contract, while other services are performed over

the life of the contract.

Investment contracts consist of a financial Instrument and an investment-management services element. The payment by the
policyholder includes the amount to fund the financial instrument and a fee for the origination of the contract. In many cases, that
origination fee Is based on amounts paid to financial planners for providing Initial advice. The financial instrument is classified as an
investment contract and is measured at fair value. See Note 1(r).

The revenue that can be atiributed to the origination service is recognised at inception. Any amount paid to financial planners is also
recognised as an expense at that time. See Note 1(y).

Fees for ongoing investment management services and other services provided are charged on a regular basis, usually daily, and are
recognised as the service is provided.

Fees charged for performing a significant act in relation to funds managed by AMP Life SF1are recognised as revenue when that act
has been completed.

12
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Notes to the financial statementis

for the year ended 31 December 2012

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Investment gains or losses
Dividend and interest income are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income on an accruals basis when AMP Life SF1

obtains control of the right to receive the revenue,

Net realised and unrealised gains and losses represent the change in value belween the previously reported value and the amount
received on sale of the asset as well as changes in the fair value of financial assets and investment property recognised in the period.

Rents raised are on terms in accordance with individual leases, however they are generally due on the first day of each month.

Certain tenant allowances that are classified as lease incentives such as rent-free periods, fit-ouls and upfront payments are capitalised
and amortised over the term of the lease. The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction to revenue from rent over the
lease term.

(%) Insurance claims and related expense

Life insurance contracts

Life insurance contract claims are separated into their expense and withdrawal components. The component that relates to the bearing
of risks is treated as an expense. Other claim amounts, which are in the nature of withdrawals, are recognised as a decrease in life
insurance contract liabilities.

Claims are recognised when the liability to the policyholder under the life insurance contract has been established or upon notification of
the insured event, depending on the type of claim.

Investment contracts
There Is no claims expense in respect of investment contracts. Amounts paid to policyholders in respect of investment contracts are

withdrawals and are recognised as a decrease in investment contract liabilities. See Note 1(r).

(y) Operating expenses
All operating expenses, other than those allocated to life insurance contracts, see Note 1(q), are expensed as incurred.

The majority of investment contracts issued result in payments to external service and advice providers. Where the amount paid
equates to a fee charged to policyholders for the provision of advice, the amount is expensed either at inception or over the period of the
contract consistent with the basis for recognising the fee revenue an the respective contracts. See Note 1(v).

Operating lease payment

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term or other systematic basis representative of the patterns of the benefits obtained. Operating incentives are recognised as a
liability when received and subsequently reduced by allocating lease payments between rental expense and reduction of the liability.

(z) Finance costs

Finance costs include:

(i) Borrowing costs:
° interest on bank overdrafts and borrowings
°  amorlisation of discounts or premiums related to borrowings

(ii) Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses when incurred.



AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund No.1 Financial Report

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The making of judgements, estimates and assumptions is a necessary part of the financial reporling process and these judgements,
estimates and assumptions can have a significant effect on the reported amounts in the financial statements. Estimates and
assumplions are determined based on information available to management at the time of preparing the Financial Report and actual
results may differ from these eslimales and assumptions. Had different estimates and assumptions been adopted, this may have had a
significant impact on the financial statements. Significant accounling judgements, estimates and assumptions are re-evaluated at each
reporting period in the light of historical experience and changes to reasonable expectations of future events. Significant accounting
judgements, estimates and assumptions include but are not limited to:

(a) Consolidation

Entities are included within the consolidated financial statements of AMP Life SF1 where AMP Life SF1 has control of these entities,
being the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from ils activities. Judgement is
applied by management in assessing whether control exists, and in particular whether the rights held by AMP Life SF1 amount to being
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of those entilies and whether AMP Life SF1 is able to use such power to obtain
benefits from the activities of the entities.

(b) Fair value of investments in financial assets

AMP Life SF1 measures investments in financial assels at fair value through profit or loss. Where available, quoted market prices for the
same or similar instruments are used to determine fair value. Where there is no market price available for an instrument, a valuation
technique is used. Management applies judgement in selecting valuation techniques and selling valuation assumptions and inputs.
Further detail on the determination of fair value of financial instruments is set out in Note 16.

(c) Fair values of investment properties

AMP Life SF1 measures investment properties at fair value through profit or loss. The valuation of investment properties requires
judgement to be applied in selecting appropriate valuation techniques and sefting valuation assumptions. AMP Life SF1 engages
independent registered valuers to value each of its investment properties on a rolling annual basis. Further detail on the determination of

fair values of investment properties is set out in Note 9.

(d) Tax

AMP Life SF1 is subject to taxes in Australia and other jurisdictions where it has operations. The application of tax law to the specific
circumstances and transactions of AMP Life SF1 requires the exercise of judgement by management. The tax treatments adopted by
management in preparing the financial statements may be impacted by changes in legislation and interpretations or be subject to

challenge by tax authorities.

Judgement is also applied by management in determining the extent to which the recovery of deferred tax assets is probable for the
purpose of meeting the criteria for recognition as deferred tax assets.

(e) Provisions

A provision is recognised for items where AMP Life SF1 has a present obligation arising from a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required to setlle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
provision is measured as the best eslimale of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation. Management apply judgement in
assessing whether a particular item satisfies the above criteria and in determining the best estimate. Note 12 sets out further information
on provisions and Note 21 provides information of contingent liabilities.

(f) Insurance contract liabilities

The measurement of insurance contract liabilities is determined using the Margin on Services (MoS) methadology. The determination of
the liability amounts involves judgement in selecting the valuation methods and profit carriers for each type of business and setting
valuation assumptions. The determination is subjective and relatively small changes in assumplions may have a significant impact on
the reported profit. The Board of AMP Life SF1 is responsible for these judgements and assumptions, after taking advice from the
Appointed Actuary. Further detail on the determination of insurance contract liabilities is set out in Note 14.

(g) Investment contract liabilities

Investment contract liabilities are measured at fair value: For the majority of contracts, the fair value is determined based on published
unit prices and the fair value of backing assets, and does not generally require the exercise of judgement. For fixed income products,
fair value is determined using valuation models. Judgement is applied in selecting the valuation model and setting the valuation
assumptions. Further details on investment contract liabilities are set out in Note 15.
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Notes to the financial statemenis
for the year ended 31 December 2012

3. REVENUE AND INVESTMENT INCOME

Consolidated Parent

2012 2011 2012 2011

$m $m $m Sm
(a) Fee and other revenue
Investment management fees
- related entities 10 6 10 7
- other entities 36 36 37 37
Other revenue!” 14 12 4 -
Total fee and other revenue 60 54 51 44
(b) Investment gains and (losses)
Interest @
- related entities 156 137 157 138
- other entities 562 684 519 585
Dividends and distributions
- related enlities 231 252 248 315
- associated enlities 69 70 62 60
- other entities 323 443 193 274
Rental income
- other entities 51 114 12 11
Net realised and unrealised gains and losses 658 (20) 859 210
Other investment income 20 9 20 5
Total investment gains and (losses) 2,070 1,689 2,070 1,598
Foolnole:

(1) Consolidated other revenue includes trading revenue of investment entilies controlled bythe AM P Life SF1 which carry oul business operations unrelated to

the core wealth management operalions of the AMP Life group.

(2) Interest includes interest income from financial assels measured at fair value through profit or loss, designated as such uponinitial recognilion.
(3) Netrealised and unrealised gains and losses include net gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or

loss uponinitial recognition.
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Notes to the financial statemenis
for the year ended 31 December 2012

4. EXPENSES

Consolidated Parent

2012 2011 2012 2011

$m $m $m $m
(a) Operating expenses
Commission expense 152 154 152 154
Investment management expenses
- related entities 54 7 50 57
- other entities 10 11 4 5
Fee and commission expenses!" 216 236 206 216
Depreciation 9 9 9 9
Direct property expenses @ 15 31 4 4
Service fee expense - related parties 369 361 369 361
Other expenses 44 48 41 38
Other operating expenses @ 437 449 423 412
Total operating expenses 653 685 629 628
(b) Finance costs
Interest expense on borrowings 28 74 27 54
Other finance costs 6 10 5 11
Total finance costs 34 84 32 65

Foolnole:

(1) Fee and commission expenses include fee expenses from trust and other fiduciary activities that resull in the holding or investing of assets an behalf of
individuals, trusts, relirement plans, and other inslitutions.

(2) Direc! properly expenses relate lo investment properties which generate rental income.

(3) Other expenses include trading expenses of investment enlities controlled by AMP Lile SF1 which carry out business eperations unrelated lo the core weallh
managemenlt aperations of the AMP Lite group.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

5. INCOME TAX

Consolidated Parent

2012 2011 2012 2011

$m $m $m $m
(a) Analysis of income tax expense
Current tax expense (210) (279) (210) (279)
Decrease in deferred tax assets (2) (8) (2) (8)
Increase in deferred tax liabilities (114) (39) (114) (39)
Over (under) provided in previous years including
amounts attributable to policyholders 6 < 6 .
Effect of change in overseas tax rate 5 (1) - (1)
Income tax expense (320) (327) (320) (327)

(b) Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit

The following table provides a reconciliation of differences between prima facie tax calculated as 30 per cent of the profit before income
tax for the year and the actual income tax expense recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year. The income tax
expense amount reflects the impact of both income tax attributable to the shareholder as well as income tax altributable to
policyholders. In respect of income tax expense altributable to the shareholder, the tax rate which applies is 30 per cent (2011: 30 per
cent) in Australia and 28 per cent (2011: 28 per cent) in New Zealand.

Income tax attributable to policyholders is based on investment income allocated to policyholders less expenses deductible against that
investment income. The impact of the tax is charged against policyholder liabilities. A number of different tax rate regimes apply to
policyholders. In Australia, certain classes of policyholder life insurance income and superannuation earnings are taxed at 15 per cent,
and certain classes of income on some annuily business are tax-exempt. The rate applicable to New Zealand life insurance business

during the year was 28 per cent (2011: 28 per cent).

Consolidated Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
$m $m $m $m
Profit before income 650 764 650 764
to policyholders liabilities in determining profit before
income tax (182) (140) (182) (140)
Profit before income tax excluding
policyholder tax 468 624 468 624
Prima facie tax at the rate of 30 per cent (140) (187) (140) (187)
Tax effect of differences betw een recognition of Income
statement items for accounting and those
deductible/assessable in calculating taxable income:
Shareholder impact of par-business tax treatment 1 21 1 21
Non-deductible / assessable items 3 (3) 3 (3)
Non-Taxable income 5 8 5 -
Under / (over) provision in previous years after - 1 1
excluding amount attributable to policyholders
Tax offsets and credits 4 4 4 4
Difference in overseas tax rate 1 3 1 2
Other (12) (34) (12) (25)
Income tax expense attributable to shareholders (138) (187) (138) (187)
Income tax expense attributable to policyholders (182) (140) (182) (140)
Tax expense per Statement of comprehensive
income (320) (327) (320) (327)
(c) Analysis of deferred tax asset
- Losses available for offset against future taxable
income 13 15 13 15
- Other 49 &2 49 52
Total deferred tax assets 62 67 62 67
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

5. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Consolidated Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
$m $m $m $m
(d) Analysis of deferred tax liability
- Unrealised investment gains 341 258 341 258
- Other 170 128 170 128
Total deferred tax liabilities 511 386 511 386
6. RECEIVABLES
Consolidated Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
$m $m $m $m
Investment income receivable 51 50 54 54
Investment sales and margin accounts receivable 227 174 223 170
Life insurance contract premiums receivable 270 277 270 277
Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable 10 11 10 11
Reinsurers' share of life insurance contract liabilities 119 98 119 98
Other receivables
- related entities 342 202 35 206
- other entities 21 70 15 58
Total receivablest 1,040 882 726 874
Footnote:

(1) $81m (2011:$86m) of lolal receivables is expected to be recovered more than 2 months from reporling date,

7. OTHER ASSETS

Consolidated Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
$m $m $m $m
Inventories - 10 - %
Prepayments 3 2 1 1
Other assets - 4 - -
Total other assets(" 3 16 1 1
Footnote:

() $nil of other assets are expected to be recovered more than £ menths from the reporting date (2011 $4m).
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8. INVESTMENT IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Consolidated Parent

2012 2011 2012 2011

$m $m $m $m
(a) Investiments in financial assets measured at fair
value through profit and loss
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes 4,818 4,132 3,948 3,351
Debt securities (1 9,301 11,267 9,244 9,206
Investments in unlisted managed investment schemes 6,472 4,957 6,253 6,269
Derivative financial assets 398 960 359 494
Other financial assets 9 4 9 4
Total investments in financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss 20,998 21,320 19,813 19,324
(b) Investiments in controlled entities
- Measured at fair value - - 1,435 1,241
Total investments in controlled entities - - 1,435 1,241
Total investments in financial assels 20,998 21,320 21,248 20,565

Footnole:
(1) Included within debl securilies are assels held to back Lhe liability for collateral deposits held in respect ol debl securily repurchase arrangements entered into by
the life statulory fund.

Consolidated Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
$m $m $m $m
(c) Other financial liabilities
Derivative financial liabililies 158 557 114 88
Collateral deposits held (! 549 637 549 637
Total other financial liabilities 707 1,194 663 725

Footnote:
(1) Collateral deposits held represents the obligation to repay collateral held in respect of debt security repurchase arrangements entered into by the statutory fund.
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9. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Consolidated Parent

2012 2011 2012 2011

$m $m $m $m
Investment property!"
Directly held 579 1,357 132 130
Total investment property 579 1,357 132 130
Movements in investment property
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,357 1,343 130 121
Additions
- subsequent expenditure recognised in carrying amount 10 16 2 2
Disposal through business combinations (793) = 2 -
Net gains / (losses) from fair value adjustments 5 (2) E Fi
Balance at the end of the year 579 1,357 132 130
Foolnote:

(1) Investment properly Is measured at fair value with changes in value recognised through profit or loss.

Valuation of investment property
Investment property is measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value represents the amount at which the assets could be
exchanged between a knowledgeable willing buyer and a knowledgeable willing seller in an arm's length transaction.

Fair values of AMP Life SF1's properties are determined by independent registered valuers who have appropriate registered
professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued.

The fair value appraisals are obtained on a rolling annual basis. The valuation schedule may be altered when a properly is either
undergoing or being appraised for redevelopment, refurbishment or sale, or is experiencing other changes in assets or tenant profiles
which may significantly impact value, or when there have been significant changes in the property market and broader economy such as
updates to comparable property sales which may have an impact on the individual asset values. The carrying value of each investment
property is assessed at reporting dale to ensure there has been no material change to the fair value since the valuation date.

The valuers apply ‘comparable sales analysis' and the ‘capitalised income approach' by reference to annual net market income,
comparable capitalisation rates and other property-specific adjustments as well as discounted cash flow analysis where the expected
net cash flows are discounted to their present value using a market determined risk adjusted discount rate. The fair value of investment
property does not reflect fulure capital expenditure that will improve or enhance the property.

2012 2011
Primary assumplions used in valuing invesiment properly
Capltalisation rates 6.75% - 10.25% 6.25% - 10.25%
Market determined, risk adjusted discount rate 8.75% - 10.25% 8.75% - 10.00%
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold
2012 - Consolidated Improvements Plant & Equipment Total
$m $m $m
Property, plant and equipment
Gross carrying amount 70 86 156
Less: accunulated depreciation and impairment '
losses (60) (70) (130)
Property, plant and equipment at written down value 10 16 26
Movements in property, plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 9 16 25
Additions - through direct acquisitions 5 5 10
Depreciation expense for the year (4) (5) (9)
Balance at the end of the year 10 16 26
Leasehold
2011 - Consolidated Improvements Plant & Equipment Total
$m $m $m
Properly, plant and equipment
Gross carrying amount 65 81 146
Less: accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (56) (65) (121)
Property, plant and equipment at w ritten dow n value 9 16 25
Movements in property, plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 9 18 27
Additions - through direct acquisitions 4 3 7
Depreciation expense for the year (4) (5) (9)
Balance at the end of the year 9 16 25
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Leasehold
2012 - Parent Improvements Plant & Equipment Total
$m $m $m
Property, plant and equipment
Gross carrying amount 70 74 144
Less: accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (60) (61) (121)
Property, plant and equipment at written down value 10 13 23
Movements in properly, plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 9 13 22
Additions - through direct acquisitions 5 5 10
Depreciation expense for the year (4) (5) (9)
Balance at the end of the year 10 13 23
Leasehold
2011 - Parent Improvements Plant & Equipment Total
$m $m $m
Property, plant and equipment
Gross carrying amount 65 69 134
Less: accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (56) (56) (112)
Property, plant and equipment at written down value 9 13 22
Movements in property, plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 9 15 24
Additions - through direct acquisitions 4 3 7
Depreciation expense for the year (4) (5) (9)
Balance at the end of the year 9 13 22
11. PAYABLES
Consolidated Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
$m $m $m $m
Life insurance policies in process of settlement 142 144 142 144
Accrued expenses 10 9 9 8
Interest payable 1 4 1 2
Other payables
- subsidiaries and related entities 466 221 250 268
- other entites 123 72 111 56
Total payablest! 742 450 513 478

Footnote:

(1) $0.5m (2011:$ ) of consolidated payables are expected to be sellled more than  months from the reporling date (parent 2012 & 2011 $nil).
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12. PROVISIONS

Consolidated Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
$m $m $m $m
Provisions
Systems and other project expenditure T 5 1 1
Total provisions 7 5 1 1
Consolidated Parent
$m $m $m $m
Movements in provision
Balance at the beginning of the year 5 3 1 1
Additional provisions recognised 3 3 1 1
Payments / other sacrifices of economic benefits (1) (1) (1) (1)
Balance at the end of the year® 7 5 1 1
Foolnote:
(1) $nil (201%: $nil) provisions are expected to be settled more than £ months of the reporling date.
13. BORROWINGS
Consolidated Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
$m $m $m $m
Borrowings
Bank loans - 3 -
Deposits |
- other entities i21 127 121 127
Other borrow ings
- related entities 169 169 263 261
- other entities 13 214 = =
Total borrowings @ 303 513 384 388

Footnote:

(1 $18Bm (2011:$213m) of borrowings are expected to be seltled more than £ months from the reporting date.
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14. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS

Consolidated and Parent

2012 2011
$m $m
(a) Analysis of life insurance contract premium and related revenue
Total lite insurance contract premiums received and receivable 2,141 1,795
Less: component recognised as a change in life insurance contract liabilities (981) (693)
Life insurance contract premium revenue M _ 1,160 1,102
Reinsurance recoveries 44 38
Total life insurance contract premium and related revenue 1,204 1,140
(b) Analysis of life insurance contract claims and related expenses
Total life insurance contract claims paid and payable (2,243) (2,245)
Less: component recognised as a change in life insurance contract liabililies 1,027 1,059
Life insurance contract claims expense (1,216) (1,186)
Qulw ards reinsurance expense (47) (42)
Total life insurance contract claims and related expenses (1,263) (1,228)
(c) Analysis of life insurance contract operating expenses
Life insurance contract acquisition expenses
- Commission (53) (58)
- Other (88) (88}
Life insurance contract maintenance expenses
- Commission (97) (95)
- Other (295) (292)
Investment management expenses (40) (41)
Foolnole:

(1) Lile insurance contract premium revenue consists entirely of direct insurance premiums, there is no inward reinsurance companent,
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14. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Consolidated and Parent

2012 2011
$m $m
(d) Life insurance contract liabilities '
Life insurance contract liabilities determined using projection method
Best estimate liability
- Value of future life insurance contract benefits 12,701 12,339
- Value of future expenses 3,184 3,132
- Value of future premiums (11,944) (11,479)
Value of future profits
- Life insurance contract holder bonuses 1,874 1,657
- Shareholder profit margins 2,590 2,554
Total life insurance contract liabilities determined using the projection method 8,405 8,203
Life insurance contract liabilities determined using accumulation method
Best estimate liability
- Value of future life insurance contract benefits 7,854 7,447
- Value of future life acquisition expenses (6) (7)
Total life insurance contract liabilities determined using accumulation method 7,848 7,440
Value of declared bonus 198 338
Unvested policyholder benefits liabilities (" 1,374 1,266
Total life insurance contract liabilities before reinsurance 17,825 17,247
Add: Reinsurers share of life insurance contract liabililies 119 98
Total life insurance contract liabilities 17,944 17,345 |

Footnote:

(1) For parlicipating business in AM P Life SF1, part of the assels in excess of the life insurance contract and other liabilities calculated under Mo S are
altributed to policyholders. Under the Life Act, this is referred to as policyholder retained profits. For the purpose of reporting under acco unting
standards, this amount is referred to as unvested policyholder benelils liabilities and is included within life insurance contract liabilities even though it

is yel to be vested in specific policyholder entitlements.
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14. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Parent

Note 2012 2011
$m $m

(e) Reconcliliation of changes in life insurance contract liabllities

Total lite insurance contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 17,345 17,762

Change in life insurance conlract liabilties recognised in the statement of conprehensive income 557 (82)
Premiums recognised as an increase in life insurance contract liabilities H{a) 981 693
Claims recognised as a decrease in life insurance contract liabilities H(d) (1,027) (1,059)
Change in reinsurers' share of life insurance contract liabilities 21 32
Fareign exchange adjustment 67 (1)
Total life insurance contract liabilities at the end of the year #(d) 17,944 17,345

(f) Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities
Life insurance contract liabilities, and hence the net profit from life insurance conlracts, are calculated by applying the principles of
Margin on Services (MoS). Refer to Note 1(q) for a description of MoS and the methods for calculating life insurance contract liabilities.

The methods and profit carriers used to calculate life insurance contract liabilities for particular policy types are follows:

Business type Method Profit carriers (for business valued
using projection method)

Conventional Projection Bonuses

Investment account Modified accumulation NIA

Retail risk (lump sum) Projection Expecled premiums

Retail risk (income benefits) Projection Expected claims

Group risk (lump sum) Accumulation N/A

Group risk (Income benefils) Accumulation N/A

Parlicipating allocated annuities Modified accumulation N/A

Life annuities Projection Annuity payments
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14. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Key assumptions used in the calculation of life insurance contract liabilities are as follows:

(i) Risk free discount rates

Except where benefils are contractually linked to the performance of the assets held, a risk-free discount rate based on current
observable, objective rates that relate to the nature, structure and term of the future obligations is used. The rates are determined as

shown in the following table.

Business Type

Basis'

Australia

31 December 2012

New Zealand

31 December 2011

Australia

New Zealand

Retail risk (other
than income
benefit open
claims)

Retail risk and
Group risk
(income benefit
open claims)

Life annuities Non-CPI

CPI

Zero coupon government
bond yield curve

Zero coupon government
bond yield curve (including
liquidity premium)

Zero coupon government
bond yield curve (including
liquidity premium)

Commonwealth Indexed
bond yield curve (including
liquidity premium)

2,6% - 4.4%

2.9%-4.7%

3.0% - 4.8%

0.8% - 1.8%

2.5% - 4.1%

2.8% - 4.4%

2.9% - 4.5%

1.0% - 2.0%

3.2% - 4.6%

3.8%-52%

3.8%-5.1%

1.56% - 2.2%

2.5%-41%

2.8% - 4.4%

2.8% - 4.8%

1.3%

Footnole:

(1) The discount rates vary by duralion in the range shown above.
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14. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

(if) Participating business discount rates

Where benefits are contractually linked to the performance of the assets held, as is the case for participating business, a discount rate
based on the expected market return on backing assets is used. The assumed earning rates for backing assets for participating
business are largely driven by long-term (e.g.10 year) government bend yields. The 10 year government bond yields used at the

relevant valuation dates are as shown below.

Assumed earning rates for each asset sector are determined by adding to the bond yield various risk premiums which reflect the relative
differences in expected fulure earning rates for different asset sectors. For products backed by mixed portfolio assets, the assumption
varies with the proportion of each asset sector backing the product. The risk premiums applicable at the valuation date are shown in the
table below.

Risk Premiums
10 Year | Local International Property Fixed Interest Cash
Government | equities equities

Bonds
Australia
31 December 2012 3.3% | 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.8% (0.5%)
31 December 2011 3.7% | 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.8% (0.5%)
New Zealand
31 December 2012 3.6% | 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.8% (0.5%)
31 December 2011 3.8% | 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.8% (0.5%)

The risk premium for local equities includes allowance for imputation credits. The risk premium for fixed interest reflects credit ralings of
the portfolio held.

The averages of the asset mixes assumed for the purpose of selling fulure investment assumptions for pariicipating business at the
valuation date are as shown in the table below. These asset mixes are not necessarily the same as the actual asset mix at the valuation

date as they reflect long term assumptions.

Equities Property Fixed interest Cash
Australia
31 December 2012 30% 1% 39% 20%
31 December 2011 30% 11% 39% 20%
New Zealand
31 December 2012 40% 17% 37% 6%
31 December 2011 40% 17% 37% 6%

The asset mix in the table above includes both conventional and investment account business.

Where an assumption used is net of tax, the tax on investment income is allowed for at rates appropriate to the class of business and
asset seclor, Including any allowance for imputation credits on equily income. For this purpose, the total return for each assel sector is
split between income and capital gains. The actual split has varied at each valuation date as the total return has varied.

(ifi} Future participating benefits

For participating business, the total value of future bonuses (and the associated shareholder profit margin) included in life insurance
contract liabilities is the amount supported by the value of the supporting assets, after allowing for the assumed future experience. The
pattern of bonuses and shareholder profit margin assumed to emerge in each future year depends on the assumed relationship
between reversionary bonuses (or interest credils) and terminal bonuses. This relationship is set to reflect the philosophy underlying
actual bonus declarations.

Actual bonus declarations are determined to reflect, over time, the investment returns of the particular fund and other factors in the
emerging experience and management of the business. These factors include:

e allowance for an appropriate degree of benefit smoothing

e reasonable expectations of policyholders

e egquily between generations of policyholders applied across different classes and types of business

e ongoing capital adequacy.

Given the many factors involved, the range of bonus structures and rates for participating business is extremely diverse.
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14. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)
(i) Future participating benefits (continued)

Typical supportable bonus rates on major product lines are as follows (31 December 2011 in parentheses).

Reversionary bonus Bonus on sum insured Bonus on existing bonuses
Australia 0.4% - 0.9% (0.2% - 0.8%) 0.7% - 0.9% (0.4% - 0.8%)
New Zealand 0.4% - 0.7% (0.3% - 0.5%) 0.4% - 0.7% (0.3% - 0.5%)

Terminal bonus
The terminal bonus scales are complex and vary by duration, product line, class of business and country.

Crediting rates (investment account)
Australia 2.2% - 4.6% (1.6% - 3.7%)
New Zealand 2.9% - 3.1% (2.4% - 2.9%)

(iv) Future maintenance and investment expenses

Unit maintenance costs are based on budgeted expenses in the year following the reporting date (including GST, as appropriate, and
excluding one-off expenses). For future years, these are increased for inflation as described in (v) below. These expenses include fees
charged to the life statutory funds by service companies in the AMP group. Unit costs vary by product line and class of business based

on an apportionment that is supported by expense analyses.

Fulture investment expenses are based on the fees currently charged by ihe asset managers.

v) Inflation and indexation
Benefits and premiums under many regular premium policies are automatically indexed by the published consumer price index (CPI).
Assumed future take-up of these indexation options is based on AMP Life SF1's own experience with the annual CP| rates derived from

the difference between long-term government bonds and indexed government bonds.

The assumptions for expense inflation have regard to these rates, recent expense performance, AMP Life's current plans and the terms
of the relevant service company agreement, as appropriate.

The assumed annual inflation and indexation rates at the valuation date are:

Australia New Zealand
31 December 2012 2.7% CPI, 3.0% Expense 2.5% CPI, 3.0% Expense
31 December 2011 2.6% CPI, 3.0% Expense 2.5% CPI, 3.0% Expense

(vi) Bases of taxation
The bases of taxation (including deductibility of expenses) are assumed to continue in accordance with legislation current at the

valuation date.

(vii) Voluntary discontinuance )
Assumptions for the incidence of withdrawals, paid ups and premium dormancy are primarily based on investigations of AMP Life's own
historical experience. These rates are based upon the assessed global rate for each of the individual products (or product groups) and
then, where appropriate, further adjusted for duration, premium structure, smoker status, age allained or short-term market and
business effects. Given the variety of influences affecting discontinuance for different product groups, the range of voluntary
discontinuance rates across AMP Life SF1 are extremely diverse.

The assumptions for fulure rates of discontinuance for the major classes of life insurance contracts are shown in the table below.

31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Business type Australia New Zealand Australia New Zealand
Conventional 2.1% - 3.0% 1.3% - 2.5% 21% - 3.0% 1.3% - 2.5%
Retail risk (lump sum) 11.9% - 22.0% 10.5% - 12.0% 9.0% - 20.0% 10.5% - 12.0%
Retail risk (income benefit) 8.0% - 20.0% 7.0% - 12.0% 10.0% - 11.0% 7.0% - 12.0%
Fiodiiel golle Super [FLS) vk 8.8% - 22.7% nfa 7.5% - 13.0% nia

business (ultimate rate)
Voluntary discontinuance assumptions have increased from those used at 31 December 2011 for retail risk.
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(viii)  Surrender values
The surrender bases assumed for calculating surrender values are those current at the reporting date. There have been no changes to
the bases during the year (or the prior year) that would materially affect the valuation results.

(ix) Mortality and morbidity
Standard mortalily lables, based on national or induslry wide data, are used. These are then adjusted by factors that take account of
AMP Life's own experience.

Rates of mortality assumed at 31 December 2012 for AMP Life SF1 are unchanged from those assumed at 31 December 2011 in
Australia and New Zealand, excepl for:

e  Auslralian and New Zealand conventional business — added an adjustment to allow for future mortality improvements

e Term (Retail risk lump sum) in Australia has reduced

Typical mortality assumptions, in aggregate, are as follows:

Conventional - % of 1A95-97"" Term - % of 1A95-97 FLS Risk - % of I1A95-97
Risk products Male Female Male Female Male Female
Australia 67.5% 67.5% 60% 60% 63% 63%
New Zealand 73% 73% 63% 63% 63% 63%

Footnote:
(1) Base |A95-97 table modified for fulure mortality improvements

Annuities Male - % of IML0OO* Female - % of IFL00*

Australia & New Zealand 95% 80%

For disability income business, the claim assumptions are currently based on IAD89-93, which is derived from Australian experience. It
is adjusted for AMP Life's experience, with the adjustment dependent on age, sex, waiting period, occupation, smoking status and claim
duration. Rates have changed for Australia from those at 31 December 2011, resulling in a higher incidence rate for future claims
overall and a lower rate for termination of claims.

Typical morbidity assumptions, in aggregate, are as follows:

Income protection Incidence rates - % of IAD89-93 Termination rates (ultimate) - % of 1AD89-93
Australia 52% - 113% 63% - 94%
New Zealand 60% 54% - 90%

For trauma cover, standard tables are not available and so assumptions are mosily based on Australian population statistics, with
adjustment for smoking status as well as recent claims experience. Trauma assumptions at 31 December 2012 have increased from
those used at 31 December 2011.

The actuarial tables used were as follows:

1A95-97 A mortality table developed by the Institute of Actuaries of Australia based on Australian insured lives
experience from 1995-1997.

IMLOO*/IFLOO* IMLOO and IFLOO are mortality tables developed by the Institute of Acluaries and the Faculty of
Actuaries based on United Kingdom annuitant lives experience from 1999-2002. The tables refer to

male and female lives respectively and incorperate factors that allow for mortality improvements
since the date of the investigation.

IMLOO* and IFLOO* are these published tables amended for some specific AMP experience.

|1AD89-93 A disability table developed by the Institute of Actuaries of Australia based on Australian disability
income experience from 1989-1993.
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(x) Impact of changes in assumptions
Under MoS, for life insurance contracts valuations using the projection method, changes in assumptions are recognised by adjusting the
value of future profit margins in life insurance contract liabilities. Future profit margins are released over future periods.

Changes in assumptions do not include market related changes in discount rates such as changes in benchmark market yields caused
by changes in investment markets and economic conditicns. These are reflected in both life insurance contract liabilities and asset
values at the reporting date.

The impact on future profit margins of changes in assumptions from 31 December 2011 to 31 December 2012 in respec! of life
insurance contracts (excluding new business contracts which are measured using assumptions at reporting date) is as shown in the
table below.

Change in future Change in life Change in
profit margins insurance Shareholder’

contract profit & equity
liabilities

Assumption change $m $m $m

Non-market related changes to discount rates (21) -

Mortality and morbidity (38) -

Discontinuance rates (211) -

Maintenance expenses 35 : -

Other assumptions'" 56 -

Footnote:

(1) Other assumptions changes include the impact of product and premium rale changes.

In most cases, the overall amount of life insurance contract liabilities and the current period profit are not affected by changes in
assumptions. However, where in the case of a particular related product group, the changes in assumptions at the end of a period
eliminate any future profit margins for the related product group, and results in negative fulure profit margins, this negative balance is
recognised as a loss in the current period. If the changes in assumptions in a period are favourable for a preduct group currently in loss
recognilion, then the previously recognised losses are reversed in the period.

(g) Insurance risk sensitivily analysis — life insurance contracts
For life insurance contracts that are accounted for under MoS, amounts of liabilities, income or expense recognised in the period are
unlikely to be sensitive to changes in variables even if those changes may have an impact on future profit margins.

This table shows information about the sensitivity of life insurance contract liabilities, current shareholder period profit after income tax,
and equity, to a number of possible changes in assumptions relating to insurance risk.

Change in life insurance contract Change in shareholder profit

liabilities after income tax, and equity
Gross of Net of Gross of Net of
reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance
Variable Change in variable $m $m $m $m
Mortality 10% Increase in mortality rates (1) (1) 1 1
Annuitant mortality 50% increase in the rate of 1 1 (1) (1)

Morbidity — lump sum
disablement

Morbidity — disability
income

Morbidity- disability
income
Discontinuance rates

Maintenance
expenses

mortality improvement

20% increase in lump sum
disablement rates

10% increase in incidence rates

10% decrease in recovery rates
10% increase in discontinuance
rates

10% increase in maintenance
expenses
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(h) Life insurance risk
The life insurance activities of AMP Life SF1 involve a number of non-financial risks concerned with the pricing, acceptance and
management of the mortality, morbidity and longevily risks accepted from policyholders, often in conjunction with the provision of

wealth-management praducts.

The design of praducts carrying insurance risk is managed to ensure that policy wording and promotional materials are clear,
unambiguous and do not leave AMP Life SF1 open to claims from causes that were not anticipated. Product prices are set through a
process of financial analysis, including review of previous AMP Life SF1 and industry experience and specific product design features.
The variability inherent in insurance risk, including concentration risk, is managed by having a large geographically diverse porifolio of
individual risks, underwriting and the use of reinsurance.

Underwriting is managed through a dedicated underwriting department, with formal underwriting limits and appropriate training and
development of underwriting staff. Individual policies carrying insurance risk are undenwritten on their merits and are generally not
issued without having been examined and underwritten individually. Individual policies which are transferred from a group scheme are
generally issued without underwriting. Group risk insurance policies meeting certain criteria are underwritten on the merits of the
employee group as a whole.

Claims are managed through a dedicated claims management team, with formal claims acceptance limits and appropriate training and
development of staff to ensure payment of all genuine claims. Claims experience is assessed regularly and appropriate actuarial
reserves are established fo reflect up-to-date experience and any anticipated future events. This includes reserves for claims incurred

but not yet reported.

AMP Life SF1 reinsures (cedes) to specialist reinsurance companies a propertion of its partfolio or certain types of insurance risk,
including catastrophe. This serves primarily to:

= reduce the net liability on large individual risks

e gobtain greater diversification of insurance risks

e provide protection against large losses.

The specialist reinsurance companies are regulated by APRA or industry regulators in other jurisdictions and have strong credit ratings
from A- to AA+
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14. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Terms and conditions of life insurance contracts
The nature of the terms of the life insurance contracts written by AMP Life SF1 is such that certain external variables can be identified
on which related cash flows for claim payments depend. The table below provides an overview of the key variables upen which the

timing and uncertainly of future cash flows of the various life insurance contracts issued by AMP Life SF1 depend.

Type of contract

Detail of contract workings

Nature of compensation for claims

Key variables
affecting future
cash flows

Non-participating life
insurance conlracts
with fixed and
guaranteed terms (term
life and disability and
yearly renewable)

These policies provide guaranteed benefits,
which are paid on the death or ill-health, that
are fixed and not at the discretion of AMP
Life. Premium rates for yearly renewable
business are not guaranteed and may be
changed at AMP Life's discretion for the
pertfolio as a whole.

Benefits, defined by the insurance contract, are not
direclly affecled by the performance of underlying
assets or the performance of any associated
investment conlracts as a whole.

Mortality, morbidity,
lapses, expenses
and market earning
rates on assels
backing the
liabilities.

Life annuily confracts

In exchange for an initial single premium,
these policies provide a guaranteed regular
income for the life of the insured.

The amount of the guaranteed regular income is set
at inception of the policy including any indexation.

Longevity, expenses
and market earning
rates on assels
backing the
liabilities.

Conventional life
insurance conlracts
with discrelionary

These policies combine life insurance and
savings. The policyholder pays a regular
premium and receives the specified sum

Benelits arising from the discretionary bonuses are
based on the performance of a specified pool of
coniracts and the assels supporting these

Market earning rates
on assets backing
the liabilities, lapses,
expenses, and

parlicipaling benelils assured plus any accruing bonuses on death | contracts.
(endowment and or malurity. The sum insured is specified at morlality.
whole of life) inception and guaranteed. Reversionary
bonuses are added annually, which once
added (vested) are guaranteed. A furlher
terminal bonus may be added on death or
malurity.
Investment account The gross value of premiumns received is Payment of the account balance is generally Fees, lapses,

conlracls with
discretionary
participaling features

invesled in the invesiment account with fees
and premiums for any associated insurance
cover being deducted from the account
balance. Interest is credited regularly.

guaranteed, although it may be subject to certain
penalties on early surrender or limited adjustment in
adverse markets. Operating profit arising from
these conlracls is allocated between the
policyholders and the shareholder in accordance
with the Life Act. The amount allocaled to
policyholders is held as an unvested policy liability
until it is distributed to specific policyholders as
interest credils.

expenses and
market earning rates
on the assets
backing the
liabilities, interest
rales.

(i) Liquidity risk and future net cash outflows
The table below shows the estimated timing of future net cash outflows resulting from insurance contract liabilities. This includes
estimated future surrenders, death/disability claims and maturity benefits, offset by expected future premiums or contributions and
reinsurance recoveries. All values are discounted to the reporting date using the assumed future investment earning rate for each

product.
Up to 1to 5
1 Year Years Over 5 Years Total
$m $m $m $m
2012 784 2,022 6,590 9,396
2011 747 2,024 6,184 8,955
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15. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES
Consolidated and Parent

2012 2011
$m $m
(a) Analysis of life insurance and investment contract profil
Cormponents of profit refated to Ife insurance and investment conlract liabilties:
- Manned margins of revenues over expenses released 258 259
- Profits arising fromdifference betw een actual and assumed experience 9 98
- Capitalised ({losses) reversals 1
Profit related to life insurance and Investment contract liabilities 267 358
Altributable to:
- Life insurance coniracls 262 344
- hvestment contracts 5 14
Investment earnings on assets in excess of Ife insurance and inveslment contracl
fiabifties 63 80

(b) Restrictions on assets in statutory funds

Invesiments held in AMP Life SF1 can only be used in accordance with the relevant regulatory restrictions, which are imposed under the
Life Act and associated rules and regulations. The main reslriclions are that the assets in a statutory fund can only be used to meet the
liabilities and expenses of that life statutory fund, to acquire investments to further the business of the life statutory fund or as
distributions when solvency, capital adequacy and other regulatory requirements are met. See further details about solvency and capital

adequacy in Note 15(d).

AMP Life SF1 details as set out below:

Capital guaranteed business (whale of life, endowment, investment account, retail and

Australia group risk, and immediate annuities).

No. 1 fund

All business (whole of life, endowment, investment account, retail and group risk,

PG Zeralaifid investment-linked and immediate annuities).

Consolidated and Parent

2012 2011

$m $m
(c) Capltal guarantees
Life insurance contracls with a discretionary participaling feature
- Amount of the Fabilities that relate to guarantees 13,530 13,493
Investment Inked centracts
- Amount of the fiabifities subject o lvestment performance guaranlees 1 2
Other Ife insurance and investment contracts with a guaranteed termination valus

116 124

- Current terminalion value
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15. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d) Solvency and capital adequacy

Registered life insurance entities are required to hold prudential reserves, over and above their life insurance contract and investment
contract liabilities, as a buffer against adverse experience and poor investment returns. These prudential reserving requirements are
specified by the Life Act and accompanying prudential standards. AMP Life SF1 holds additional amounts of reserves to provide a
higher level of securily for policyholder benefits than would be achieved by holding the statutory minimum.

Under the Life Act, there are two requirements for a life statutory fund:
e the solvency requirement; and
e the capital adequacy requirement.

Solvency requirements
The solvency requirement is the absolute minimum that must be satisfied for the business to be allowed to continue to operate. Its
purpose is to ensure, as far as practicable, that at any time the fund will be able to meet all existing life Insurance contract liabilities,
investment contract liabilities and other liabilities as they become due.

The Appointed Actuary of AMP Life SF1 has confirmed that the available assets of the statutory fund have exceeded the solvency
reserve required at all times during the reporting period. The excess assets, expressed as a percentage of the solvency reserve, at 31
December 2012 were 55% (31 December 2011: 57%).

Capital adequacy requirementis

The capital adequacy requirement is a separate requirement (usually higher) that must be salisfied for each life entily to be allowed to
make distributions to its shareholder and to operate without regulatory intervention. Its purpose is to ensure, as far as practicable, that
there is sufficient capital in each life statutory fund for the continued conduct of the life insurance business, including writing new
business, in a way which is in the interesls of policyholders and in accordance with the Life Act.

The Appointed Actuary of AMP Life SF1 has confirmed that the available assets of life statutory fund has exceeded the capital
adequacy reserve required at all times during the reporting period. For this purpose, the capital adequacy reserve is defined as the
solvency reserve, plus the difference between the capital adequacy requirement and the solvency requirement. The excess assets,
expressed as a percentage of the capital adequacy reserve, as at 31 December 2012 were 33% (31 December 2011: 29%).
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Distribution of retained profits, including shareholder's Life Act capital, is limited by prudential capital requirements of the Life Act, the
detailed provisions of which are specified by APRA Prudential standards. The solvency standard prescribes a minimum capital
requirement, the solvency requirement, for each statutory fund of the company. The figures below are shown net of reinsurance on a
basis consistent with the calculation of these ratios in the APRA returns. The solvency requirements are as follows:

2012 2011
$m $m
Solvency requirement
- Net minimum termination value - MTV 19,715 19,260
- Adjusted other liabliities 2,378 2,332
- Solvency reserve B 2518 2,145
TOTAL SOLVENCY REQUIREMENT A 24,611 23,737
Assets available for solvency
- Netassets 1,824 1,740
- Liabifty for unvested poficyholder benefits at the end of the year 1,374 1,267
- Excess of net policy Fabilities (including policyholder bonuses) aver MTV 697 361
TOTAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SOLVENCY C 3,895 3,368
Solvency reserve % (B/(A-B))*100 11.4% 9.9%
Coverage of solvency ressrve CcB 1.5 1.6

(e) Actuarial information
Mr Rocco Mangano, as the Appointed Actuary of AMP Life SF1, is satisfied as to the accuracy of the data used in the valuations in the

Financial Report and in the tables in this Note and Note 14.

The liabilities to policyholders (being the sum of the life insurance contract and investment contract liabilities, including any asset or
liability arising in respect of the management services element of an investment contract) and solvency reserves have been determined
at the reporting date in accordance with the Life Act.

(f) Amounts which may be recovered or settled within 12 months after the reporting date
Based on assumptions as to likely withdrawal patterns of the various product groups, it is estimated that approximately $3,733m (2011:

$3,426m) of policy liabilities may be settled within 12 months from the reporting date.
(gy) Disaggregated information

Information for all major components of the financial statements disaggregated belween investment linked and non-investment linked
business is provided within this note.
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15. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(g) Disaggregated information (continued)

(i) Income statement by non-investment linked and investment linked

Non
Investment Investment
Linked Linked Total Parent

2012 2012 2012

$m $m $m
Income and expenses of policyholder, shareholders, external unitholders and minority interesis
Life insurance premium and related revenue 1,204 - 1,204
Fee and olher revenue 49 2 51
Investment gains 2,058 12 2,070
Life insurance claims and related expenses (1,263) - (1,263)
Operaling expenses (628) (1) (629)
Finance costs (32) - (32)
Change in life insurance contract Fabilities (557) 2 (557)
Change in invesiment contract liabililies (183) (11) (194)
Profit before income tax 648 2 650
Ihcome tax expense (318) (2) (320)
Net profit for the year 330 - 330

Non

Investment  Investment
Linked Linked Total Parent

2011 2011 2011

$m $m $m
Income and expenses of policyholder, shareholders, external unitholders and minority interests
Life insurance premiumand relaled revenue 1,140 3 1,140
Fee and other revenue 42 2 44
hvestment gains / (losses) 1,598 - 1,598
Life insurance claims and related expenses (1,228) - (1,228)
Operating expenses (627) (1) (628)
Finance costs (65) - (65)
Change in life insurance contract fabilties 82 - 82
Change ininvestment conltract liabilities (179) - (179)
Profit before income tax 763 1 764
Income tax (expense)/credit (326) (1) (327)
Net profit after income tax 437 - 437
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15. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(g) Disaggregated information (continued)

(i) Statement of financial position by non-investment linked and investment linked

Non
Investment  Investment
Linked Linked Himination Total Parent

2012 2012 2012 2012

$m $m $m $m
Assets
Invesimenls in financial assets 19,713 100 - 19,813
lnvestment property 132 - 132
Investments in controlled entities 1,365 70 - 1,435
Other assets 4,375 2 167 4,544
Total assets of policyholders, shareholder, external unit
holders and minorily interests 25,585 172 167 25,924
Liabilities
Life insurance contract labilities 17,944 - - 17,944
lvestment contract liabilties 3,874 a8 - 3,962
Other Fabilties 1,943 84 167 2,194
Total liabilities of policyholders, shareholder, external unit
holders and minority interests 23,761 172 167 24,100
Net assets of AMP Life SFi 1,824 . - 1,824
Equity
Contributed equity 303 - - 303 |
Reserves (18) - - (18)
Retained earnings 1,539 % - 1,539
Total equily of AMP Life SF1 1,824 - - 1,824
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15. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(g) Disaggregated information (continued)

(i) Statement of financial position by non-investment linked and investment linked (continued)

Non
Investment  Investment
Linked Linked Himination  Total Parent

2011 2011 2011 2011

$m $m $m $m
Assels
nvestments in financial assels 19,230 94 - 19,324
lnvestrent property 130 - - 130
lnvestmenls in controlled entities 1,185 56 - 1,241
Other assels 3,991 - 189 4,180
Total assets 24,536 150 189 24,875
Liabilities
Life insurance contract labilties 17,345 - - 17,345
hvestment conlract liabilties 3,554 86 - 3,640
Cther liabilties 1,897 64 189 2,150
Total liabilities 22,796 150 189 23,135
Net assets 1,740 - - 1,740
Equily
Contributed equity 303 - . 303
Reserves (34) - - (34)
Retained earnings 1,471 - - 1,471
Total equity 1,740 - . 1,740
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15. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(g) Disaggregated information (continued)

(iff) Retained earnings by non-investment linked and investment linked

Non
Investment  Investment Total
Linked Linked Total Parent Consolidated
2012 2012 2012 2012
$m $m $m $m
Opening retained earnings 1,471 - 147 1471
Profit for the year 330 - 330 330
Transfer to AMP Life Limited Sharehelder Fund (262) - (262) (262)
Transfers betw een Stalutory Funds - - - -
Closing retained earnings 1,539 - 1,539 1,539
Non
Investment Investment Total
Linked Linked Total Parent Consolidated
2011 2011 2011 2011
$m $m $m $m
Opening retained earnings 1,206 - 1,208 1,206
Profit for the year 437 - 437 437
Transfer to AMP Life Limited Sharehclder Fund (172) - (172) (172)
Closing retained earnings 1,471 - 1,471 1,471
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16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES

AMP Life SF1's financial risk management is carried out in accordance with the policies set by the AMP Limited Board for management
of the risks within the AMP group. Below is a summary of the AMP group’s financial risk management policies which may impact AMP
Life SF1.

Financial Risk Management

The AMP Limited Board has ultimate responsibility for risk management and governance, including ensuring that an appropriate risk
framework and appetite is in place and is operaling effectively. This includes selting the financial risk appelite and approval of the AMP
group Financial Risk Management Framework (FRM Framework), its sub-policies, the shareholder capital investment strategy, capital
and financing plans.

The principal objective of AMP’s financial risk management Is to establish a robust structure for identifying, assessing, managing,
quantifying, reporting and escalating financial risks. The FRM Framework is consistent with both the AMP group Risk Appetite
Statement, which outlines AMP's appelite, to take certain risks in order to grow its profits and the AMP Enterprise Risk Management
Policy which establishes the principles, requirements, roles and responsibilities for the management of all categories of risk across
AMP.

The FRM Framework includes delegations, roles and responsibilities, escalations and reporting, as well as outlining AMP group's FRM
objectives. In addition, the FRM Framework provides an overview of each of the key financial risks including the nature of the risks,
objectives in seeking to manage the risks, the key policy variables for the management of the risks and the business unit responsibility
for managing and reporting them.

Executive Commiltees oversee the management and monitoring of financial risks and capital management. These Commiltees include
Group Asset and Liability Commiltee (Group ALCO) for AMP group and AFS ALCO for both AMP Life and National Mutual Life
Association of Australasia (NMLA). AMP group Treasury {(Group Treasury) is responsible for the execulion of the FRM Framework and
capital and financing plans in compliance with Board approved targets and limits. Group Treasury is also responsible for the execution
of the approved investment strategy for AMP sharehalder capital, for analysis and reporting of financial risks and the capital position to
Group ALCO, the AMP Limited Audit Committee and the Board, monitoring compliance with the FRM Framework, and for identifying
and reporting breaches of policy to Group ALCO, relevant Audit Commiltees and the Board.

The Audit Commiltee ensures the exislence of effective FRM policies and procedures, and is responsible for the oversight of the
execulion of the FRM Framework. The AMP Life and NMLA Audit Committees are delegated responsibilily for the elements specific to
their respective businesses. Internal Audit reviews the design and operational effectiveness of the FRM Framework as part of its
ongoing audit cycle.

Operating enlities are required to comply with the Board approved risk appetite and are also responsible for approving policyholder
asset and liability strategies.

The appointed actuaries provide oversight to the AMP Life and NMLA Boards, Audit Committees, Group ALCO, AFS ALCO, as well as
externally to APRA, on the financial condition of AMP Life and NMLA. The appointed acluaries are also responsible for giving advice to
AMP Life and NMLA on the distribution of profits, premium rates, charges, policy conditions and reinsurance arrangements. The Life
Insurance Act (Life Act) also imposes obligations on an Appointed Actuaries to bring to the attention of AMP Life and NMLA, or in some
circumstances, APRA, any matter that the appointed actuaries believes requires action to avoid prejudice to the interests of
policyholders.

Information about the capital management activities within the AMP group, including the relationship with regulatory requirements on the
regulated entities, is provided in Note 17.

(a) Risks and mitigation
For the purposes of the FRM Framework, risk management involves decisions made about the allocation of investment assets across
asset classes and/or markets and includes the management of risks within these asset classes.

Financial risk in the AMP group is managed by reference to the probability of loss relalive to expecled income over a one-year lime
horizon at a 90 per cent confidence level (profit at risk). In respect of investments held in the shareholder fund and in the life statutory
funds, the loss tolerance over the discretionary investments is set at a low level because AMP has equity market exposure in its
businesses (for example through fees on Assets Under Management).

Financial risks arising in the AMP group include market risk (investment risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, property risk, and
equity price risk); liquidity and refinancing risk; and credit risk. These risks are managed according to the FRM Framework including
through the use of derivative financial instruments such as cross-currency and interest-rate swaps, forward rate agreements, futures,
options and foreign currency contracts to hedge risk exposures arising from changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of assets and liabilities, or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
movements in lhe financial markets. These movements include foreign exchange rates, interest rates, credit spreads, equily prices or
property prices. Market risk in the AMP group arises from the management of insurance contracts and investment of shareholder capital
including investments in equities, property, and interest bearing investments.

(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis

The paragraphs below include sensitivity analysis tables showing how the profit after tax and equity weuld have been impacted by
changes in market risk variables including interest rate risk and currency risk as defined in AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.
They show the direct impact on the profit after tax or equily of a reasonably possible change in factors which affect the carrying value of
financial assets and financial liabilities held at the end of the reporting period.
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16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The sensitivity is required to show the impact of a reasonably possible change in market rate (it is not intended to illustrate a remote,
worst case, stress test scenario nor does it represent a forecast. In addition it does not include the impact of any mitigating management
actions) over the period to the subsequent reporting date. The categories of risks faced and methods used for deriving sensilivity

information did not change from previous periods.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of an impact on AMP group's profit after tax and equily from movements in market interest rates, including

changes in the absolute levels of interest rates, the shape of the yield curve, the margin belween different yield curves and the volatility
of interest rates.

Interest rate risk arises from interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities in various activities of the AMP group. Management
of those risks is decentralised according to the activity. Details are as follows:

e AMP Life SF1 — As discussed in Note 1(b), AMP Life conduct their wealth management and life insurance business through
separate life statutory funds including AMP Life SF1. Investment assets of the life statutory funds including interest-bearing
financial assets are held to back investment contract liabilities, life insurance contract liabilities, retained profits and capital.

The interest rate risk of AMP Life SF1 which impacts the shareholder arises in respect of financial assets and liabilities held in the
shareholder fund and in the life statutory funds. A risk arises to the extent that there is an economic mismatch between the timing
of payments to life policyholders and the duration of the assets held in the life statutory funds to back the policyholder liabilities.
Where a liability in respect of investment contracts is directly linked to the value of the assets (where applicable, net of related
liabilities) held to back that liabilily (investment-linked business), there is no residual interest rate exposure which would impact the

shareholder.

Management of various risks associated with investments undertaken by life statulory funds and the life shareholder fund, such as
interest rate risk is subject to the relevant regulatory requirements governed by the Life Act. AMP Life and NMLA are required to
satisfy solvency requirements, including holding statutory reserves to cater for interest rate risk to the extent that assets are not

malched against liabllities.

AMP Life SF1 manages interest rate and other market risks pursuant to an asset and liability management policy that has regard to
policyholder expectations and risks to the AMP Life Board's target surplus philosophy for both capital adequacy and solvency as
advised by the Appointed Actuary.

Interest rate risk sensilivily analysis
This analysis demonstrates the impact of a 100 basis point change in Australian and International interest rates, with all other variables

held constant, on profit after tax and equity. It is assumed that all underlying exposures and related hedges are included in the
sensitivity analysis, that the 100 basis point change accurs as at the reporting date and that there are concurrent movements in interest
rates shifts. The impact on equity includes both the impact on profit after tax as well as the impact of amounts that would be taken
directly to equity in respect of the portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that qualify as cash flow hedges for hedge
accounling. A sensilivily level of 100 basis points is determined considering the range of interest rales applicable to interest bearing
financial assets and financial liabilities in the AMP Life SF1.

2012 2011
Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on
profit after tax equity profit after tax equity
Increase Increase Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
Change in variables $m $m $m $m
+ 100 basis points (49) (49) (22) (22)
- 100 basis points 54 54 43 43

(ii) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of an impact on AMP group's profit after tax and equily from movements in foreign exchange rates. Changes In
value would oceur in respect of translating the AMP group's capital invested in overseas operations into Australian dollars at reporting
date (translation risk) or from foreign exchange rate movements on spegcific cash flow transactions (lransaction risk).

Other than where the impact would be immaterial, corporate debt is typically converted to Australian dollars through cross-currency
swaps. Individual invesiment assets in shareholder capital (excluding the international equities portfolio attributable to the shareholder
within the life Statutory Fund No.1 fund) and in the Seed Pool are hedged, and expected foreign currency receipts and payments are
hedged once the value and timing of the expected cash flow is known.

Subject to Group ALCO approval, Group Treasury may allow for natural hedging of foreign exchange risk through unhedged foreign
currency borrowings, or enter into discretionary foreign exchange transactions to hedge enterprise-wide exposures.

AMP group does not hadge the capital invested in overseas operations (other than foreign Seed Pool investments), thereby accepting
the foreign currency translation risk on invested capital.
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Currency risk sensitivily analysis

This analysis demonstrates the impact of a 10 per cent movement of currency rates against the Australian dollar, with all other variables
held constant, on the profit after tax and equily due to changes in fair value of currency sensitive maonetary assets and liabilities at the
reporting date. It is assumed that the 10 per cent change occurs as at the reporting date. A sensitivity level of 10 per cent is determined

considering the range of currency exposures in the AMP Life SF1.

2012 2011
Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on
profit after tax equity profit after tax equity
Increase Increase Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
Change in variables $m $m $m $m
10% depreciation of AUD 1 1 (1) (1
10% appreciation of AUD m (1) 1 1

(iii) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk of an impact on AMP group's profit after tax and equity from movements in equity prices. AMP Life SF1
measures equity securities at fair value through profit or loss. Group Treasury may, with Group ALCO approval, use equily exposures or

equity futures or options to hedge other enterprise-wide equity exposures.

Equity price risk sensitivity analysis

The analysis demonstrates the impact of a 10 per cent movement in Australian and International equities held at the reporting date. This
sensitivity analysis has been performed to assess the direct risk of holding equity instruments. Any potential indirect impact on fees from
AMP group'’s investment linked business is not included. A sensitivity level of 10 per cent is determined considering the widely spread
porifolios held by the AMP group and the range of movements in equily markets for the periods.

2012 2011

Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on

profit after tax equity profit after tax equity

Increase Increase Increase Increase

(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)

Change in variables $m $m $m $m
10% increase in Australian equities 9 9 8 1
10% increase in International equilies 10 10 (1) -

10% decrease in Australian equities (5) (5) (16) (18)
10% decrease in International equities (1) (1) 1 -

(c) Liquidity and refinancing risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the AMP group is not able to meet its debt obligations or other cash outflows as they fall due because of an
inability to liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding when required. Refinancing risk, a sub-set of liquidity risk, is the risk that the
maturily profile of existing debt is such that it would be difficult to refinance (or rollover) maturing debt, or there is excessive exposure to

potentially unfavourable market conditions at any given time.

To ensure that the AMP group has sufficient funds available, in the form of cash, liquid assets, borrowing capacity and un-drawn
committed funding facilities to meet its liquidily requirements, Group Treasury maintains a defined surplus of cash plus six months of
debt maturities to mitigate refinancing risk, satisfy regulatory requirements and protect against liquidity shocks in accordance with the

liquidity risk management policy approved by the AMP Limited Board.

Financiers of loans owing by controlled entities of the life statutery funds do not have legal recourse beyond the operaling subsidiary

borrower and there is no direct effect on any other AMP group debt.
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The following table summarises the maturity profiles of AMP Life's undiscounted financial liabilities and off-balance sheet items at the

reporting date. The maturily profiles are based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations. Repayments that are subject to
nolice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately

Up to 1year More than 5
2012 - Consolidated ornoterm 11to5years years Other @ Total
$m $m $m $m $m
Payables raa - - - 741
Borrowings 304 g : 5 304
Investment conlract liablities ©) ) 1,573 1,063 1,654 88 4,378
External unit holder liabiities - - - 539 539
Total undiscounted financial liabilities ® 2618 1,063 1,654 627 5,962
Upto1year 1to5years More than5 Other Total
2011 - Consolidated or no term years
$m $m $m $m $m
Payables 448 1 i 450
Borrowings 300 213 - - 513
lwvestment conlract liablties @ 1,248 1,111 1,685 86 4,130
External unit holder liabiities - : - 1,621 1,621
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 1,996 1,325 1,685 1,708 6,714
Up to 1 year More than 5
2012 - Parent ornoterm 1to5years years Other @ Total
$m $m $m $m $m
Payables 512 - - - 512
Borrowings 384 - - - 384
lnvestment conltract liabfties @ 1,573 1,063 1,654 a8 4,378
Total undiscounted financial liabilities ® 2,469 1,063 1,654 88 5,274
Upto1year 1to5years More thanb Other Total
2011 - Parent ornoterm years
$m $m $m $m $m
Payables 478 - - 1 479
Borrowings 388 - - . 388
lhvestment conlract liabities © 1,248 1,111 1,685 86 4,130
Total undiscounted financial liabllities 2,114 1,111 1,685 87 4,997

Faolnole:

(1) The table providas maturityanalysis of AMP Life SF fs financial abilities and nan-Fnked investment conlracts including term annuities.

(2} lnvestment contract lablities of $nil (201t $86m) are liabTlies ta palicyhalders forinvestmenl linked business Inked ta Iha performance and va'ue of assets that back those
liabilies. I all those polcyhalders claimed the'r funds, there may be some delays in selllng the liability as assels are Fquidaled, but the sharehaolder has no direct exposure to any
liquidity risk.

(3) Estimaled net cash out flowprolile of Ifeinsurance contract kabilities is disclosed in Note ().

(d) Credit risk
Credit risk includes both seltlement credit exposures and Iraded credit exposures. Credit default risk is the risk of an adverse impact on

results and asset values relative to expectations due to a counterparly failing to meet their contractual commitments in full and on time
(obligator's non-payment of a debt). Traded credit risk is the risk of an adverse impact on results and asset values relative to
expectations due to changes in the value of a traded financial instrument as a result of changes in credit risk on that instrument.

The AMP Concentralion Risk Policy sets out the assessment and determinalion of what constilutes credit risk. The policy has set

exposure limits for each counterparty and credit rating. Compliance with this policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are
reported to senior management and the AMP Audit Commiltees through weekly and quarterly FRM reports.
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(i) Management of credit risk concentration

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same counterparty or
where a number of counterparlies are engaged in similar business activities that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations
to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions. Conceniration of credit risk is managed through both aggregate
credit rating limits and individual counterparty limits, which are determined predominantly on the basis of the counterparty's credit rating.

At reporting date, there is no specific concentration of credit risk with a single counterparty arising from the use of financial instruments,
other than the normal clearing-house exposures associated with dealings through recognised exchanges.

The counterparties to non-exchange traded contracts, at the time of entering those contracts, are limited to companies with investment
grade credit (BBB- or greater). The credil risks associated with these counterparties are assessed under the same management policies
as applied to direct investments in AMP group’s portfolio.

Compliance is monitored and exposures and breaches are reported to senior management and the AMP Audit Commillee through the
weekly and quarterly FRM Report.

(i) Exposure to credit risk
The exposures on interest bearing securities and cash equivalents which impact the AMP group’s capilal posilion are managed by AMP

Treasury within limits set by the AMP Concentration Risk Policy. The following table provides information regarding the credit risk
exposures for items monitored by AMP Treasury according to the credit rating of the counterparties.

2012 2011

$m $m
AAA 2,529 3,539
AA 8,686 7,295
A 2,165 3,174
BBB 847 1,114
Below BBB 64 156
Total financial assets with credit risk exposure managed by AMP Treasury 14,291 15,278

(iii) Past due but not impaired financial assets
No disclosures are required for the parent entity as the parent entity does not have any financial assets that are past due but not

impaired at reporting date.

(iv) Adjustment for own credit risk in the determination of the fair value of life investment contract policy liabilities
The fair value of non-investment linked investment contract liabilities includes the following allowance for the credit risk that an external
party would ascribe to an amount due from AMP Life SF1:

2012 2011

$m $m

Cumulative adjustment 20 26
Change during the period (7) 7

The adjustment has been determined as the difference between the fair value recognised and an amount calculated on the same basis
using a risk-free interest rate in place of the fair value discount rate.

(v) Collateral

AMP Life SF1 enters into debt security repurchase agreements and part of the agreement includes the receipt of collateral which is
required to be returned to the counterparly on settlement.
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(e) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value in the Statement of financial position as assets and liabilities. Asset and
liability values on individual transactions are only netted if the transactions are with the same counterparty and the cash flows will be
settled on a net basis. Changes in values of derivative financial inslruments are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income
unless they qualify as effective cash flow hedges or net investment hedges for accounting purposes, as set out in Note (o).

(i) Derivative transactions undertaken by AMP Life SF1 insurance enlities as part of life insurance operations

The AMP group uses derivalive financial instruments including financial futures, forward foreign exchange contracts, exchange traded
and other options and forward rate agreements to hedge the impact of market movements on the value of assets in the investment
portfolios, and to effect a change in the asset mix of investment portfolios.

In respect of the risks associated with the use of derivative financial instruments, price risk Is controlled by exposure limits, which are
subject to monitoring and review. Foreign exchange hedges are monitored on a regular basis to ensure they are effeclive in the
reduction of price risk.

(if) Risk relating to derivative financial insfruments
The market risk of derivatives is managed and controlled as an integral part of the financial risk of the AMP group. The credit risk of

derivatives is also managed in the context of the AMP group's overall credit risk policies.

(f) Falir value measures

Financial instruments measured at fair value are calegorised under a three level hierarchy, reflecting the avallability of observable
market inputs when estimaling the fair value. If different levels of inputs are used to measure a financial instrument's fair value, the
classification within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The three levels

are:

Level 1: Valued by reference to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. These quoted prices represent aclual
and regularly cccurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

Level 2: Valued using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices), including: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in
markets in which there are few transactions for identical or similar assets or liabilities, and other inputs that are not quoted prices but are
observable for the asset or liability, for example interest rate yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, currency rates,
option volalilities, credit risks, and default rates.

Level 3: Valued in whole or in part using valuation techniques or models that are based on unobservable inputs that are neither
supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor based on available market data.
Unobservable inputs are determined based on the best information available, which might include the AMP group’s own data, reflecting
the AMP group’s own estimates about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation
techniques are used to the extent that observable inputs are not available, and include eslimates about the timing of cash flows,
discount rates, earnings multiples and other inputs.
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The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments measured at fair value by each level of the fair value hierarchy:

2012 - Consolidated Leveld Level 2 Level3  Total fair value
$m $m $m $m
Assels
Equity securities and I'sted nanaged investment schemes 4,302 - 516 4818
Debl securities - 9,170 131 9,301
Investment in unlisted managed investment schemes - 6,255 247 6,472
Derivative financial assets 146 252 - 398
Other financial assels - 9 - 9
Total financial assets 4,448 15,686 864 20,998
Liahilities
Borrow ings - 304 304
Qther financial liabiities 594 113 . 707
Invesiment contract liablties - 3,444 518 3,962
Total financial liabilities 594 3,861 518 4973
2011 - Consolidated Level 1 Level 2 Level3  Total fair value
$m $m $m $m
Asseis
Equity securities and lsled managed investment schemes 3,592 68 472 4,132
Debl securities - 11,084 183 11,267
Investment in unlisted managed investmenl schemes 16 4,713 228 4,957
Derivative financial assels 248 712 960
Qther financial assels - 4 - 4
Total financial assets 3,856 16,581 863 21,320
Liabilities
Borrow ings - 513 513
Qiher financial liabilitias 680 514 - 1,194
Investment conlract liabities - 3,064 576 3,640
Total financial liabilities 680 4,001 576 5,347
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2012 - Parent Leveld Level 2 Level3  Total fair value
$m $m $m $m
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes 3,823 - 125 3,948
Debt securities - 9,125 119 9,244
Investment in unlisled managed investmenl schemes = 6,101 152 6,253
Derivative financial assels 145 214 - 359
Other financial assels - 9 - 9
Investments in controlled entities - 1,435 - 1,435
Total financial assets 3,968 16,884 396 21,248
Liabilities
Borrow ings - 384 - 384
Cther financial Fabties 594 69 - 663
Investment contracl liabiities - 3,444 518 3,962
Total financial liabilities 594 3,897 518 5,009
2011 - Parent Level 1 Level 2 Level3  Total fair value
$m $m $m $m
Assets
Equity securilies and listed managed invesiment schemes 3213 7 13 3,351
Debt securities - 9,055 151 9,206
Investment in unfisted managed investment schemes - 6,102 167 6,269
Derivative financial assels 211 283 - 494
Cther financial assets - 4 - 4
Investments in controlled entities - 1,241 - 1,241
Tolal financial assels 3,424 16,692 449 20,565
Liabilities
Barrow ings - 388 - 388
Other financial Fabiities 667 58 - 725
Investment contract labifties - 3,064 576 3,640
Total financial liabilities 667 3,510 576 4,753
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The following table shows a reconciliation of the movement in the fair value of financial instruments categorised within Level 3 between
the beginning and the end of the reporting date:

2012 - Consolidated Total gains
and losses on
assets and

Balance at the Sales / Net Balance at liabilities held
beginning of Total Purchases withdrawal lransfers theendof atreporting
the year gains/(losses) /deposits s inf{out) the year date
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed
investment schemes 472 33 13 (2) - 516 33
Debl securilies 183 (10) 1 (89) 46 131 (10)
Investments in unlisted managed investment
schemes 228 (11) - - - 217 (11)
Total financial assels 833 12 14 (91) 46 864 12
Liabilities
Investment conlract liabities 576 51 2 (115) - 518 50
Total financial liabilities 576 51 2 (115) - 518 50
2011 - Consolidated
Total gains
and losses on
assets and
Balance at the Sales / Net Balance at liabllities held
beginning of Total Purchases withdrawal transfers theendof atreporling
the year gains/(losses) /deposils s inf(out) the year date
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m
Assets
Equity securities and [isted
managed inveslment schemes 448 23 2 (1) - 472 23
Debl securilies 135 37 = (50) 61 183 37
Investments in unlisted
managed investment schemes 127 (5) - (5) 111 228 (5)
Total financial assets 710 55 2 (56) 172 883 55
Liabllities
Investment contract liabillies 666 44 2 (136) - 576 44
Total financial liabilities 666 44 2 (136) - 576 44
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16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

2012 - Parent

Balance at the

Total gains
and losses on
assets and
Sales / Net Balance at  liabilities held

beginning of Total Purchases withdrawal Iransfers theendof afreporting
the year gains/(losses) /deposils S inf{out) the year date
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed
investment schemes 131 (17) 13 @ - 125 (17)
Debt securities 151 (4) 1 (75) 46 119 (4)
Invesiments in unlisted managed investment
schemes 167 (15) = - . 152 (15)
Total financial assets 449 (36) 14 (77) 46 396 (36)
Liabilities
Investment contracl Fabities 576 51 2 (115) - 518 50
Total financial liabilities 576 51 2 (115) - 518 50
2011 - Parent
Total gains
and losses on
assets and
Balance at the Sales / Net Balance at liabilities held
beginning of Total Purchases withdrawal transfers theendof atreporting
the year gains/{losses) /deposits s in{out) the year date
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m
Assets
Equity securilies and Iisted managed
investment schemes 121 8 2 - - 131 8
Debt securities 108 34 {46) 55 151 34
Investments in unlisted managed investment
schemes 128 (12) - ) 56 167 (12)
Total financial assets 357 30 2 (51) 111 449 30
Liabilities
Investment contracl fabfties 666 44 2 (136) - 576 44
Total financial liabilities 666 44 2 (136) - 576 44
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16. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The following table shows the sensilivily of the fair value of level 3 instruments to changes in key assumplions:

2012 2011
Effect of reasonably Effect of reasonably
Carrying possible alternative | Carrying possible alternative
amount assumptions (+/+) amount assumptions (+)
+ - + 2
Consolidated $m $m $m $m $m $m
Assets
Equity securities and Fsted managed investment schemes 516 9 @ 479 3 (17
Debt securities 134 3 3 183 A
Investments in unlisted managed investment schemes 217 . J 298 . .
Total financial assets 867 9 (9) 883 33 (17)
Liabilities
Investment contract fabTties 518 6 (6) 576 (10) 10
Total financial liabllities 518 6 (6) 576 (10) 10
2012 2011
Effect of reasonably Effect of reasonably
Carrying possible alternative | Carrying posslble alternalive
amount assumptions (+/-) amount assumptions (+)
+ . + .
Parent $m $m $m $m $m $m
Assets
Equity securities and Fsled managed investment schemes 125 7 0 134 16 i
Debl securities 119 - - 151 - -
Investments in unfisted managed investment schemes 152 ) 167
Total financial assets 396 7 () 449 16
Liabilitles
Ivestment conlract FabTties 518 6 (6) 576 (10) 10
Total financial llabilities 518 6 (6) 576 (10) 10

The sensitivity has been calculated by changing key inpuls such as discount rates and earnings muliples by a reasonably possible amount.
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17. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

AMP Life and its subsidiaries hold capital to protect customers, creditors and the shareholder against unexpected losses to a level that
is consistent with AMP's risk appetite approved by the Board.

AMP Life and its subsidiaries assess the adequacy of its capital requirements against regulatory capital requirements. AMP Life is an
operating entity within the AMP Life group and is an APRA regulated entily. Gontrolled entilies of AMP Life also include an APRA
regulated approved superannuation trustee (RSE) and companies that hold Australian Financial Services Licences (AFSL).

The AMP group’s capital management strategy forms part of the AMP group's broader strategic planning process. In addition to
managing the level of capital resources, the AMP group also aims to optimise the mix of capital resources to minimise the cost of capital

and maximise shareholder value.

The minimum regulatory capital requirement (MRR) is the amount of shareholder capital required by each of AMP's regulated

businesses to meet their capital requirements as set by the appropriate regulafor. These requirements are as follows:

e AMP Life - Solvency, capital adequacy and management capital requirements as specified under the Life Act and APRA Life
Insurance Prudential Standards. From 1 January 2013, these will be replaced with revised APRA prudential standards.

e  Controlled entities of AMP Life SFithat hold an AFSL and RSE license — capital and liquidity requirements under the appropriate
AFSL and RSE.

AMP Life and ils subsidiaries have at all times during the current and prior financial year complied with the externally imposed capital
requirements to which it is subject.

AMP's regulated businesses each target a level of capital equal to MRR plus a target surplus.

The AMP Life statutory funds target surplus is set by reference to a probability of breaching regulatory capital requirements. This is a
lwo tiered test where the target surplus is set as the greater of the amount required for a:

° 1 per cent probability of breaching solvency over one year

e 10 per cent probability of breaching capital adequacy over one year.

The target surplus policy for AMP Life has been revised following the introduclion of revised life insurance APRA Prudential Standards,
which take effect 1 January 2013.

APRA has introduced revised Prudential Standards relating to minimum financial requirements of superannuation funds. These revised
prudential standards will commence on 1 July 2013, with transitional arrangements applying over the three years following the
commencement date.
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18. NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS |

Consolidated Parent

2012 2011 2012 2011

$m Sm $m $m
(a) Reconciliation of the net profit after income tax to I
cash flows from/(used In) operating activities
Net profit after income tax 330 437 330 437
Depreciation of operaling assets 9 9 9 9
Investments gains and losses - realised and unrealised (658) 20 (859) (211)
Dividend and distribution income reinvested (248) (252) (248) (315)
(Increase) / decrease in receivables and other assets (343) (279) (50) (311)
Increase / (decrease) in net policy liabilties 921 563 921 563
Increase/(decrease) in income tax balances 62 95 63 94
Increase/(decrease) in other payables 484 (193) 14 (171)
Cash flows from / (used in) operating activities 557 400 180 95
(b) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 154 76 22 (48)
Cash on deposit 3,791 334 3,690 3,261
Short termbills and notes (included in debl securilies) 871 1,546 871 1,546
Balance at the end of the year 4,816 4,963 4,583 4,759
19. INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Details of significant investments in controlled entities are as follows:

% Holdings

NAME OF ENTITY INCORPORATION Share type  Footnote 2012 2011
255 George Streel vestment A Ply Linited Auslralia Ord 100 100
Almarg Corporation Limited New Zealand Ord, Pref 100 100
AMP Capital Investments No. 2 Limited New Zealand Ord A & B, Pref 100 100
ANP Capital lnvestments No. 8 Limited New Zealand Ord A &B, Pref 100 100
ANP Capital Investments No. 11 Limiled New Zealand OrdA &B 100 100
AMP Capital Investments No. 14 Limited New Zealand OrdA&B 100 100
ANP CMBS No.1 Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
ANP CNBS No.2 Pty Limted Auglralia Ord 100 100
ANMPERGO Morlgage and Savings Limited New Zealand Ord 100 100
AMP Life (NZ) lvestmenls Holdings Limited New Zealand Ord 100 100
ANP Life (NZ) Investments Limited New Zealand Ord 100 100
Donaghys Australia Pty Limited New Zealand Ord (1) - 58
Donaghys Induslries Linited New Zealand Ord (1) - 58
Donaghys International Liited New Zealand Ord (1) - 58
Donaghys Limited New Zealand Ord, Pref (1) - 58
Danaghys Pty Limited New Zealand Ord (1) . 58
Kent Street Ry Limited Auslralia Ord 100 100
Mowla Py Limited Auslralia Ord 100 100
Aged Care nvestment Services No.1 Ry Limied Auslralia Ord 100 100
Aged Care vestment Services No.2 Pty Limited Auslralia Ord 100 100
Principle Heallhcare Finance Pty Limited Auslralia Ord 100 100
Quay Mning No.2 Limited Bermuda Ord, Red, Pref 84 84 ‘
CQuay Mning Ry Limited Austrafa Ord 84 84
Scrabster Bay Pty Limited Ausiralia Ord 100 100
Kiwi Kat Limited New Zealand Ord 70 70
Faotnote:

{1 Controling interest was disposed of in 2012,
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19. INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Details of significant investments in controlled trusts are as follows:

% Holdings
COUNTRY OF

NAME OF ENTITY REGISTRATION Foolnote 2012 2011
AMP Capital Asian Equity Grow th Fund Australa 73 73
ANP Capital lhvestors Australian Equity Long Short Fund Auslrafa 100 100
ANP Capital Credit Strategies Fund Austrafa a3 a3
AMP Capital Macro Strategies Fund Australa 84 84
Australia Paciflc Airports Fund Australia 66 66
ANP Capital Asia Local Currency Bond Fund Auslralia (1) 100 -
ANP Capital Australian Equity hcome Fund Auslralia (1) 100 -
ANP Capital Investors hfrastructure Fund 1 Australia 53 53
ANP Capital Global Equties Sector Rotation Fund Australia 100 100
ANP Capital Global Resource Fund Auslrala (1) 100 -
ANP UK Shopping Centre Fund Australa 100 100
AMP Capital Pacific Fair and Macquarie Shoppng Cenlre Fund Australa ] - 76
AHGI Martineau Galleries Fund Australa 100 100
Principal Healthcare Holdings Trust Australa 100 100
Rverside Paza Trust Australia 100 100
Sydney Cove Trust Auslralia 52 52
AMP Life Cash Management Trust Australia (2 - 58
The Glendenning Trust Australia 100 100
Global Credil Strategies Fund Australa 87 87
Floating Rate Income Fund Austrafa 77 77

Faotnote:
(1) Controlling interest acquiredin 20 22,

{2) Controlling interest was disposed of in 2012,
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20. ASSOCIATES

Investments in associates held by the life statutory funds measured at fair value through profit or loss"

Ownership interest Carrying amount
PRINCIPAL 2012 2011 2012 2011
COMPANIES ™ ACTIVITY % % $m $m
TOA Ry Limited CTG hvestment Campany 50 50 164 164
Gove Aluminum Finance Limited Ihvestment into aluminum
smeller Tomago,NSW 20 20 79 90
AMP Pencarrow Privale Capital vestment Company 34 34 3 3
Total Parent 246 257
UNIT TRUSTS @
NAME OF TRUST
AMP Capital Shopping Centre Fund Investment Trust 25 28 474 486
AMP Capital Pacific Fair and Macquarie
Shopping Centre Fund lnvestment Trusl (3) 26 - 304 -
AMPCI Strategic Infrastructure Fund 1 Investrent Trust 23 19 44 40
AMPCI Strategic Infrastructure Fund 2 Investent Trust 23 19 45 40
AMP Life Cash Management Trust Investment Trust (3) 45 - 1,164 -
Managed Treasury Fund Investment Trust 18 21 488 548
Aged Care Investment Trust No. 1 (formerly
Frinciple Heatthcare Finance Unit Trust 1) Investment Trust 25 24 40 38
Aged Care lvestment Trust No. 2 (formerly
Principle Healihcare Finance Unt Trust 2) lhvestment Trust 25 24 40 38
Olhers (less than $30m) lnvestment Trus! various various 27 48
Footnote:

(1) hwestment in associated entities that back investmenl contract and [fe insurance conltract | abiltles are treated as linancial assets and are carried at fair value, Refer to Note Kf).
(2)Tha balance date for all signficant associated entities is 31December. In the course of normal aperating investment aclivities the stalutory fund holds investmenls invarious
operaling businesses. lnvestments in associated entities reflect invesiments where [he slatutory fund holds between a 20%and 50%equityinterest.,

(3) Enitywas conlrolled at 31December 2011and has nowbecome an affiiate.

21. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

AMP Life SF1 from time to time may incur obligations arising from litigation or various types of contracts entered into in the
normal course of business; including guarantees issued by AMP Life SF1 for performance obligations to controlled entities In the
AMP Life group.

Where it is determined that the disclosure of information in relation to a contingent liability can be expected to prejudice
seriously the position of AMP Life SF1 (or its insurers) in a dispute, accounting standards allow AMP Life SF1 not to disclose
such information and it is AMP Life's policy that such information is not to be disclosed in this note.

At reporting date there were no other material contingent liabilities where the probability of any outflow in settlement was greater
than remote.

22. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Key management personnel detalls

The following individuals were the key management personnel (being those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of AMP
Life SF1 for the whole or part of the reporting period as indicated:

Catherine Brenner Chairman, Non-Execulive Director

Craig Dunn Director, Chief Executive Officer - AMP Limited

Craig Meller Managing Director — AMP Financial Services

Anthony Coleman Non-Executive Director

Diana Eilert Non-Executive Director Appointed: 10 August 2012
John Palmer Non-Executive Director

Geoffrey Roberts Non-Executive Director Resigned: 31 March 2012
Peter Shergold Nan-Executive Director
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22. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b) Remuneration of key management personnel
The following table provides aggregale details of the compensation of key management personnel of AMP Life SF1 Limited.

Post
Short Term Employment Share Based
Benefits Benefits Payments Total
$ $ $ $
2012 5,613,295 103,037 3,376,000 9,092,332
2011 5,396,426 85,318 3,341,000 8,822,744
Footnote:

The fees paidtoe non-execulive directars of AMP Life are the combined fees for AMP Life Limited and the National Multual Lite Assoclation of
Auslralasia Limited.

(c) Transactions with key management personnel
During the year, key management personnel and their personally related entities have entered into transactions with the disclosing

entity or its subsidiaries. All such transactions have occurred within a normal employee, customer or supplier relationship on terms and
condilions no more favourable than those that it is reasonable to expect AMP Life SF1 would have adopted if dealing at arm’s length

with an unrelated individual. These transactions include:
s  Purchase of insurance products available to other employees and policy owners;
Purchase of superannuation products available to other employees and policy owners;

e
e Placement of funds on deposit; and
o Acquisition and disposal of units in controlled managed investment scheme and receipts of trust distributions.

Information about such transactions does not have the potential to affect adversely decisions about the allocation of scarce resources
made by users of this Financial Report, or the discharge of accountabilily by the specified execulives or specified directors.

No Director or Director-related entities had loans with AMP Life in 2012 (2011: nil).

A number of Directors of the company are also Directors of public companies and/or are a Partner of a professional service partnership
which have transactions with AMP Life SF1. The Directors do not believe that they have the capacity to control or significantly influence
the financial or operating policies of either company in their dealings with each other. Those companies are therefore not considered to

be Director-related entilies.

(d) Transactions with key related parties
Transactions with related parties are made at arms length and on normal commercial terms. Outstanding balances at 31 December

2011 and 31 December 2012 are unsecured, non interest bearing and seltlement occurs in cash or through intercompany accounts as
necessary.

AMP Life SF1 purchases administrative services from AMP Services Limited and AMP Services (NZ) Limited on a fee service basis.
(2012: $364m, 2011: $357m). Services purchased include product distribulion, marketing, payroll, personnel, computing and accounting

services.
AMP Life SF1 receives financial planning services from AMP Financial Planning Pty Limited, and is charged on commercial terms and
conditions.

The company has amounts in deposils with AMP Bank Limited (2012: $3,680m, 2011: $3,253m). Deposits earn interest at normal
commercial rates.
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22, RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The following table provides the total amount of significant transactions (greater than $50 million) which AMP Life SF1 has entered into
with related parties for the relevant financial year.

Service, management Service, managementand  Amounts
and other fees received  other fees paid torelated  owed by Amounts owed to

from related parlies parties related parties related parlies

Fellow subsldiarles of AMP Limited $m $m $m $m
AMP Bank Linited 2012 - - 3,680 =

2011 - - 3,253 =
AMP Barmuda Lid 2012 - - - 59

2011 - - = 59
AMP Capital lnvestors Linited 2012 8 49 - 28

2011 5 57 - 30
AMP Financial Hanning 2012 - 112 8

2011 e 112 5
AMP Life Ltd Australia Shareholders Funds 2012 - - - 401

2011 - . = 150
AMP Life Lid Australia Slalutory Fund 2 2012 - - 191

2011 & e 83 ¥
AMP Services Limited 2012 - 328 - -

2011 - 320 - -
TOA Pty Linited 2012 - - - 159

2011 - - - 159

23. AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

All auditors' remuneration payable to the auditors of AMP Life SF1 for the audit of the controlled companies within the AMP Life Group
is seltled by a related entity. Certain controlled property and private equily funds within the AMP Life SF1Group incur auditors’
remuneration directly.

24. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE

At the date of this repor, the directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance that has arisen since the reporting date which has
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of AMP Life SF1, the results of its operations or its state of affairs, which
is not already reflected in this report, other than the following:

o From 1 January 2013, revised life insurance APRA Prudential Standards relating to capital adequacy apply to AMP Life
SF1. As at 31 December 2012, AMP Life SF1's capital adequacy multiple would have been 1.6 had these revised
requirements applied (the capital adequacy mulliple is a coverage ratio that expresses the total capital base divided by the
prescribed capital amount). The equivalent mulliple under the current standards at 31 December 2012 is 1.3. As at 1
January 2013, the total capital base of AMP Life SF1 exceeds its prescribed capital amount under these revised standards.
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Independent auditor's report to the members of AMP Life Limited

We have audited the accompanying special purpose financial report of AMP Life Limited Statutory Fund
No.1 (the company) and its controlled entities, which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2012, and the income statement and statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant
accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity
comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the

financial year.

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report and have
determined that the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements, which form part
of the financial report, are appropriate to meet the financial reporting requirements of Section 9A(3) of
the New Zealand Financial Reporting Act 1993 and are appropriate to meet the needs of the regulator.
The directors are also responsible for such controls as they determine are necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. No opinion is
expressed as to whether the accounting policies used are appropriate to the needs of the members.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards
require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

report.

The financial report has been prepared for distribution to the New Zealand Companies Office for the
purpose of fulfilling the.directors’ financial reporting requirements under Section 9A(3) of the New
Zealand Financial Reporting Act 1993. We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on
this report or on the financial report to which it relates to any person other than the regulator, or for any

purpose other than that for which it was prepared.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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Independence

In conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Australian professional
accounting bodies.

Auditor’s Opinion
In our opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the company's and consolidated

entity's financial positions as of 31 December 2012 and their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial

statements.

Basis of accounting

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the
basis of accounting. The financial report has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the directors'
financial reporting responsibilities under Section 9A(3) of the New Zealand Financial Reporting Act 1993.
As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose.
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Andrew Price
Partner
Sydney

3 May 2013







Appointed Actuary’s Report
To the Directors of AMP Life Limited (“AMP Life”)

This report has been prepared for AMP Life in accordance with Section 78 of the Insurance
(Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (“the Act”).

In terms of Section 77(1) of the Act, | have reviewed the actuarial information contained in, or
used in the preparation of the Directors’ Report and Financial Report for AMP Life Statutory
Fund No 1 for the year ended 31 December 2012 (“the Financial Statements”).

For the purposes of this report, “actuarial information” is as defined in Section 77(4) of the Act,
together with paragraph 4.1.1 of the Attachment to the Section 59 “Exemption from Compliance
with Solvency Standard” granted to AMP Life by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand under the
Act.

| certify that in my opinion:

a) The value of policy liabilities of AMP Life and the solvency of AMP Life have been determined
using methods and assumptions consistent with the actuarial prudential standards issued by
the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (“APRA”).

b) The allocation and distribution of the profits of Statutory Fund No 1 of AMP Life have been
made in accordance with Divisions 5 and 6 of Part 4 of the Australian Life Insurance Act 1995
(Life Act) and the Constitution of AMP Life.

c¢) Proper records have been kept by AMP Life from which its policy liabilities and solvency have
been able to be properly determined.

d) The apportionment of income and outgo used in preparing the AMP Life accounts at 31
December 2012, as required under sections 78 and 79 of the Life Act, is appropriate.

e) | have obtained all of the information and explanations that | require from AMP Life.

In addition, | certify that in my opinion, and from an actuarial perspective:

f) The actuarial information contained in the Financial Statements has been appropriately
included in those statements.

g) The actuarial information used in the preparation of the Financial Statements has been used
appropriately.

h) AMP Life has fully complied with the APRA solvency standard and capital adequacy standard
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012 in relation to Statutory Fund No 1. Note that
the APRA solvency standard is the applicable standard that applies under the Section 59
exemption granted by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand.

Other than my relationship as Appointed Actuary of AMP Life Limited, | am an employee of the
AMP Group, of which AMP Life forms part, and a member of the AMP Employees’
Superannuation Plan. | hold shares and options in AMP Limited, the ultimate holding company
of AMP Life. | am a customer of AMP Bank Limited, which is also part of the AMP Group.

This report is provided solely in my capacity as the AMP Life Limited Appointed Actuary. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, | do not accept responsibility to anyone for the contents of this
report other than the Reserve Bank of New Zealand, AMP Life Limited and its directors and
shareholders.

RO e

Rocco Mangano FIAA
Appointed Actuary, AMP Life Limited
24 April 2013
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AMP Life Limited Financial Report
Directors’ Report

for the year ended 31 December 2012

The directors of AMP Life Limited 'AMP Life" or 'the company') present their report on the company for the financial year ended 31
December 2012,

AMP Life Limited is a company limited by shares and is incorporated and domiciled in Australia. AMP Financial Services Holdings
Limited is the company’s parent entity and AMP Limited is the ultimate parent entity.

The Registered Office of the company is at Level 24, 33 Alfred Sireet, Sydnay, NSW 2000.
Directors

The directers of the company during the year and up to the date of this report are shown below. Directors were in office for this entire
pericd except where stated otharwise.

Catherine Brenner Chairman, Non-Executive Direclor

Craig Dunn Director, Chief Executive Officer - AMP Limited

Craig Meller Managing Director — AMP Financial Services

Anthony Coleman Non-Executive Director

Diana Etlert Non-Executive Director Appainted: 10 August 2012
John Palmer Non-Executive Director

Geoffrey Roberts hNon-Executive Director Resigned: 31 March 2012
Peter Shergold Non-Executive Directar

Principat aclivities

AMP Life provides a range of products and services to customers in Australia and New Zealand. These products and services are
primarily distributed through self-employed financial planners and advisers aligned with AMP. These products and services include
superannuation, investments, retirement savings, income protection and life insurance. There have been no significant changes in the

nature of these activities during the year.

Review of operations and results
The operating result for the year ended 31 December 2012 was a profit after tax of $532m {2011; $680m).

Dividends
Detalls of the dividends paid and dividends recommended or declared for payment but not paid are disclosed in Note 15 of the Financial

Report.

Slgnificant changes in the state of affairs
There have been no significant changes In the state of affairs during this financial year.

Events occurring after reporting date

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance that has arisen since the reporting date which has
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the AMP Life group, the resulis of its operatiens or ils state of affairs,
which is not already reflected In this repon, other than the following:

¢ From 1January 2013, revised life insurance APRA Prudential Standards relating to capital adequacy apply to AMP Life
Limited. As at 31 December 2012, AMP Life Limited's capital adequacy multiple would have been 2.1 had these revised
requirements applied (the capital adequacy muitiple is a coverage ratio that expresses the total capital base divided by the
prescribed capital amount). The equivalent multiple under the current standards at 31 Dacemnber 201215 1.4, As at 1
January 2013, the total capital base of each AMP Life Limited statutory fund and its shareholders’ fund exceed its
prescribed capital amount under these revised standards.

Likely developments
Information about likely developments in the operations of the company and the expected results of those operations in fulure years has
not been included In this report because disclosure of the information would be likely to result Iin unreasonable prejudice to the

company.

Environmental regulation
AMP Life believes that sound environmental management makes good business sense and creates value for our shareholder,

customers, employees and the community,

As an investor, AMP Life believes that the engagement with companles on environmental issues Is an effective way to influence
management practices for the benefit of cusiomers and the environment.

In the normal course of Its business operations, AMP Life Is subject to a range of environmental regulations, of which there have been
no material breaches during the year,

Duty of the directors under the Life Insurance Act 1995

The directors have complied with their duty, as prescribed by the Life Insurance Act 1995, to iake reasonable care, and use dus
diligence, te see that in the investment, administration and management of the assets of the AMP Life statulory funds, the company
gives priority to the interests of the policyholders over the Interests of the sharsholder.
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Indemnification and insurance of directors and officers

Under its Constitution, the company indemnifies, to the extent permitied by law, alf officers of the company, (including the directors), for
any lability (including the costs and expenses of defending actions for an actual or alleged liability) incurred in their capacity as an
officer of the company.

This indemnity is not extended to current or former employees of the AMP group against liability incurred in their capacity as an
employee unless approved by the Board of AMP Limited. During or since the end of the financiaf year, no such indemnities have been
provided.

During the financial year, AMP Limited agreed to insure all the officers of the company against certain liabilities as permitted by the
Corporations Act, The insurance policy prohibits disclosure of the nature of the cover, the amount of the premfum, the limit of llability
and other terms.

AMP Group Holdings Limited (“AMPGH"} has entered into a deed of indemnity and access with each director of the company. Each

deed of indemnity and access provides that:

= the director will have access lo the books of the company for their petiod of office and for seven years after they cease to hold
office (subject to certain conditions); and

+  AMPGH agrees to indemnify the director, to the extent permitted by law, against any llability Incurred by the director in his or her
capacity as a dirsctor of the company and of other AMP group companies.

Auditor’'s independence
The directors have obtained an Independence declaration from the company’s auditor, Emst & Young, a copy of which is attached to
this report and forms part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2012,

Rounding :
In accordance with the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) Class Order 98/100, amounts in this Directors’
Report, and the accompanying Financial Report have been rounded off to the nearest million Australian dollars, unless stated to be

otherwise.

Signed In accordance with a resclution of the directors.

)Moy C P

{signature) (slgnature)

CEHG MmEelerk CATHEL 1E B En/nerl

(name) {name) .
Director Director
Sydney, 27 March 2013 Sydney, 27 March 2013
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Auditor’'s Independence Declaration to the Directors of AMP Life Limited

In relation to our audit of the financial report of AMP Life Limited for the financial year ended 31
December 2012, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the
auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional

conduct.

émz}% ¥ Y&jft‘%

Ernst & Young

2
H
i d

Andrew Prlce
Partner
27 March 2013

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Leqislation
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Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Note 2012 2011
$m $m

Income and expenses of policyholders and the shareholder®
Life insurance premiumand related revenue T7(a} 1,204 1,140
Fee revenue Sa) 928 " 927
Other revenue () 4 2
hvestment gains and (losses) 3(c} 8,582 543
Life insurance claims and related expenses 7o) (1,263) (1,228)
Operafing expenses 4{a) {1,353) {1,342}
Finance costs 4(b) {33) {66)
Change in policyholder liabiities
- Life insurance contracis (e} (5657} 82
- lnvestment contracts (6,318} 539
Gain on sake of controlled enlity - 40
Profit for the year before income tax 1,194 637
Income lax (expense) credit 5(a) {662) 43
Prafit for the year 532 680
Other comprehensive income recognised in reserves
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
- exchange gains and (losses) 17 (1)
Total comprehensive income for the year 549 679

Footnole:

() lhcome and expenses include amounts atiibutable to 1he shareholder's interests and palicyholders® interests in the Jife statutory funds. Amounts included in
respect of tha iife statutozy funds have asubstantial Impact on mast of tha statement of comprehensive income fines, especiallyinvesiment gains and losses
andtax. In general, policyholders' inlerasts in the fransactions for the period are atinbuted to them in the Iines Change in policyholder labifities.
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Statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2012

Note 2012

2011

$m $m
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,702 3,260
Receivablas 8 851 904
intercompany tax receivable 84 16
Other assets ' 7 4 4
lnvestments in financial assets measured at falr value through profit or loss 8(a) 68,449 62,382
Invesiment properties g 1,420 1,781
Property, plant and equipment 0 23 22
Doferred tax assets 5{c) 511 567
Intangibles 1 517 517
Investments in controlled entities 8(b) 1,699 1,500
Total assets of policyholders and the shareholder 77,260 70,953
Liabilities
Payables © 830 710
Intercompany tax payable 136 184
Provisions B 2 1
Other financial liabfities 8{c) 674 744
Borrow ings u 567 573
Deferred tax liabilities ] 5(d} 861 404
Life Insurance contract liabilitiss 7{d) 17,944 17,345
nvestment contract fiabllifies 53,064 47,799
Total liabilities of policyholders and the shareholder 74,078 67,760
Net assets of AMP Life Limited 3,182 3,193
Equity”
Contributed equity B 1,081 1,091
Reserves (32) (49)
Retained earnings - 2,123 2,151
Total equity of AMP Life Limlted 3,182 3,193
Foetnote:

{1) Furtherinformation on Equity is provided on the Sfatemeni of changes in equily on the Tolloving page.
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Foreign
currency
Contributed translation Retained Total
equity reserve  earnings equity
$m $m $m $m
2012
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,001 (49) 2,151 3,193
Profit for the year - - 532 8632
Other comprehensive incorme - 17 - 17
Total conprehensive Income - .17 532 549
Dividends paid - - {560) (560}
Balance at the end of the year 1,091 (32) 2,123 3,182
2011
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,091 {48) 1,801 2,944
Profit for the year - - 680 680
Other comprehensive income - {1 - n
Total comprehensive income - (1} 680 679
Dividends paid - - (430) (430)
Balance at the end of the year 1,001 (49) 2,151 3,193
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Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Note ‘ 2012 2011
sm $m
Gash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts in the course of cperations 13,807 12,702
Interest and other kems of a simitar nature recelved 682 746
Dividends and distributions received 818 1,546
Cash payments in the course of operations (14,971) (13,667)
Finance costs (34) (55)
income tax paid (265) {3086)
Cash flows from operating activities 2{a) 37 966
Cash flows from investing activities
Net proceeds from sale of/(payments to acquire):
- investmant properly 408 {14)
- investments In financial assets® (131) {2,092)
"Cash Hlows (used In} / from investing activities 277 {2,106)
Cash flows from financing activities
Praceeds from borrowings - 2
Repayment of borrowings - (5)
Net movement in deposits from customers A (6) 5
Dividends paid B (560) {430)
Cash flows used in financing activities {566) {428}
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (252} (1,568)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 4,849 6,417
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the perlod 21h) 4,597 4,849

Footnote:

{) Netproceeds fram the sale of/{payments to acquire} investments infinancial assets comprise of purchases and sales of financial assets measured at
falr value through profit or loss held by the statutory funds, targely reflecting palicyholder investmen? decislons during the period.
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Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AMP Life Limited (‘AMP Life’ or ‘the company’), a company limited by shares, is incorporated and domiciled in Ausiralia. This Financial
Report includes financial statements for AMP Life as a single entity only.

(a} Basis of preparation

This general purpese Financial Report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), and the Corporatlons Act 2001, AMP Life Is a for-profit entity
for the purposes of preparing financial statements. The Financial Report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial Report are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to the current year and comparative period, unfess otherwise stated. Where necessary, comparative information
has been reclassified to be consistent with current peried disclosure.

Consolidated information has not been prepared to show the finangial position and operations of AMP Life and its controlled entities at,
or during the year ended, 31 December 2012 In accordance with exemptions avallable under Australian Accounting Standards.
Consolidated information has been prepared and is available for the ultimate parent, AMP Limited, and its controlled entities.

AMP Lifa is a registered life insurance entity, predeminantly a wealth management business conducting operations through the life
insurance company. Where permitted under accounting standards, the assefs and liabilities assoclated with life insurance and
investment contracts are generally measured on a fair valie basis and other assets and liabilities are generally measured on a historical

cost basis.

Assels and liabilities have been presented cn the face of the Statement of financial positicn in decreasing crder of liquidity and do not
distinguish between current and non-current items. The majority of the assets of AMP Life are investment assets held to back
investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities. Although the amount of those assels which may be realised and those
liabitities which may be setited within 12 months of the reporting date are not always known, estimates of amounts expected to be
recovered or settled (a) no more than 12 months after the reporting date, and (b) more than 12 months after the reporting date, have
been provided in foolnotes to the relevant notes.

Changes in accounting policy
Since 1 January 2012, AMP Life has adopled all Australian Accounting Standards which have become mandatory for adoption

including:

*  AASB 2010-8 Income taxes (amendmenti) — Deferred tax: Recovery of Underlying Assels
*  AASB 2010-6 Amendment to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosures on Transfers of ananc.'amssets
+  AASB 1054 Auslralian Additional Disclosures

Adoption of these standards has not had any material effect on the financlal position or performance of the AMP Life,

Auslralian Accounting Standards Issued but not yet effective

A number of new accounting standards and amendments have been Issued but are not yet effective. AMP Life has not elected to early
adopt any of these new standards or amendments In this Financial Reporl. These new standards and amendments, when applied in
future periods, are not expected to have a material impact on the financial position or performance of AMP Life:

¢«  AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. This standard centralises the definition and guidance for caleulating fair values where required
{o be applied by various other accounting standards and removes some minor inconsistencies that previously existed between the
guidance for determining fair value in these standards. The new standard requires quantitative and qualitative disclosures of all fair
value measurements, AASB 13 Is mandatory for adoption by AMP Life in the year ending 31 December 2013. The financial impact
on AMP Life of adopting AASB 13 is not expecied to be material.

+«  Revised AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements. The revised AASB 101 requires items In the Statement of
comprehensive income to be segregaled between those that will be eventually realised in the Income statement in future periods
and those that will not. The revised AASB 101 is mandatory for adoption by AMP Life in the year ending 31 December 2013. The
changes to AASB 101 relate to presentation only and are not expecled to have a financial impact on AMP Life.

*  AASB 2012-2 Amendments fo Australian Accounting Standards — Disclosures — Offselting Financial Asseis and Financial
Liabilities. This standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures to include information that
will enable users of an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the effect or polential effect of netting arrangements, including rights
of set-off associaled with the entily's recognised financial assels and recognised financial liabilities, on the entity's financial
position. These amendments are mandatory for adeption by AMP Life in the year ending 31 December 2013. These changes are
not expected to have a financial impact on AMP Life.

s AASB 2012 - 3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Offsetting Financial Assels and Financial Liabilities. These
amendments clarify the meaning of “cuirently has a legally enforceable right to set off”. The amendments also clarify the
application of AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation offsetling criteria to settlement systems which apply to gross
setllement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. These amendments are mandatory for adoption by AMP Life in the year ending
31 December 2014. These changes are not expected to have a financial impact on AMP Life.

*  AASB 9 Financlal Instruments. This standard makes significant changes to the way financial assets are classified for the purpose
of determining their measurement basis and also to the amounts refating to falr value changes which are to be taken direclly to
equily. In subsequent phases, the AASB will address hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets. AASB 9 Is mandatory
for adopiion by AMP Life in the year ending 31 December 2015, The tinancial impact to AMP Life of adopting AASBE 9 has not yet
been quantified.
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Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 Dacember 2012

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{(CONTINUED)

(b} Accounting for wealth management and insurance business

The accounting treatment of certain kransactions in this Financial Report varies depending on the nature of the contract underlying the
transactions. The two major contract classifications relevant to the wealth-management and insurance business of AMP Life are
investment contracts and [ife insurance contracts.

For the purposes of this Financial Report, holders of Investment contracts or life Insurance coniracts are collectively and individually
referred to as policyholders.

Investment contracts

The majority of the business of AMP Life relates to weallh-management products such as savings, investment-linked and retirement
income policies. Tha nature of this business is that AMP Life receives deposits from policyholders and those funds are invested on
behalf of the policyholders. With the exception of fixed retirement income polictes, the resulling liabilily to policyholders is linked to the
performance and value of the assets that back those liabilities. For fixed retirement income policies, the resulting liabilily is linked to the
fair value of the fixed retirement income payments and associated management services.

Under Australian accounting standards such contracts are defined as fife investment contracts and described as investment contracts
throughout this Financial Report.

Life insurance contracts
AMP Life also issues conlracls that transfer significant Insurance risk from the pelicyholder, covering death, disability or longevity of the
insured, In addition, there are some policles known as discretionary participating contracts, that are similar to investmenl contracts, but
the timing of the vesting of the profit altributable to the policyholders s at the discretion of AMP Life.

Under Australian accounting standards, such contracts are defined as flife Insurance coniracts.

Assets measurement basis
Assels hacking investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are measured on a basls that is consistent with the

measurement of the liabifities, to the extent permitted under Australian Accounting Standards.

Invesiment contract liabilities are measured at fair value as described In Note 1{r} and life insurance conlract liabilities are measured as
described in Note 1{(q). Assets backing such liabililies are measured at fair valus, to the extent permitied under Australian Accounting
Standards. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are recegnised in the Statement of
comprehensive income, fo the extent permitted under Australian Accounting Standards. The accounting policies for individual asset
classes, and any restrictions on applicalion of fair value, are described later in Note 1.

All assets that back invesiment contract and life insurance contract liabilifies are included within the life stalutory funds and, as such, are
separately identifiable.

To ensure consistency across AMP Life and, except where specifically stated otherwise, all financial assets and all non-financial assets,
including those not backing investment or Insurance contract liabilities, are also recognised at fair value through profif or loss to the
extent permitted under Australian Accounting Standards. Similarly, adjusiments to the value of such assets are recognised in the
Statemant of comprehensive inceme when the corresponding accounting standards allow such treatmen!. The accounting policy for the
parent entily’s investiments in controlled entities is set out in Note 1(g}.

{c} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand that is available on demand and deposits that are held at call with financial
institutions. Cash and cash equivalenis are measured at fair value, being the principal amount. For the purpose of the Statement of cash
flows, cash also includes other highly Jiquid investmenis not subject 1o significant risk of change in value, with short periods to maturity,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings In the Statement of financial posilion.

{d) Recelvables

Receivables that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are financial assets and are measured at fair value.
Reinsurance and other recoveries are discounted to present value. Recelvables that do not back investiment contract and life insurance
contract liabilities are measured at nominal amounts due, less any allowance for doubtful debts. An allowance for doubltful debis Is
recognised when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred. Given the short-term nature of
most recelvables, the recoverable amount approximales fair value.
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Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Investments In financial assets

Investments in financial assets measured at fair vafue through profit or less

Investments In financlal asseis designated on initial recognition as financiat assets measured at fair value through profit or toss are
initially recognised at fair value determined as the purchase cost of the assef, exclusive of any fransactlon costs. Any realised and
unrealised gains or losses arising from subsequent measurement at fair value are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive
income in the pericd in which they arise.

Subsequent to inftial recognition, the fair vatue of investments measured at falr value through profit or loss is determined as follows:

* the fair value of equity securities in an active maikel and listed managed Investment schemes reflects the quoled bid price at the
reporiing date. In the case of equity securities and listed managed Investment schemes where there is no active maiket, a fair value
is established by using valuation technigues including the use of recent arm's length transactions, references to other instruments
that are substaniially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and optlon pricing modals.

+ the fair value of listed debt securities reflects the bid price at the reporting date. Listed debt securilies that are not frequently traded
are valued by discounting estimated recoverable amounts. The fair value of unfisted debt securities is estimated using interest rate
yields obtainable on comparable listed investments. The fair value of loans is determined by discounting the estimated recoverable
amount using prevailing interest rates,

s the fair value of invesiments in unlisted managed investment schemes is determined on the basis of published redemption prices of
those managed investment scheme s at the reporting date.

+ the fair value of derivalive financial assets is delermined in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1(o0).

There is no reduction for realisation costs in determining the fair value of financial assels measured al fair valug through profit or loss.

Invaestments in controifed entities

Investments by the AMP Life shareholder fund in controlied entities (excluding unit trusts) are measured af cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Investments in controlled entities by the AMP Life statutory funds that back Investment contract and life Insurance
contract liabilities are treated as financial assets, these are valued in the same manner as equity securities described above.

(f} Assoclates

Associated entities are defined as those entities over which AMP Life has significant influence but there is no capacity to control.
Investments in associates, other then those backing investment contracts and life insurance contracts, are initially measured at cost
plus any excess of the fair value of AMP Life’s share of identifiable assets and {iabilities above cost at acquisition date subseguently
adjusted for AMP Life's share of post-acquisition profit or loss and movements In reserves net of any impalrment. Any dividend or
distribution recefved from associates is accounted for as a reduction in carrying value of the associate.

Investments in associates held to back life insurance or life investment contracts liabilities are exempt from the reguirement to apply
equity accounting and have been designated on initial recognition as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.
These are valued in the same manner as equity securities describad in Note 1(g).

(g) Investment properly
tnvestment property is held to eam revenue from rentals and/or for the purposes of capital appreciation. Investment property includes all
directly held freehold and leasehold properties. There are na properly interesis held under operating leases accounted for as investment

property.

Investment properly Is initially recognised at cost, including {ransaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is
measured at fair valus.

Changes in valueg of investment property are faken directly to the Statement of comprehensive income and may comprise changes In
the fair value from revaluation of invesiment property, and fair value adjustments in relation to:

»  the straight-lining of fixed rental income

* tepantincentives Including rent free periods, landlord and tenant owned fit oul contributions, and

*  capitalised leasing fees.

The process adopted to determine fair values for investment properties is set outin Note 9.

{h} Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment

Plan{ and squipment is initially measured at cost, inctuding transaction costs. It is subsequently measured at cost less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impalrment losses, The written down amaunt approximates fair value.

Each item of plant and equipment Is depreciated on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset of 3-10 years.

Leasehold improvements
Leasehold improvements are recognised as an asset only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the

asset will flow to AMP Life and the cost of the item can be reliably measured.
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Notes to financial statements
for the year anded 31 December 2012

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Intangible assets

Goodwill ’

When the aggregale of the fair value of the consideration transferred in a business combination, the recognised amount of any non-
controlling interest and the fair value of any previously held equity interest in the acquiree exceeds the fair value of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the excess is recognised as goodwill. Subsequently, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwilt Is not subject te amortisation.

(it Impairment of assets

Assels measured al fair value, where changes in value are reflected in the Statement of compreheansive inceme, are not subject to
impalment testing. As a resull, all financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are not subject to impairment testing.
Other assets such as property, plant and equipment and intangible assets including goodwilf are subject to impairment testing.

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, such as goodwill, are not subject to amortisation but are tested at least annually for
impalrment. Other Assets that are subject fo amortisalicn are reviewed for impainment whenever evenis or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may hot be recoverable.,

Any impaiment loss, being the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, is recognised in the
Statement of comprehensive income. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and ils value in

use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment of goadwill, assets are grotiped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the goodwill relates.

(k) Taxes
Tax consolidation
AMP Limited and its wholly-owned Australian confrolied entities which are Australian domiciled companies (including AMP Life}

comprise a tax-consolidated group of which AMP Limited is the head entity. The implementation date for the lax-consolidaled group was
30 June 2003.

Under tax conselidation, AMP Limited, as head entity, assumss the following balances from entities within the tax-consolidated group:
e cuirent fax balances arising from external transactions recognised by entities in the tax-consolidated group, occuring after the

implementation date, and .
» deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits recognised by entities in the tax-consolidated group.

A tax funding agreement has been entered into by the head entily and the controlled entities in the tax-consolidated group. Entities in
the tax-consolidated greup cantinue to be responsible, by the operation of the tax funding agreemsnt, for funding tax payments required
to be mads by the head entily arising from underlylng transactions of the controlled entities. Controlled entities make (receive)
contributions to (from) the head entity for the balances assumed by the head enlily, as described above. The contributions are
calculated in accordance with the tax funding agreement. The contributions are payable as set out in the agreement and reflect the
timing of AMP Limited's cbligations to make payments to the Australian Taxation Office.

Assets and liabilities which arise as a result of batances transferred from entities within the tax-consolidated group to the head entity are
recognised as related-party halances receivable and payable in the Statement of financial position of AMP Life. The recoverability of
balances arising from the tax funding arrangements is based on the ability of the tax-consolidated group 1o utilise the amounts
recognised by the head entity.

Income tax expense
Income tax expense/credit is the tax payable on taxable income for the current period based on the income tax rate for each jurisdiction

and adjusted for changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to:
+ temporary differences batween the tax bases of assels and liabilities and their Statement of financlal position canying amounts

* unuscd tax losses, and
s the impact of changes in the amounis of deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from changes in tax rates or in the mannerin

which these balances are expected to be realised.

Adjustments to income tax expense/credit are also made for any differences between the amounts paid or expected to be paid in
relation to prior periods and the amounis provided for these periods al the start of the current period.

Any tax impact on income and expense items that are recognised directly in equity is also recognised directly in equity.

Income fax for Investmaent confracts and life Insurance contracts business
The Income tax expense recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income arising in AMP Life reflects tax imposed on the
shareholder as well as policyholders.

Investment contracts liabilities and life insurance contracts liabilities are established In Australia net, and in New Zealand gross, of the
policyholders' share of any current tax payable and deferred tax balances of AMP Life.

Arrangements made with some superannuation funds result in AMP Life making payments to the relevant tax authorities in relation to
contributions tax arising in those funds. The amounts paid are recognised as a decrease In investment contract liabilities and not

included in income tax expense.
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Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Deferred fax
Deferred tax assets and liabililies are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates which are expected 1o apply when the assets

are recovered or liabilities are setlled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted for each jurisdiction.

The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulaiive amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the deferred
tax asset or liability. An exception is made for certain temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability.
No deferred tax asset or liabllity Is recognised in relation to these temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a
business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assels are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only If it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to uilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred {ax assets and liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse In the foreseeable future.

Deferred ta, including amounts in respect of investment contracts and life insurance contracts, is not discounted to present value.

Goods and services tax
AMP Life operates across a number of tax jurisdictions and offers products and services that may be subject to various forms of goods

and services tax (GST) imposed by local tax authorities.

All income, expenses and assets are recognised net of any GST paid, except where they relate to products and services which are input
taxed for GST purposes or where the GST incurred is not recoverable from the relevant tax authorities. In such circumstances, the GST
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the assets or as pait of the relevant expense.

Receivables and payables are recorded with the amount of GST included, The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable to the
{ax authorities Is included as efther a receivable or payable in the Statemnent of financial position,

Cash flows are reported on a gross basis reflecting any GST paid or collected. The GST component of cash flows arlsing from investing
or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, local tax authoritles are classified as Operating cash flows.

(I} Payables
Payables that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are financiaf liabilities and are measured at fair value, Other
payablas are measured al the nominal amount payable. Given the shert-term nature of most payables, the nominal amaunt payable

approximates fair value,

(m) Provisions

Provisions are recognised whan:

* AMP Life has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,

s it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the cbligation, and
+ areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where AMP Life expects some or all of a provision to be relmbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision Is presented
in the Statement of comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are measured at the present value of managemant’s best estimale of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the labllity. The increase in the provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised in finance

costs,

(n) Borrowings
All borrowings are financial lizbifities and are initially recognised at fair value. Borrowings are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Directly atiributable transaction costs are expensed and movemenis in fair value are recognised in the Statement

of comprehensive income.

(o) Derlvative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities

AMP Life is exposed {o changes in interest and foreign exchangs rates. To mitigate the risks arising from these exposures, AMP Life
uses derivative financial instruments such as cross-currency and interest-rate swaps, forward rate agreements, futures, options ard
forelgn currency contracts. Derivative financial instruments are also used to gain exposure to various markels for asset and liability

management purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value exclusive of any iransactions costs on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to thelr fair value at the end of each reporting pariod. All derivatives are recognised as assets
when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their falr value Is negative. Changes in the fair value of derivative financia!
instruments are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value eslimation
The fair value of financiat instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives) is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting dats. The quoted market price for financial assets Is the current bid price; the quoted market price for financial liabifities is

the current offer price.

The fair value of financial instruments not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation fechniques. Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, option priclng medels, discounted cash-flow methods
and comparison to quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

(p) Recognition and de-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the date AMP Life becomes a party to the confractual provisions of the
instrument, Financlal assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire, or are
transfeirad. A transfer occurs when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are passed to an unrelated
third party. Financial liahilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract Is discharged, cancelled or expires.

() LHe insurance contract liabilities
The financial reperting methodology used 1o determine the life insurance contract llabitities s referred to as Margin on Services (MoS).

Under MoS, the excess of premium received over claims and expenses (the margin} Is recognised over the life of the contract in a
manner that reflects the paitern of risk accepted from the policyholder {the service). The planned release of this margin is included in the
movement in life insurance contract liabilities recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income.

Life insurance contract lfabilities are usually determined using a projecticn method, whereby estimates of policy cash flows (premiums,
bengfits, expenses and profit margins to be released in future periods) are projected using best-estimate assumptions about the future.
The liabitity is calculated as the net present value of these projected cash flows. When the benefits under a fife insurance conltract are
linked to the assets backing i, the discount rate applied is based on the expecled future earnings rate of those assets. Where the
benefits are net linked to the performance of the backing assels, a risk-free discount rate Is used. The risk-free discount rate is based on
the zero coupon government bond rate and a ligquidily margin, which depends on the nalure, structure and terms of the coentract
liabilities.

An accumulation methed may be used Iif it produces resulls that are not matsrially different from those produced by a projection method.
A modified accumutation method Is used for some discretionary paricipating business, where the life insurance liability is the
accumulation of amounts invested by policyholders, less fees specified in the policy, plus investment earnings and vested benefits,
adjusted fo allow for the fact that crediting rates are determinad by reference to investment income over a period of greater than one
year. The accumulation method may be adjusted to the exient that acquisition expensss are to be recovered from fulure margins
between fees and expenses.

Allocation of operating prolit and unvested policyhalder benefits
The operating profit arising from discretionary participating contracts Is alfocated between the shareholder and participating
policyholders by applying the MoS principles in accordance with the Life fnsurance Act 1995 (the ‘Life Act').

Once profit is allocated to participating policyholders it can only be distributed to these policyholders. Any distribution of this profit to the
shareholder Is only allowed for overseas businass with specific approval of the regulators.

Profit allocated to participating policyhalders is recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income as an increase in policy liabilities.
Both the element of this profit that has not yet been allocated to specific policyholders {i.e. unvested) and that which has been allccated
to specific policyholders by way of bonus distributions (i.e. vested) are included within life insurance contract liabilities.

Bonus distributions 1o paiticipating policyholders are merely a change in the nature of the liability from unvested to vested and, as such,
do not alter the amount of profit altributable to the shareholder.

The principles of allocalion of the profit arising from discreticnary particlpating business are as follows:

(3] Investment income (net of tax and investment expenses) on retained eamings in respecl of discreticnary participating
business is allocated hetween policyholders and the sharehelder in proportion to the balances of policyholders’ and the
shareholder’s retained earnings. This proportion is 80 per cent policyholders and 20 per cent shareholder.

{ii) Cther MoS profits arising from discretionary participating business are allocated 80 per cent to policyholders and 20 per cent
to the shareholder, with the following exceptions:
¢ the profit arising from New Zealand corporate supsrannuation business is apportioned such that the shareholder is

allocated 15 per cent of the profit allocated to policyholders,
*  the profit arising in respect of Preservation Superannuation Account business is allocated 92.5 per cent to policyholders
and 7.5 per cent to the shareholder, and
. = addifional tax on taxable income to the sharehalder in respect of Australian superannuation business is allocated to the
shareholder only.

iiiy Al profits arising from non-participating business, including net investment returns on shareholder capital and relained

earnings in the stalutory funds (excluding retained earnings dealt with in {I) above) are allocated to the shareholder.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Allocalion of expenses within the stalutory funds

All aperating expenses relating to the life insurance contract and Investment conlract activities are apporticned between acquisition,
maintenance and investment management expenses. Expenses which are directly atiributable to an individuat life insurance contract or
investment contract or product are allocated direclly to a pariicular expense category, fund, class of business and product line as

appropriate.

Where expenses are not directly attributable, they are appropriately apportioned, according to detailed expense analysis, with due
regard for the objective in incurring that expense and the oulcome achieved. The apportionment basis has been made in accordance
with Austratian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA) Prudential Standards and on an equitable basis to the different classes of
business in accordance with the Life Act.

The costs apportioned to life insurance contracts are included in the determination of margin described above.,
investment management expenses of the statutory funds are classified as operating expenses. See Note 1(y).

{r) Investment contract liabilities

An investment conlract consists of a financlal instrument and an Investmant management services element, botit of which are measured
at fair value. With the exception of fixed retirement-income policies, the resulting liability to policyholders is ¢closely linked to the
performance and value of the assets (after tax) that back those Ifabilities. The fair value of such liabilities is therefore the same as the
fair value of those assets (after tax charged to the policyholders) except where accounting standards prevent those assels from being
measured at fair value.

For fixed relirement-income policies, the financlal instrument element of the liability is the falr value of the fixed retirement-income
payments, being their net present value using a fair value discount rate. The fair value of the associated management services element
is the net present value, using a fair value discounl rate, of all expenses associated with the provision of services and any profit margins
thereon.

(s} Contributed equity

Issued capital

Issued capital in respect of ordinary shares is recognised as the fair value of consideration received by the parent entity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of certain new shares are recognised in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds,

(t) Forelgn currency transactions

Functional and presentalion currency

The Financial Report is presented in Australian dollars (the presentation currency). ltems included in the financlal statements are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The functional

currency of the company is Australian dollars.

Transactions and balances
Income and expense items denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are translated at the spot exchange rale at the

date of the transagtion. Monetary assels and liabilities denominated in forelgn currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at
the reporting date, with exchange gains and losses recognised In the Statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary itemns measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined.

Translation of foreign operation

Where the functional currency of a controlled entity is not the presentational currency, the transactions and balances of that operation

are translated as follows:

+ [ncome and expenses are transhaled al average exchange rates, unless this Is not a reasonable approximation of the cumutative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dales. In this cass, income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions,

»  Assets and liabllities are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date, and

*  All resulling exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity in the foraign currency translation reseive.

When a foreign operalion is sold, the cumulative amount in the foreign currency translation reserve relationg to that cperation is
recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on sale. If a portion of the operation is sold, the
proportionate share of the cumulative amount is recognised.

(u) Insurance premium and related revenue

Life insurance coniracts
Life insurance contract premiums are separated into their revenue and deposit components. Premium amounts earmed by bearing

insurance risks are recognised as revenue. Other premium amountis recelved, which are in the nature of deposits, are recegnised as an
increase in life insurance contract liabilities,

Premiums with no due date or fixed amount are recognised on a cash-received basis. Premiums with a regular due date are recognised
on an accruals basis. Unpald premiums are only recognised during the days of grace or where secured by the surrender value of the life
insurance contract and are reported as outstanding premiums and classifled as recsivables in the Statement of financial position.

Investment conlracts
There is no premium revenue in respect of investment contracts. Amounts received from policyholders in respect of investment

contracls comprise:
+ origination fees and ongoing inveslment management fees. See Note 1{v).
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

+ amounts credited directly to investment contract liabilities. See Note 1(r).

{v) Fee and other revenue
Fees are charged 1o customers in connection with investment contracts and other financial services contracls. Revenue is recognised
as services are provided, In some cases services are provided at the inception of the contract, while other services are performed over

the life of the contracl.

Invesiment contracts consist of a financial Instrument and an investment-management services element. The payment by the
policyholder includes the amount to fund the financial instrument and a fee for the origination of the contract. in many cases, that
origination fee is based on amounts paid 1o financial planners for providing fnitial advice. The financial instrument is classified as an

investment contract and is measured at fair value, See Note 1(r).

The revenue that can be attriibuted to the origination service is recognised at inception. Any amount paid to financial planners is also
recognised as an expense at that time. See Note 1(y).

Feas for ongoing investment management services and other services provided are charged on a regular basis, usually daily, and are
recognised as the service is provided.

Fees charged for performing a significant act In relation to funds managed by AMP Life are recognised as raventie when that acl has
been completed.

{w) Investment gains or losses
Dividend and interest income are recognised in the Slatement of comprehensive Income on an accruals basfs when AMP Life obtains

control of the right to receive the revenue.

Net realised and unrealised gains and losses represent the change in value between the previously reported value and the amount
received on sale of the asset as well as changes in the fair value of financial assets and investment property recognised in the period.

Rents raised are on terms in accordance with individual leases, however they are generally due on the first day of each month,

Certain tenant allowances that are classified as lease incentives such as rent-free periods, fit-outs and upfront payments are capitalised
and amortised over the term of the lease. The aggregale cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction to revenue from rent over the

lease term,

{x) Insurance claims and related expense

Life Insurance contracfs
Life insurance contract ¢claims are separated into their expense and withdrawal components. The component that relates to the bearing

of risks is trealed as an expanse. Other claim amounls, which are in the nature of withdrawals, are recognised as a decrease in life
insurance contract liabilities.

Claims are recognised when the liability to the policyholder undar the life insurance contract has been established or upon notificaticn of
the insured event, depending on the type of claim.

Invesiment conlracts
There is no claims expense In respect of investment contracis. Amounts paid to policyholders in respect of invastmaent contracts are

withdrawals and are recognised as a decrease in investment contract liabilities. See Note 1(r).

{y) Operating expenses
All operating expenses, other than those allocated to life insurance contracts, see Note 1(g),are expensed as Incurred.

The majority of investment conlracts issued result in payments to external service and advice providers. Where the amount paid
equates 1o a fee charged to policyholders for the provision of advice, the amount Is expensed either at inception or over the pericd of the
contract consistent with the basis for recognising the fee revenue on the respective contracts. See Note 1(v).

Opesrating lease payment
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expanse in the Statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the

lease term or other systemalic basis representative of the patterns of the benefits obtained. Operating incentives are recognised as a
liabifity when recelved and subsequentiy reduced by allocating lease payments between rental expense and reduction of the liability.

(2} Finance cosls

Finance cosis include:

()] Borrowing costs:
* inferest on bank overdrafts and borrowings
*  amortisation of discounts or premiums related o borrowings

(i) Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses when incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The making of judgements, estimates and assumptions is a necessary part of the financial reporting process and these judgements,
estimates and assumptions can have a significant effect on the reported amounts In the financial statements. Estimates and
assumptions are determined based on information available 1o management at the time of preparing the Financial Report and actual
restdts may differ from these esfimates and assumplions. Had different estimates and assumptions been adopted, this may have had a
significant impact on the financlal statements. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions are re-evaluated at each
reporting period in the light of historical experience and changes to reasonable expectations of fulure events. Significant accounting
judgements, estimates and assumptions include but are not limited to:

(a} Fair value of investments in financial assets

AMP Life measures fnvestments in financial assels at falr value through profit or loss. Where available, quoted market prices for the
same or simitar instruments are used to determine fair value. Where there Is no market price available for an instrument, a valuation
technique is used. Management applies judgement in selecting valuation techniques and setting valuation assumptions and inputs.
Further detail on the determination of fair value of financial instruments Is set out in Note 19.

(b} Falr values of investment properties

AMP Life measures invesiment properties at fafr value through profit or loss. The valuation of investment properties requires judgement

1o be applied in selecting appropriate vakiation techniques and setting valuation assumptions. AMP Life engages indepandent
“registered valuers to value each of its investment properties on a rolling annual basis. Furtiier detail on the determination of fair values

of investment propettios is set out in Note 9.

(¢} Goodwill

Goodwill is required to be allocated to cash generating units and tested for impairment on an annual basis, Management apply
judgement In determining cash generating units and allocating the goodwill arising from business combinations tc these cash generating
units. Impairment is assessed annually by determining the recoverable amount of each cash generating unit which has a goodwill
balance, Management applies judgement in selecting valuation techniques and setting valualion assumpticns to determine the
recoverable amount, Note 11 sets out further information on the impairment testing of goodwill.

(d) Tax

AMP Life is subject to taxes in Australla and other jurisdictions where It has operations. The application of tax law to the specific
clrcumstances and transactions of AMP Life requires the exercise of judgement by management, The tax trealments adopted by
management in preparing the financial statements may be impacted by changes in legislation and Interpretations or be subject io

challenge by tax authorities.

Judgement is also applied by management in determining the extent to which the recovery of deferred tax assels is probable for the
purpose of meeting the criteria for recognition as deferred tax assets.

(e} Provisions

A provision is recognised for items where AMP Life has a present obligation arising from a past event, it is probable that an cutflow of
economic resources will be required to seftle the obligation and a refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
provision is measured as the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation. Management apply judgementin
assessing whether a particular item safisfies the above criteria and in determining the best estimate. Note 13 sets out further information
on provisions and Note 24 provides information of contingent liabilities.

() Insurance contract liabilitles

The measurement of insurance coniract liabilities is determined using the Margin on Services (MeS) methodelogy. The determination of
the liability amounts involves judgement in selecling the valuation methods and profit carriers for each type of business and seiting
valuation assumptions. The determination is subjective and relatively small changes In assumptions may have a significant impact on
the reported profit. The Board of AMP Life Is responsible for these judgements and assumptions, after taking advice fram the Appointed
Actuary. Further detail on the determination of insurance contract liabilities is set out in Note 17.

(g) Investment contract liabilities

Investment contract liabilitles are measured at falr value. For the majority of contracts, the falr value is determined based on published
unit prices and the fair value of backing assets, and does not generally require the exercise of judgement. For fixed income products,
fair value is determined using valuation models. Judgement is applied in selecting the valuation model and setling the valuation
assumplions. Further details on investment cantract liabilities are set out in Note 8.
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3. REVENUE AND INVESTMENT INCOME

2012 2011
$m $m

{a} Fee rovenue
Invesiment contract fees 858 854
nwestment management fees 24 27
Service fees
- related entties 46 46
Total fee revenuet 928 927
{b} Other revenue
Other ravenua 4 2
Total other revenue 4 2
{c} nvestment gains and losses
Interest @
- related entities 156 139
- other entities 526 609
Dividends and disiributions
- related entities 1,730 2,693
- associated entities 183 229
- gther entilies 550 773
Rental income 161 163
Net realised and unreafised gains / (losses)® 5,247 {4,078)
Other investment income 29 15
Total investment gains and {losses) 8,582 543

Foolnote:
{1 Totalfea revenuainciudes fes income from trust and fiductary activities that result in the holding or investing of assets on behalf of individuals, trusis,

retiremant benafit plans, and other institulions.
{2) Iterest Includes interest Income from financlal assets measured at fair value through profit orlass, designated as such uponinitial recognition.

{3} Netrealised and unrealised gains and losses include net gains and losses onfinanclal assets and financial liabifities deslgnated at fair valua through profit or
loss uponinitial recognition.
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4. EXPENSES

2012 2011
Sm sm

(a} Operating expenses
Conrrission and advisory fee-for-service expense ' (853) (347)
hvestment management expenses
- refated entities (203) (218)
- oiher entities {7 (12)
Fees and commission expenses® {563) {577)
Occupancy and properly related expenses 8 g
Direct properly expenses' (52) {50)
Service fee expense
- related entiis (668) {652)
Professianal fees ' (1) {2
Depreciation of proparty, plant and equipment (9 {9
COther expenses (68) {61)
Other operating expenses (796) {765)
Tolal operating expenses (1,353) (1,342)
{b} Finance costs
Interest expense on barrowings
- other entities ’ {29) (58)
Ciher finance cosls 4 (8)
Total finance costs (33) {66)

Footnote:

() Fee andcommission expenses include fee expenses from trust and other fiductary activities insluding the holding or investing of assets on behalf of
individuals, trusts, retirement benafit plans, and other institutions,

(2) Direct properly expenses refals to Invasinient properties which generate rental income,
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5. INCOME TAX

2012 2011

$m $m

(a) Analysis of income tax credit (expense)
Current tax {expense) credi (17 {315}
Increase {decrease) in deferred tax assels (63) 224
(hcrease) decreass in deferred tax liabilities (430) 133
Overf{under) provided in previous years including amounts attributable to 8 1
policyholders

{662) 43

Income tax (expense) credit

{b} Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit

The following table provides a reconciliation of differences batween prima facie tax calculated as 30 per cent of the profit before income
tax for the year and the actual income tax expense recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year. The income tax
expense amount reflects the impact of both income tax attributable to the shareholder as well as income tax altributable to
policyinolders. In respect of Inceme tax expense altributable to the shareholder, the tax rate which applies Is 30 per cent (2011: 30 per

cent) in Austra!ia and 28 per cent (2011: 28 per cent) in New Zealand.

Income tax attributable fo policyholders is based on investment income alfocated to policyholders less expenses deduclible against that
investment income. The impact of the tax is charged against policyholder liabilities. A number of different tax rate regimes apply to
policyholders. In Australia, certain classes of policyholder life insurance income and superannuation eamings are taxed at 15 per cent,
and certain classes of Income on some annuity business are tax-exempt. The rate applicable to New Zealand life insurance business

during the year was 28 per cent (2011: 28 per cent). |

2012 2011
$m $m
Profit before income tax 1,194 637
Policyholder tax credit / {expense} recognised as part of the change
in polieyholder liabilities in determining profit before income fax {447} 3i2
Profit before Income tax excluding policyholder tax 747 949
Prima facie tax at the rate of 30% (224) (285}
Tax effect of differences betw een amounts of income and expenses
recognised for accounting and the amounts deductibles/taxables in calculating
taxable income:
Shareholder impact of par-business tax freatment 1 21
MNon-deductble expenses (1} (5)
MNon-taxabla income ' 7 18
Tax offsets and credits 4 4
Other items . (5 (24}
{Under)/over provided in previous years after excluding amounts
attributable to policyholders 2 (1}
Differences in overseas tax rate 1 2
Income tax (expense) credit altributable to shareholders (215} (269)
ncome tax (expense} credt attributable to policyholders {447} 312
Income tax {(expense) credit per Statement of
{662) 43

comprehensive income
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5. INCOME TAX {CONTINUED)

2012 2011
$m $m
(¢) Analysls of deferred tax assets
Expenses deductible and income recognisable in future years 79 78
Unrealised investment losses 28 102
Losses available for offset against future taxable income 387 366
Cther i7 21
Total deferred tax assets 511 567
(d) Analysis of deferred tax liabllities
Unrealised invesiment gains 661 255
Deferred tax on New Zealand life insurance policy liabilities 128 120
Unrealised movernents on borrow ings and derivatives 35 24
Other 37 5
Total deferred tax liabilities 861 404
6. RECEIVABLES
2012 20M
$m $m
Investment income receivable 135 123
Invesliment sales and margin accounts receivable 298 326
Life insurance contract premiums receivable 270 277
Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable 10 10
Reinsurers’ share of lifte insurance centract liabilities 119 98
Other receivables
- refated entilies 7 19
- assoclated entities - 2
- other entities 12 49
Total recelvables® 851 904
Fooltnotes:
(1) $81m (2011:$86m) of total receivables is expected to ba recovered mara than £ months fram reporting date.
7. OTHER ASSETS
: 2012 2011
" 8m $m
Prepayments 4 4
Total other assets( 4 4

Footnotes:

(1) Allother assets are expectedto be recovered within £ months from reparting date.
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8. INVESTMENT IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

2012 2011
$m $m
(a) Investiments in financiat assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Fquity securities and listed managed investment schemes 11,117 9,798
Debt securities! 9,300 9,468
hvestments in unfisted managed investment schemes 47,527 42,456
Dervative financial assets 366 535
Other financial assets® 139 125
Total Investments In financlal assets measured al fair value through profit or loss 68,449 62,382
(b) Investinents in conirolied entities
At fair value 1,658 1,464
At cost 41 36
Tofal investments in controlled entities 1,699 1,500
{¢) Other financial liabilities
Derivative finangial Eabilties 126 107
Collateral deposits held® 548 637
674 744

Total other financial liabilities

Fooinote:

{h Icluded within debt securities are assets held to back the Fabftity for coBateral deposits held in respect of debl security repurchase arrangements enteredinto

bytha Ife statutory funds.,
{2) Otherfinanclal assets primarily conslsts of policyholder Invesiments n an external life Insurance fund,

{3) Collateral daposits held represents the obligation to repay collateral held in respact of debt sectrity repurchase amangements entered inlo by tha life statutory

funds.
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9. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2012 2011
$m $m
Investment property® .
Direcily held 1,420 1,781
Total investment property 1,420 1,781
Movements In investment property
Balance al the beginning of the year 1,781 1,703
Additions
- subsequent expenditure recognised in carrying amount 10 14
Disposals (418) -
Net gains fromfair value adjustments 47 64
1,420 1,781

Balance at the end of the year

Fooinotes:
(1) Investment propertyis measured at fair value vith changes in value reco galsed through protit ortoss.

Valuation of investment property )
Investment properly Is measured at fair value at each reporting date, Fair value represents the amount at which the assets could be

exchanged between a knowledgeable willing buyer and a knowledgeable willing seller in an arm’s length transaction.

Fair values of AMP Life's properties are determined by independent registered valuers who have appropriate registerad professional
qualifications and recent experience in the location and calegory of the property being valued.

The fair value appralsals are obtained on a rolling annual basis. The valuation schedule may be altered when a property Is either
undergoing or being appraised for redevelopment, refurbishment or sale, or is experiencing other changes in assets or tenant profiles
which may significantiy impact value, or when there have been significant changes in the property market and broader economy such as
updates fo comparable properly salss which may have an impact on the individual asset values. The carrying value of each investment
properly is assessed at reporiing date to ensure there has been no material change to the fair value since the valualion date.

Thae valuers apply ‘comparable sales analysis' and the ‘capitalised income approach’ by reference to annual net market income,
comparable capitalisation rates and other property-specific adjustments as well as discounted cash flow analysis where the expected
net cash flows are discounted to their present value using a market determined risk adjusted discount rate, The fair value of Investment

property does not reflect fulure capital expenditure that will improve or enhance the propety.

2012 2011

Primary assumptions used in valuing investment property
Capitalisation rates
Market determined, risk adjusted discount rate

6.00% - 10.75% 6.00% - 10.25%
8.75% - 11.50% 9.00% - 13.00%
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehcld Plant &

Improvements Equipment Total
2012 $m $m $m
Praperty, pfant and equipment
Gross carrying amount 69 71 140
lLess: accumulated depreciation and impairment Josses (59) {68) (117
Properly, plant and equipment at written down value 10 13 23
Movements in property, plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 9 13 22
Additions
- through direct acquisitions 5 5 10
Depreciation expense for the year (4 (5) (9)
Balance at the end of the year 10 13 23

Leasehold Plant &

Improvements Equipment Total
2011 ' $m $m $m
Property, plant and equipment
Gross carrying amount 64 66 130
Less: accumulated depreciation and inmpairment losses {55) {53) (108)
Property, plant and equipment at written down value 9 13 22
Movements in property, plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of tha year 9 15 24
Additions
- through direct acquisitions 4 3 7
Depreciation expense for tha year {4) {5) (9)
Balance at the end of the year g 13 22
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11. INTANGIBLES

2012 2011
$m $m
[ntangibles
Gross carrying amount 517 517
Less: accumulated amortisation and / or impairment losses - -
Intangibles at written down value 517 517

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill of $517m (201 1: $517m) arose from a Life Act Part ¢ transfer of life insurance business Into the statutory funds of AMP Life.
The initial amount recognised represented the value of in force business, the value of future new business and the benefits of cost
synergies obtained as a result of the integration of the business into AMP Life.

The business acquired included activities conducted in the same business units already aperated by AMP Life. Those business units
are Ausfralian Contemporary Wealth Management (CWM), Australian Contemporary Wealth Protection (CWP) and Australian Mature
and those business unils are identified as the cash generating units for the purpose of assessing goodwill Impairment.

Under the transition rules for Australian adoption of Intemalticnal Financial Reporting Standards, the amortised cost value of $517 million
at 1 January 2004 was deemed lo be the value carried forward and tested annually for impairment. For the purposes of impairment
testing, the amount Is allocated to the cash generating units as follows:

*  Australian CWM - goodwill attributable: $387m;

*  Australian CWP - goodwill attributable: $65m; and

¢ Australian Mature — goodwilf attributable: $65m.
There are no other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives allocated to these cash generating units.

The recoverable amount for each cash generaling unit has been determined using the *fair value less costs fo sell” basis. The
recoverable amount is determined considering a combination of estimated embedded value and value of future new business,

which are generally taken as features of a Life insurance business which, taken together, would be an eslimate of fair

value. Embedded value is a calculation which represents the econamic value of the shareholder capital in the business and the future
profits expected to emerge from the business cuerently in-force expressed in today’s dollars.

The key assumplions applied in estimaling the embedded value are: mortality, morbidily, discontinuance rates, maintenance unit costs,
future rates of supportable bonus for participating business, franking credits, risk discount rates, investment relurns and Inflation

rates. Risk discoun! rales are based on the yield on fong-term government bonds plus a discount margin of 3%. With the exception of
the revised life insurance capital standards, the continuation of the existing tax and regulatory framework is assumed. Assumptions are
generally consisient with the best eslimate assumptions used In calculating policy liabilities for AMP Life. A more detailed description of
these assumptions and their 31 December 2012 values can be found in Note 17 of this Financial Report. As all relevant business is
projected for the embedded value, the description of the assumptions in Note 17 applies even where that business is not valued by
projection metheds for profit reperting.

The conclusion from the goodwill impairment testing is that there has been no impairment to the amount of the goodwill recognised and
there is no reasonably possible changs in key assumptions that could cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount.
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12. PAYABLES

2012 20114
$m $m
Payables i
bwestment purchagses and margin accounts payable 53 44
Life insurance and investment conlracts in process of settlement 208 216
Accrued expenses 21 21
Interast payable
- other entities 1 2
Cther payables
- refated entitios a3 57
- other entities 468 370
Total payablest" 830 710
Footnote:
(1) $830m (2011: $710m} of payables are expected to be seliled within £ manths from repoting date.
13. PHOVISION_S
2012 2011
$m $m
Provisions
Systems and other project expenditures 2 i
Total provisions™ 2 1
2012 2011
$m $m
Movements in provisions
Balance at the beginning of the year 1 7
Additional provisians made during the year 9 6
Unused amounts reversed during the year {1 (2
Provisions used during the year (7 {10)
Balance at the end of the year 2 1

Footnotes:
(1) $2m {201t $ ) of provislons are expacled to be selilad Within 2 months frem regortiag date,

25




AMP Life Limited Financial Report

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

14. BORROWINGS
2012 2011

$m $m

Borrowings

Deposits

- other entitfes 121 127
Other borrow ings

- relaled parties 448 446

Total borrowings!! . 567 573

Foolnale:
(1) $567m (201t $573m) of borrowings are expecied to be settied within £ months fram reparting date.

15. DIVIDENDS
2012 2011

$m $m

Dividends paid ;:iurlng the year
Unfranked dividend of $48.97 (31 Decerrber 2011: $37.74) per ordinary share (560) (430}

Total dividends paid {560} {439)

Final dividends proposed but not recagnised
2012: Unfranked dividend of $33.95 per ordinary share 387 -

16. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Holders of ordinary shares have the right {0 receive dividends as declared and, in the event of the winding up of the company, lo
participate in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on shares held. Fully
paid ordinary shares carry the right to one vote per share. Ordinary shares have no par value.

2012 2011
&m $m

Contributed equlty
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,081 1,091
11,393,668 (31 Decemrber 2011; 11,393,668) ordinary shares fully paid

Total balance of contributed equity at the end of the year 1,091 1,091

28




AMP Life Limited Financial Report

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS

2012 2011
$m $m

{a) Analysis of fife insurance contract premium and related revenue
Tota! life insurance contract premiums received and receivable 2,141 1,795
Less: conponent recognised as a change in life insurance contract fiabiliies (981) {693) .
Life insurance contract premium revenuet? 1,160 1,102
Reinsurance recoveries 44 38
Total life insurance contract premium and related revenue 1,204 1,140
(b} Analysis of life insurance contract claims and related expenses
Total life insurance contract claims paid and payable {2,243) (2,245)
Less: camponent recognised as a change in life insurance contract liabilties 1,027 1,059
Life insurance conlract claims expense {1,218} '(1,1 88)
Outw ards reinsurance expense (47) {42)
Total life Insurance contract claims and related expenses (1,263) {1,228)
(¢) Analysis of life insurance contract operating expenses
Life insurance contract acquisition expenses
- Commission (563) (58)
- Other expenses (88) (88)
Life insurance coniract maintenance expenses '
- Comyrission ' {97) (95)
- Other expenses {295) {292}
hwestment management expenses ' (40} (41}

Fooinole:

{1) Life insurance conltract pramium revenue consists entirelyof disect insurance premiums, there is ne Inward reinsurance component.
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

2012 2011
$m $m

(d) Life insurance contract liabllitles
Life insurance contract fiabilities determined using projection method
Best esfimate liabilily
- value of fulure lfe insurance contract benefits 12,701 12,339
- value of fulure expenses 3,184 3,132
- value of future premums {11,944) {11,479)
Valus of fulure profits
- life insurance contract holder bonuses 1,874 1,657
- shareholders’ profit margins 2,590 2,554
Total life Insurance contract liabilities determlned using projection
method 8,405 8,203
Life insurance contract liabilitles determined using accumulation
method
Best estimate liability
- Value of future life insurance contract benefits 7,854 7.447
- Value of future acquisition expenses (6) {7)
Total life insurance contract liabilities determined using
accumulation method 7.848 7,440
Value of declared bonus 108 338
Unvested policyholder benefits Babilities® 1,374 1,266
Total life Insurance contract liabilities before reinsurance 17,825 17,247
Add; Reinsurers' share of Hfe insurance confract kablities 119 98
Total tife Insurance contract liabilitfes 17,944 17,345

Faotrotes:

(1 For participating business in the statutory funds, part of the assels In excess of the life Insurance contract and ather labilities calculated under M oS are
altsdibuted Lo policyhalders. Under the Life Act, this Is referred to as policyho kfer retained profits. Far the purpose of reporting under accounting standards, this
amount Is referred to as unvested policyho ler banelits liabilities and is included within life Insurance contract Nabfities eventhoughit s vet to be vested as

spacific policyholder entitlements.
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Note 2012 2011
$m $m

(e) Reconciliation of changes in life Insurance contract liabilities

Totat life insurance contract liabilties at the beginning of the year 17,345 17,762
Change in life insurance contract liabiffies recognised in the statemant 557 (82)
of corrprenensive income

Premiums recognised as an increase in life insurance contract kabilittes  77(a) 981 693
Claims recognised as a decreass in e insurance contract liabilities (b} {(1,027) (1,059)
Change in reinsurers’ share of life insurancé contract iiabilities 21 32
Foreign exchange adjustment 67 (1)
Total life insurance contract liabilities at the end of the year W7{d) 17,944 17,345

{f) Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract llabllities
Life insurance coniract liabilities, and hence the nef profit from fife insurance centracts, are calculated by applying the principles of
Margin on Services {(MoS8). Refer to Nate 1(q) for a description of MoS and the methods for calculating life insurance contract liabilities.

The methods and profit carriers used to calculate life insurance contract liabilities for particular policy types are follows:

Business type Method Protit carrlers (for business vatued
using projection method)
Conventional Projection Bonuses
[nvestment account Modified accumulation N/A
Retail risk (lump sum) Projection . Expected premiums
Retail risk (income benefits) Projection Expected claims
Group risk {lump sum) Accumulation N/A
Group risk (income benefits) Accumulation N/A i
Pariicipating allocated annuilies Modified accumulation N/A !
Life annuities Projection Annuity payments
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Key assumptions used in the calculation of life insurance contract liabitities are as follows:

{i) Risk free discount rates

Except where benefits are contractually linked to the performance of the assels held, a risk-free discount rate based on current
observable, objeclive rates thal relate to the nature, structure and term of the fulure obligations is used. The rates are determined as

shown in the following table.

Business Type Basls’ 31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Australia New Zealand Australia New Zeatand
2.6%-4.4% 25%-4.1% 3.2% - 4.6% 2.5% - 4.1%

Retall risk (other
than income '
benefit open
claims)

Retall risk and
Group risk
{income benetit
open claims)

Life annuities Non-CPI

CPI

Zero coupon government
bond yield curve

Zero coupon government
bond yield curve {including
liquidity premium)

Zero coupon government
bond yield curve {including
liquidity premium}

Commonwealth Indexed
bond yleld curve (including
liquidity premium}

2.9%-4.7%

3.0% - 4.8%

0.8% - 1.8%

2.8% - 44%

2.9% - 4.5%

1.0% - 2.0%

3.8% - 5.2%

3.8% - 5.1%

1.5%-2.2%

2.8% - 4.4%

2.8% - 4.8%

1.3%

Foolncte:

{1) The discount rates vary by duralicn in the range shown abové.
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

(i Participating business discount rates

Whera benefits are contractually linked to the performance of the assets held, as Is the case for participating business, a discount rate
based on the expected market return on backing assels is used. The assumed earning rates for backing assets for participating
business are largely driven by long-term (e.g.10 year) government bond ylelds. The 10 year government bond yields used at the
relevant valuation dates are as shown below.

Assumed eaming rates for each asset sector are determined by adding 1o the bond yield various risk premiums which reflect the relative
ditterences In expected future eaming rates for different asset sectors, For producls backed by mixed portfolio assets, the assumplion
varies with the proportion of each asset sector backing the product. The risk premiums applicable at the valuation date are shown in the
table below.

Risk Premiums

10 Year Local International Property Fixed Interest Cash

Government equities equlties

Bonds
Australia
31 December 2012 3.3% | 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.8% {0.5%)
31 December 2011 7% | 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.8% (0.5%)
New Zealand
31 December 2012 3.6% | 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.8% (0.5%})
31 December 2011 3.8% | 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.8% {0.5%})

The risk premium for local equities Includes allowance for imputation credits. The risk premium for fixed Inferest reflects credit ratings of
the portfolio held.

The averages of the assel mixes assumed for the purpose of selting future Investment assumptions for participating businass at the
valuation date are as shown in the table below. These asset mixes are nol necessarily the same as the actual asset mix al the valuation
date as they reflec! long term assumptions.

Equities Property Fixed interest Cash
Australia
31 December 2012 30% 1% 39% 20%
31 December 2011 30% 1% 39% 20%
New Zealand '
31 December 2012 40% 17% 37% 6%
31 December 2011 40% 17% 3I7% 6%

The asset mix in the table above includes both conventional and investment account business.

Where an assumption used is net of tax, the tax on investment income is allowed for at rales appropriate to the class of business and
asset sector, including any allowance for Imputation credits an equity income. For this purpose, the total return for each asset sector is
split between income and capital gains. The actual split has varied at each valuation date as the tetal relurn has varied.

() Future participating benefits

For participating business, the lotal value of future bonuses {(and the associated shareholder profit margin) included in fife insurance
contract lfabilities is the amount supported by the value of the supporting assels, after allowing for the assumed fulure experience. The
pattern of borrses and shareholder profit margin assumed to emerge in each fulure year depends on the assumed relationship
between reversionary bonuses (or Inferest credits) and terminal bonuses. This relationship is sel to reflect the philosophy underlying
actual bonus declarations,

Actual bonus declarations are determined to reflect, over time, the investment returns of the particular fund and other factors in the
emerging experience and management of the business. These factors include:

» allowance for an apprapriate degree of benefit smoathing

* reasonable expeclations of policyholders

* equily betwaen generalions of policyholders applied across different ctasses and types of business

* ongoing capital adequacy.

Given the many factors involved, the range of bonus struclures and rates for parlicipating business fs extremely diverse,
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)
(i) Future parlicipating benelits (continued)

Typlcal supportable bonus rates on major product fines are as follows (31 December 2011 In parentheses).

Reversionary bonus Bonus on sum insured Bonus on existing bonuses
Australia 0.4% - 0.9% {0.2% - 0.8%) 0.7% - 0.9% (0.4% - 0.8%)
New Zealand 0.4% - 0.7% (0.3% - 0.5%) 0.4% - 0.7% (0.3% - 0.5%)

~

Terminal bonus .
The terminal bonus scales are complex and vary by duration, preduct line, class of business and country.

Crediting rates (investment account}

Australia 2.2% - 4.6% (1.6% - 3.7%)
New Zealand 2.9% - 3.1% (2.4% - 2.9%)

{iv} Future maintenance and inveslment expenses

Unit maintenance cosls are based on budgeted expenses in the year following the reporting date (including GST, as appropriate, and
excluding one-off expenses). For future years, these are Increased for inflation as described in (v) below. These expenses includs fees
charged to the life statutory funds by service companies in the AMP group. Unit costs vary by preduct line and class of business based
on an apporiionment that is supported by expense analyses.

Future investment expenses are based on the fees currently charged by the asset managers.
v inflation and indexation

Benefits and premlums tnder many regular premium policies are automatically indexed by the published consumer price index (CPI).
Assumed future take-up of these indexation options Is based on AMP Life's own experience with the annual GPI rates derived from the

difference between long-term government bonds and indexed government bonds.

The assumpiions for expense inflation have regard to these rates, recent expense performance, AMP Life’s current plans and the terms
of the relevant service company agreement, as appropriate.

The assumed annual inflation and indexation rales at the valuation date are:

Australia New Zealand

31 December 2012 2.7% GPI, 3.0% Expense 2.5% CPIl, 3.0% Expense
31 December 2011 2.6% CPI, 3.0% Expense 2.5% CPi, 3.0% Expense

{vi) Bases of taxation
The bases of taxation (including deductibility of expenses) are assumed to continug in accordance with legislation current at the

valuation date.

(viit  Voluntary discontinuance

Assumptions for the Incidence of withdrawals, paid ups and premium dormancy are primarily based on investigations of AMP Life's own
historical experience, These rates are based upon the assessed global rate for each of the individual products (or product groups) and
then, where appropriate, further adjusted for duralion, premium structure, smoker stalus, age altained or short-term market and
business effects. Given the variety of influences affecting discontinuance for different product groups, the range of voluntary
discontinuance rates across AMP Life are exiremely diverse.

The assumptions for future rates of discontinuance for the major classes of life insurance coniracts are shown in lhe table below.

31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Business type Australia New Zealand Australia New Zealand
Conventional 2.1% - 3.0% 1.3% - 2.5% 2.1% - 3.0% 1.3% - 2.5%
Retail risk (flump sum) 11.9% - 22.0% 10.5% - 12.0% 9.0% - 20.0% 10.5% - 12.0%
Retail risk (income bhanefit) 8.0% - 20.0% 7.0% - 12.0% 10.0% - 11.0% 7.0% - 12.0%
Flaxible Lifetime Super (FLS) risk 8.8% - 22.7% nfa 7.5% - 13.0% nfa

busiess {ultimate rate)
Veoluntary discontinuance assumplions have increased from those used at 31 December 2011 for retai risk.
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(viiif  Surrender values
The surrender bases assumed for calculating surrender values are those curren! at the reporting date. There have been no changes 1o

the bases during the year (or the prior year) that would materially affect the valuation resulis.

{ix) Mortality and morbidily
Standard mortality tables, based on national or industry wide data, are used. These are then adjusled by factors that take account of

AMP Life’s own experience.

Ratles of mortality assumed at 31 December 2012 for AMP Life are unchanged from those assumed at 31 December 2011 in Australia

and New Zealand, except for:
¢ Australian and New Zealand conventicnal business — added an adjustment to allow for future montality improvements
*  Term (Retail risk lump sum) in Australia has reduced

Typical mortality assumptions, In aggregate, are as follows:

Conventlonal - % of 1A85-97" Term - % of |1A95-97 FLS Risk - % of [A85-97
Risk products Male Female Male Female Male Female
Australia 67.5% 67.5% 80% 60% 63% 63%
New Zealand 73% 73% 63% 63% 63% 63%

Footnote:
(1) Base JA95-97 table modified for future mortality improvements

Annuities Male - % of IML0OO* Female - % of IFLQ0*

Australia & New Zealand 95% 80%

For disability income business, the claim assumplions are currently based on |AD89-93, which is derived from Australian experience. It
Is adjusted for AMP Life’s experience, with the adjusiment dependent on age, sex, wan!mg period, occupation, smoking status and claim
duration. Rates have changed for Australia from those at 31 December 2011, resulting in a higher incidence rate for fulure claims
overall and a lower rate for termination of claims.

Typical morbidity assumptions, in aggregate, are as follows:

Income protection Incidence rates - % of |ADB9-93 Termination rates (ultimate) - % of IAD89-93
Australla 52% - 113% 63% - 94%
New Zealand 80% 54% - 90%

For trauma cover, standard lables are not avallable and so assumptions are mostly based on Australian population statistics, with
adjustment for smoking status as well as recent claims experience. Trauma assumptions at 31 December 2012 have increased from
those used at 31 December 2011.

The acluarial tables used were as follows:

1A95-97 A mortality table developed by the Institute of Actuaries of Australia based on Australian insured lives
experience from 1995-1997.

IMLOOY/IFLOO* IMLQO and [FLOO are mortality tables developed by the Institute of Actuaries and the Faculty of
Actuaries based on United Kingdom annuitant lives experience from 1829--2002. The tables refer to
male and female lives respectively and incorporate factors that allow for mortality improvements
since the date of the investigation.

IMLOO* and IFLOO* are these published tables amended for some specific AMP experience.

1AD89-93 A disability table developed by the Institute of Actuaries of Australia based on Australian dlsabilliy
income experience from 1989-1993.
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

&) Impact of changes in assumplions
Under Ma$S, for life Insurance contracts valuations using the projection method changes in assumptions are recognised hy adjusting the

value of future profit margins In life insurance contract fiabifities. Future profit margins are released over future pericds.

Changes in assumptions do not include market related changes in discount rates such as changes in benchmark market yields caused
by changes in invesimenl markets and econemic conditions., These are reflected in both life insurance contract liabilities and asset
values at the reporting date.

The impact on future profit margins of changes in assumptions from 31 December 2011 to 31 December 2012 in respect of life
insurance contracts (excluding new business coniracis which are measured using assumphons at reporting date) is as shown In the
table below.

Change in future Change In life Change in
profit margins insurance Shareholder’
contract profit & equity
liabilities
Assumption change Sm $m $m

Non-market related changes to discount rates (21)
Mortality and morbidity (38 - -
Discontinuance rates (211) - -
Maintenance expenses 35
Other assumplions™”

Footnote:
(1)  Othar assumptions changss include the impacl of product and premium rate changes.

In most cases, the overall amount of life insurance contract liabilities and the current period profit are not affected by changes in
assumptions. Howaver, where in the case of a particular related product group, the changes in assumptions at the end of a period
eliminate any future profit margins for the related product group, and resuits in negative future profit margins, this negative balance is
recognised as a foss in the current period. [f the changes in assumptions in a period are favourable for a product group currently in loss
recognition, then the previously recognised losses are reversed in the period.

{g) [Insurance risk sensitivity analysls — [Ife Insurance coniracis
For life insurance contracts that are accounted for under MaS, amounts of liabifities, income or expense recognised In the period are
unlikely to be sensitive fo changes in variables even if those changes may have an impact on fulure profit margins.

This table shows information abou! the sensitivity of life insurance contract liabilities, current shareholder perfod profit after income tax,
and equity, to a number of pessible changes in assumptions relaling to insurance risk.

Change in shareholder profit

Change in life insurance contract
after income tax, and equity

liabllities

Gross of Net of Gross of Net of
reinsurance relnsurance relnsurance reinsurance
'Variable Change In variable $m $m $m $m
Mortaiily 10% increase in mortality rates (1) (1) 1 1

Annuitant mortality

Morbidity — lump sum
disablement

Morbidity — disabllity
income

Morbidity- disability
Income
Discontinuance rates

Maintenance
expenses

50% increase In the rate of
mortality improvement

20% increase in lump sum
disablement rates

10% increase in incidence rates

10% decrease in recovery rates

10% increase in discontinuance
rates

10% increase in maintenance
expenses

1

N

M
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

(h) Life instirance risk
The life Insurance aclivities of AMP Life involve a number of non-financial risks concerned with the pricing, acceptance and

management of the mortality, morbidity and lorgevity risks accepted from policyholders, often in conjunction with the provision of
wealth-management products.

The design of products carrying insurance risk is managed to ensure that policy wording and promotional materials are clear,
unambiguous and do not leave AMP Life open to claims from causes that were not anticipated. Product prices are set through a
process of financial analysis, including review of previous AMP Life and industry experlence and specific product design features. The
variability inherent in insurance risk, Including concentration risk, fs managed by having a {arge geographically diverse portfolio of
individual risks, underwriting and the use of reinsurance.

Underwriting is managed through a dedicated underwriting department, with formal underwriling limits and appropriate training and
development of underwriting staff, Individual policies carrying insurance risk are underwritlen on their merits and are genaraliy not
issued withoul having been examined and underwritten individually. !ndividual policies which are transferred from a group scheme are
generally issued wilhout underwriting. Group tisk Insurance policies meeting certain eriteria are underwritien on the merits of the

employae group as a whole.

Claims are managed through a dedicated claims management team, with formal claims acceptance limits and appropriate fraining and
development of staff to ensure payment of all genuine claims. Claims experience is assessed regularly and appropriate actuarial
reserves are established to reflect up-to-date experience and any anlicipated future events. This includes reserves for claims incurred

but not yet reported.

AMP Life reinsures (cedes) to specialist reinsurance companies a proportion of its portiolio or certaln types of insurance risk, including
catastrophe. This serves primarily to:

* reduce the net liability on farge individual risks

* obtain greater diversification of insurance risks

» provide protection against large losses,

The specialist reinsurance companies are regulated by APRA or industry regulators in other jurisdictions and have strong credit ratings
from A-to Ad+.
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Terms and conditions of life insurance contracts
The nalure of the terms of the life insurance contracts written by AMP Life Is such that certain external variables can be identified on

which relaled cash flows for claim payments depend. The table below provides an overview of the key varlables upon which the timing
and uncertainty of future cash flows of the various life insurance conlracts issued by AMP Life depend.

Type of contract

Detall of contract workings

Nature of compensation for claims

Key variables
atfecting future
cash flows

Non-participating life
insurance contracts
with fixed and
guaranteed terms (term
life and disabifity and
yearly renewable}

These poticles provide guaranteed benefits,
which are pald on the death or ill-health, that
are fixed and not at the discretion of AMP
Life. Premium rates for yeatly renewable
business are nol guaranteed and may be
changed at AMP Life's discretion for the
portiolio as a whole.

Benefits, defined by the insurance contract, are not
directly affected by the performance of underlying
assels or the performance of any associated
Investment contracts as a whole.

Mortalily, morbidity,
lapses, expenses
and market sarning
rates on assets
backing the
Jiabilities.

Life annuity contracts

In exchange for an inilial single premium,
these policies provide a guaranteed regular
income for the life of the insured.

The amcunt of the guaranteed regular income is set
at inception of the policy including any indexation.

Longevily, expenses
and market earning
rates on assels
backing the
liabilities.

Benefits arising from the discrétionary bonuses are

Market earning rates

Conventional life These policies combine life insurance and
insurance contracls savings. The policyholder pays a regular based on the performance of a specified pool of on assets backing
with discretionary premium and receives the specified sum contracts and the assets supporting these the liahifities, tapses,
participating benefits assured plus any accruing bonuses on death | contracts. expenses, and
{endowment and or maturity. The sum insured is specified at mortality.
whole of fife} inception and guaranteed. Reverslonary

bonuses are added annually, which once

added (vested) are guaranteed. A further

terminal honus may be added on death or

maturity.
Investment account The gross value of premiums received is Payment of the account balance is generally Fees, lapses,

contracts with
discretionary
participating fealures

invested in the investment account with fees
and premiums for any associated insurance
cover being deducted from ths account
balance. Interest is credited regularly.

guaranteed, allhough it may be subject to certain
penalties on early surrender or limited adjustment in
advarse markeis. Operating profit arising from
these contracts is allocated between the
policyholders and the shareholder in accordance
with the Life Act. The amount allocated to
policyholders is held as an unvested policy liability
until it is distributed to specific policyholders as
interest credits.

expenses and
market earning rates
on the assels
backing the
liabilities, Interest
rates.

(i) Liguidity risk and future net cash ocutflows
The 1able below shows the estimated timing of future ret cash outflows resulling from Insurance contract liabilities. This includes
estimated future surrenders, deativdisability claims and malurity benefils, offset by expected future premiums or contributions and
reinsurance recoveries. All values are discounted to the reporting date using the assumed future investment earning rate for each

product.
Upto 1to5
1 Year Years Over5 Years Total
$m Sm $m sm
2012 784 2,022 6,590 9,396
2011 747 2,024 6,184 8,955
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2012 2011

sm $m
(a) Analysis of life insurance and investment contract profit
Companents of profit related o life Insurance and Investment contract fabifties:
- Flanned margins of revenues over éxpenses released as2 374
- Profits {losses) arising from difference betw een actual and assumed experience 22 106
- Capitalised {losses) reversals - 1
Protit related to life insurance and investment contract liabilities 384 481
Altributable to:
- Life Insurance contracts 262 343
- Investment contracts 122 138
Investment earnings on assets in excess of life Insurance and

90 101

fnvestment contract liabilities

{b) Restrictions on assets In statutory funds

AMP Life conducts investment linked and non-invesiment linked businass. For investment linked business, deposils are received from
policyholders, the funds are invested on kehalf of the policyholders and the resulting liability to policyholders is linked to tha

performance and value of the assets that back those liabilities.

The Life Act requires the fife insurance business of AMP Life to be conducted within life statutary funds.

AMP Life has three statutory funds as set out below:

Australia Capital guaranteed business {whole of life, endowment, investment account, retail and

group risk, and immediate annuities).
No. 1 fund

All business {whole of life, endowment, investment account, retail and group risk,

New Zealand investment-linked and immediate annuities).
. Investment-linked superannuation business (individual and group investment-linked and

No. 2 fund Australia deferred annuities).
No. 3 fund Australia Investment-linked ordinary business.

investments held in the life statutory funds can only be used In accordance with the relevant regulatory restrictions imposed under the

Life Act and assoclated rules and regulations. The main restrictions are that the assets in a life statutory fund can only be used to meet

the liabilities and expenses of that fife statutory fund, to acquire Investments to further the business of the life statutory fund or as
distributions provided solvency, capital adequacy and other regulatory requirements are met, See further details about solvency and

capital adequacy in Note 18(d}.
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2012 2011
$m $m
{c} Capital guarantees
Life insurance contracts with a discretionary participating feature
- Ampunt of the liabilites that relate fo guarantees 13,530 13,493
nvestment tinked contracts
- Amount of the lizbifities sublect to Investment performance guarantees 1,168 1,166
Cther He insurance and investment coniracts with a guaranteed termination value
- Current ternination vakue 116 124

{d) Solvency and capital adequacy

Registered life insurance enlities are required to hold prudential reserves, over and above thelr life insurance contract and investmanl
contract liabilities, as a buffer against adverse experience and poor investment returns. These prudential reserving requivements are
specified by the Life Act and accompanying prudential standards. AMP Life holds additional amounis of reserves to provide a higher
leve! of security for policyholder benefits than would be achiaved by holding the statutory minimum.

Under the Life Act, there are two requirements for each life statutory fund:
* the solvency requirement; and
* the capital adequacy requirement,

Solvency requirements

The solvency requirement is the absolute minimum that must be satisfied for the business to be allowed to continue to operate. lis
purpese is to ensure, as far as practicable, that at any time the fund will be able to meet all existing life Insurance cantract liabilities,
Investment conlract liabilities and other liabilities as they become due.

The Appointed Actuary of AMP Life has confirmed that the available assets of each life statutory fund have exceeded the solvency
raserve required at all times during the reporting perfod. Across all the life siatutory funds, the excess assets, expressed as a
percentage of the solvency reserve, at 31 December 2012 were 53% (31 December 2011: 62%).

Capital adequacy requirements

The capital adequacy requirement is a separate requirement (usually higher) that must be satisfied for each life entity to be allowed to
make distributions to its shareholder and to operate without regulatory intervention. Its purpose is to ensure, as far as practicable, that
there is sufficient capital in each life statutory fund for the continuad conduct of the life insurance business, including wriling new
business, In a way which is in the interests of policyholders and in accordance with the Life Act.

The Appointed Actuary of AMP Life has confirmed that the available assets of each lifa statutory fund have exceeded the capital
adequacy reserve required at all times during the reporting petiod. For this purpose, the capital adequacy reserve is defined as the
solvency reserve, plus the difference between the capltal adequacy requirement and the solvency requirement. Across all the life
stalutory funds, the excess assets, expraessed as a percentage of the capital adequacy reserve, as at 31 December 2012 were 33% (31
December 2011: 34%).
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Distribution of retained profils, including shareholder’s Life Act capital, is limited by prudential capital requirements of the Lifa Act, the
detailed provisions of which are specified by APRA Prudential standards. The solvency standard prescribes a minimuim capital
requirement, the solvency requirement, for each statutory fund of the company. Tha figures below are shown net of reinsurance on a
basis consistent with the calculation of these ratios in the APRA returns. The selvency requirements are as follows:

No 1 No 2 No 3 Total
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory  Statutory
fund fund fund Funds
2012 $m $m $m $m
Solvency requirement ' '
Net minimum termination value (MTV) 19,715 48,484 607 68,806
Adjusted other liabitties 2,378 1,524 26 3,928
Solvency reserve B 2,518 169 2 2,689
Total soivency requirement A 24,611 50,177 635 75,423
Assets available for solvency
Net assets 1,824 207 8 2,039
Liability for unvested policy ow ner benefits 1,374 - - 1,374
Excess of net policy liabifities (including policy owner bonuses) over MTV 697 1 - 708
Total assets avallable for solvency G 3,805 218 8 41
Salvency Reserve % B{A-B)*100 11.4% 0.3% 0.3% 3.7%
Coverage of Solvency Reserve C/B 1.5 1.3 44 1.5
No 1 No 2 No3 Total
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory  Statutory
fund fund fund Funds
2011 $m $m $m $m
Solvency requirement
Net minfmum termination valua {(MTV) 19,260 43,528 620 63,408
Adjusted Other liabilties 2,332 1,291 44 3,667
Solvency reserve B 2,145 145 1 2,291
Total solvency requirement A 23,737 44,964 665 69,366
Assels avalfable for solvency
Net assets 1,740 326 5 2,071
Liability for unvested policy ow ner benefits 1,267 - - 1,267
Excess of net policy labilities (including policy owner bonuses) over MFV 361 12 - 373
Total assets avallable for solvency C 3,368 338 5 3,711
Solvency Reserve % B/(A-B)*100 9,9% 0.3% 0.2% 3.4%
cB 1.6 23 4.1 1.6

Coverage of Solvency Reserve
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{e) Actuarial information
Mr Recco Mangane, as the Appointed Actuary of AMP Life, is satisfied as to the accuracy of the data used in the valuations in the

Financlal Report and in the tables in this Note and Note 17.

The liabilities to policyholders {being the sum of the life insurance contract and investment contract liabllities, including any asset or
liability arising in respect of the management services element of an investment contract) and sclvency reserves have been determined

at the reporting date In accordance with the Life Act.

() Amounts which may be recovered or settfed within 12 months after the reporting date
Based on assumplions as to likely withdrawal patlerns of the various product groups, it Is estimated that approximately $10,918 millicn
(2011: $10,149 million) of policy liabilities may be settled within 12 months from the reporting date.

(g) Disaggregated information
The Lite Act requires the life insurance business of AMP Life lo be conducted within statutory funds thal are separate to the AMP Life

shareholder's fund. The financial statements of AMP Life (which are lodged with the relevant Australian regulators) disclose all major
componenls of the financial stalements disaggregated between the various life insurance statutory funds and the shareholder's fund, as
wall as by investment-linked and non-investment-linked business.
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{0) Disaggregated information (continued)

(i} income statement by stalutory fund and shareholders’ fund

No 1 No 2 No3 Share-
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory holders' Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2012 $m $m $m Sm $m
Income and expenses of policyholders and the
shareholder
hsurance premiumand related revenue 1,204 - - - 1,204
Fee revenue 47 824 ) il 46 928
Other revenue 4 - - - 4
hvestment gains and (losses) 2,089 5,399 86 28 8,582
hsurance claims and related expenses (1,263) - - - (1,263)
Operating expenses (629) (716) {7) (1) (1,353}
Finance costs ' {32) (1) - - (33)
Change in policyholder liabiitias
- Life insurance contracts {557) - - - (557)
- lvestment contracts {193) (6,061} (64) - (6,318)
Profit / (loss) before income tax 650 445 26 73 1,184
hcome tax {expense) / credit . (320) (305) {22) (15) (662)
Net profit tor the year 330 140 4 58 532
- Noi No 2 No 3 Share-
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory holders' Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2011 &m $m $m $m $m
Income and expenses of policyholders and the :
shareholder :
hsurance premiumand related revenue 1,140 - - - 1,140
Fee revenue 43 827 1 46 927
Other revenue i : 1 - - 2
hwestment gains and {losses) 1,598 {1.067) (17 29 543
hsurance claims and related expenses (1,228) - - - (1,228)
Operating expenses (628) (706) (7) (1) (1,342)
Finance cosls {65) N - - (66)
Change In policyholder liabilities
- Life insurance contracts 82 - - - 82
- lvestment contracts (179) 710 8 - 539
Gain on sale of a controlled entity - - - 40 40
Profit before income tax 764 {236) (5) 114 637
hcome tax (expense) / credit (324 376 10 (16) 43
tet profit for the year - AY7 140 5 98 680
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(g) Disaggregated Information (continued)

(if) Statement of financial position by statutory fund and shareholders’ fund

No 1 No 2 No 3 Share- Himina-
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory holders’ tions Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund

2012 $m $m $m $m sm $m
Assets
hvestments in financlal assets measured at fair 19,813 47,864 624 186 {38) 68,449
value through proHf or foss
hwvestment property 132 1,288 - - 1,420
fvestments in controlled entities 1,435 220 3 41 - 1,699
Other assels 4,312 440 12 azg - 5,692
Total assets of policyholders and the
shareholder 25,692 . 49,812 639 1,155 {38) 77,260
Liabilities
Lite lnsurance contract Iabifitias 17,944 - - - - 17,944
hvestment contract liabfiities 3,962 48,495 607 - 53,064
Other labilities 1,962 1,110 24 12 {38) 3,070
Total liabilities of policyholders and the
shareholder 23,868 49,605 631 12 {38) 74,078
Net assets of AMP Life Limitad 1,824 207 8 1,143 - 3,182
Equity
Contributed equity 303 208 - 580 - 1,091
Reserves (18) - - (14) - {32)
Retained earnings 1,539 (1) 8 577 - 2,123
Total equity of AMP Life Limited 1,824 207 8 1,143 - 3,182
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{g) Disaggregated information (continued)

(i) Statement of financial position by statutory fund and shareholders’ fund {continued)

No 1 No 2 No 3 Share- Bimin-
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory holders' ations Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund

2011 $m $m $m $m $m Sm
Assets
hvestments in financial assets measured at fafr 19,324 42,093 638 362 (35) 62,382
value through profi or loss
hvestmen! property 130 1,651 - - 1,781
hvestments in controlled entities 1,241 220 3 36 - 1,500
Other assels 4,180 695 29 731 (345) 5,280
Total assets of policyholders and the
shareholder 24,875 44,659 670 1,129 (380) 70,953
Liabilities
Life insurance contract liabiities 17,345 - - - - 17,345
hvesiment contract liabilities 3,640 43,539 620 - 47,799
Cther liabilities 2,150 794 45 7 (380) 2,616
Total liabllities of policyholders and the
shareholder ' 23,135 44,333 665 7 (380) 67,760
Net assets of AMP Life Limited 1,740 326 5 1,122 - 3,193
Equity
Conlributed equity : 303 285 - 503 1,091
Reserves (34) - - {15) {(49)
Retained earnings 1,471 41 5 634 - 2,151
Total equity of AMP Life Limited 1,740 326 5 1,122 - 3,193
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(9} Disaggregated information (continued)

(iiit Retained earnings by statutory fund and shareholders’ fund

No 1 No 2 No 3 Share-
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory holders® Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2012 m $m $m $m $m
Opening retained earnings 1,471 41 5 834 2,151
Net profit 330 140 4 58 532
Transfers betw een statutory and shareholders’ funds (262) {182) {1) 445 -
Dividends paid - - - (560) {560)
Closing retained earnings 1,530 {1) 8 577 2,123
No 1 No 2 No 3 Share-
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory  holders' Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2011 $m $m $m $m $m
Opening retained eamings 1,206 54 5 636 1,801
Net profit 437 140 5 98 680
Transfers betw een statutory and shareholders' funds (172) {153) {5) 430 R
Bividends paid - - - {430) (430)
Closing retained earnings 1,471 H 5 634 2,15t
(iv) Contributed equily by stalutory fund and shareholders' fund
No 1 No 2 No 3 Share-
Statutory  Statutory  Statulory  holders' Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2012 $m $m $m $m $m
Opening contrivuted equity 303 285 - 503 1,091
Transfers betw een statutory and shareholders' funds - {77) - 77
Closing contribuled equity ) 303 208 - 580 1,091
No 1 No 2 No 3 Share-
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory  hoiders’ Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2011 $m $m $m $m $m
Openling contrbuted equity 303 285 - 503 1,091
Transfers betw een slatutory and shareholders’ funds - - . - -
Closing contributed equity 303 285 - 503 1,001
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(g) Disaggregated infermation (continued)

{v} Income statement by non-investment finked and invesiment linked

Invesin?: Et lnvesl_tir:en; Stat:-t‘:}lri: h()slzz:z' Total
Linked Funds Fund
2012 $m $m $m $m $m
Income and expenses of policyholders and the
shareholder .
hsurance premiumand refated revenus 1,204 - 1,204 1,204
Fee revenue 46 836 a82 46 228
Other revenue 4 - 4 - 4
nvestment gains and (losses) 2,056 6,498 8,554 28 8,582
nsurance claims and related expenses (1,263) {1,263) - {1,263)
Operaling expenses (628) (724) {1,352 {1) {1,353)
Finance costs {32) (n (33) (33)
Change in policyholder kabilitios
- Life insurance contracis {557} - {557} - {557)
- hwvestment contracts {182) (6,136) (6,318) - {6,318)
Profit / (loss} before income tax 648 473 1,121 73 1,194
hcome tax (expense} / credit (318) (329) (647} {15) (662)
Net profit for the year 330 144 474 58 532
Non- lnvestment Total Share-
Investment Linked Statutory holders' Total
Linked Funds Fund
2011 $m ém $m $m $m
Income and expenses of policyholders and the
shareholder
Insurance premium and related revenue 1,140 - 1,140 1,140
Fee revenue 4 840 881 46 g27
Cther revenue 1 1 2 - 2
lnvestment gains and (losses) 1,598 (1,084} 514 29 543
hsurance claims and related expenses (1,228} - {1,228) - {1,228)
Operating expenses (627) (714) {1,341) (1 {1,342}
Finance cosls {65) (1) (66) (66)
Change in policyholder liabilities
- Life insurance contracts 82 - g2 - 82
- lvesiment conlracts (179) 718 539 - 539
Galn on sale of a contrelied entity - - - 40 40
Profit before income tax 763 {240) 523 114 637
Income tax {expense) / credit (326) 385 59 (16} 43
Net profit for the year 437 145 582 98 680
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{g) Disaggregated Information (continued)

{vi) Statement of financial position by non-investment linked and Investment linked

Non- Investment Total Share-
Investment Linked Statutory holders' Him Total
Linked Funds Fund

2012 $m $m $m $m $m $m
Assets
hvestments i financlal assets measured at fair 19,713 48,588 68,301 186 {38) 68,449
value through profit or loss
nvestment praperty 132 1,288 1,420 - - 1,420
lnvestments in controfled entities 1,365 293 1,658 4 - 1,699
Cther assels 4,293 471 4,764 928 - 5,602
Total assets of policyholders and the
shareholder 25,503 50,640 76,143 1,155 (38) 77,260
Liabilities
Life insurance contract liabifities 17,944 - 17,944 - - 17,944
hvestment cantract liabilities 3,874 49,190 53,064 - - 53,064
Ciher Fabilties 1,861 1,235 3,096 12 {38) 3,070
Total liabilities of policyholders and the
shareholder 23,679 50,425 74,104 12 (28) 74,078
Net assets of AMP Life Limited 1,824 215 2,038 1,143 - 3,182
Equity
Contributed equity 303 208 511 580 - 1,091
Reserves (14) {4) (18) (14} - (32)
Retained earnings 1,635 11 1,546 577 - 2,123
Total equity of AMP Life Limited 1,824 215 2,039 1,143 - 3,182
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(9) Disaggregated information {continued)

{vi} Statemant of financial position by non-investment finked and Investment linked (continued)

Non- Investment Total Share-
Investment Linked Slatutory  holders' BHim Total
Linked Funds Fund

2011 $m $m $m $m $m $m
Asseis
hvestments in financial assets measured at fair 19,231 42,824 62,065 362 {35) 62,382
value through profit or loss
hwestment property 130 1,651 1,781 - . 1,781
hwestments in controlled entities 1,185 279 1,464 36 - $,500
Other assels 4,160 744 4,904 731 {345) 5,260
Total assets of policyholders and the
sharehalder 24,706 45,498 70,204 1,129 (380) 70,953
Liahilities
Life insurance contract fiabiflies 17,345 - 17,345 17,345
hvestment contract Fabilities 3,553 44,246 47,799 - 47,799
Other liabiliies 2,067 922 2,989 7 (380) 2,616
Total liabifittes of policyhoiders and the
shareholder 22,965 45,168 68,133 7 (380} 67,760
Net assets of AMP Life Limited 1,741 330 2,671 1122 - 3,193
Equity
Contributed equity 303 285 588 503 - 1,091
Reserves (32 2 (34} (15) - (49}
Retained earnings 1,470 47 1,517 634 - 2,151
Total equity of AMP Life Limited 1,741 330 2,071 1,122 3,193
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(g} Disaggregated Information (continued)

{vii) Retained earnings by non-investment linked and Investment finked

investt:::t '""e’:_'i'::e"; stnffﬂ Sha“’h“'cl':i;sc; Total
Linked Funds
2012 $m $m $m $m $m
Opening retained earnings 1,470 47 1,517 634 . 2151
Net profit 330 144 474 58 §32
Transfers betw een statutory and shareholders’ funds (259) (1886) {445) 445 -
Transkers betw een statutory funds {6) ] - -
Dividends paid - . {560) (560)
Closing retalned earnings 1,535 11 1,546 577 2,123
lnvestr:::l '"Ve?_:':;e"; Sta!:t‘:ra; Sharemk:,ﬁﬁ; Tolal
Linked Funds
2011 $m $m $m $m $m
Opening retained earnings 1,203 62 1,265 636 1,801
Net prafil 437 145 582 98 680
Transfers betw een statutory and shareholders' funds (172} (158) (330) 330
Transfers between statutery funds 2 2) -
Dividends paid - - (430} (430}
Closing retained earnings 1,470 47 1,517 634 2,151
(viif) Contributed equity by non-investment linked and investment linked
lnvesh?e)zt Inveilie:; en; Statl'th:[ra; Shamho“;iﬁ Total
Linked Funds
2012 $m $m $m $m $m
Cpening contributed equity ) 303 285 583 503 1,091
Transfers betw een statutory and shareholders' funds (77) (77) 77 .
Closing contributed equity 303 208 511 580 1,091
!nveslr::gl Invesl.t;:keen(; Statl}-tcc)ntri]v Shamho{(:_.zﬁ; Total
Linked Funds
2011 $m $m $m $m $m
Opening contributed equity 303 285 588 503 1,00
Transfers betw ean stalutory and sharehelders® funds - - -
303 285 588 503 1,001

Closing contributed equity
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES

AMP Life’s financial risk management is carrled out in accordance with the policies set by the AMP Limited Board for management of
the risks within the AMP group. Below is a summary of the AMP group's financial risk management policies which may impact AMP Life.

Financial Risk Management )
The AMP Limited Board has ullimate responsibility for risk management and governance, including ensuring that an appropriate risk
framework and appetite is in place and Is oparating effectively. This includes selling the financlal risk appetite and approval of the AMP
group Financial Risk Management Framework (FRM Framework), its sub-policles, the shareholder capital investment stralegy, capital
and financing plans.,

The principal objective of AMP's financlal risk management is to establish a robust structure for identifying, assessing, managing,
quantifying, reporting and escalating financial risks. The FRM Framework is consistent with both the AMP group Risk Appstite
Statement, which oullines AMP’s appetite, to take certain risks in order to grow.its profits and the AMP Enterprise Risk Management
Policy which eslablishes the principles, requirements, roles and responsibilities for the management of all categories of risk across
AMP.,

The FRM Framework includes delegations, roles and responsibilities, escalations and reporting, as well as outlining AMP group's FRM
objectives. In addition, the FRM Framewark provides an overview of each of the key financlal risks including the nature of the risks,
objectives in seeking to manage the risks, the key policy variables for the management of the risks and the business unit responsibility

for managing and reporting them.

Execulive Commitiees oversee the management and monitering of financial risks and capital management. These Commitiees include
Group Assel and Liability Committee (Group ALCQ) for AMP group and AFS ALCO for both AMP Life and National Mutual Life
Association of Australasia (NMLA). AMP group Treasury (Group Treasury) is responsible for the execution of the FRM Framework and
capital and finaneing plans in compliance with Board approved targets and limits. Group Treasury Is also responsible for the execution
of the approved investment strategy for AMP shareholder capital, for analysls and reporting of financial risks and the capital position to
Group ALCO, the AMP Limited Audit Committee and the Board, monitoring compliance with the FRM Framework, and for identifying
and reporting breaches of policy to Group ALCO, relevant Audit Committees and the Board.

The Audit Committee ensures the existence of effective FRM policies and procedures, and is responsible for the oversight of the
execution of the FRM Framewark. The AMP Life and NMLA Audit Committees are delegated responsiblfity for the elements specific to
their respaclive businesses. Internal Audit reviews the design and operational effectiveness of the FRM Framework as part of its
ongoing audit cycle.

Operating enlities are required to comply with the Board approved risk appetite and are also responsible for approving policyholder
asset and liabflity strategies.

The appointed actuaries provide oversight to the AMP life and NMLA Boards, Audit Committees, Group ALCO, AFS ALCOQ, as well as
externally to APRA, on the financial condition of AMP Life and NMLA, The appainted actuarles are also responsible for giving advice to
AMP Life and NMLA on the distribution of profits, premium rates, charges, policy conditions and reinsurance arrangements, The Life
Insurance Act (Life Act) also imposes obligations on an Appainted Actuaries to bring to the attention of AMP life and NMLA, or in some
circumslances, APRA, any matter that the appointed actuaries believes requires action to avold prejudice to the interests of
policyholders.

Information about the capital management activities within the AMP group, Including the relationship with regulatory requirements on the
regulated entities, is provided in Note 20.

(a) Risks and mitigation
For the purposes of the FRM Framework, risk management involves decisions made about the allocation of invesiment assets across

asset classes and/or markets and includes the management of risks within these asset classes,

Financial risk in the AMP group Is managed by reference to the probability of loss relative to expected income over a one-year fime
horizon at a 90 per cent confidence level (profit at risk). In respect of invesiments held in the shareholder fund and In the life statutory
funds, the loss tolerance over the discretionary invesiments is set at a low level because AMP has equity market exposure in its
businesses (for example through fees on Assets Under Managemant),

Financial risks arising in the AMP group include market risk (investment risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, property risk, and
equity price risk); liquidity and refinancing risk; and credit risk. These risks are managed according to the FRM Framework including
thraugh the use of derivative financial instruments such as cross-currency and interest-rate swaps, forward rate agreements, futures,
options and foreign currency contracts o hedge risk exposures arising from changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of assets and liabilities, or future cash flows of a financial instrument wilt fluctuate due to
movements in the financial markets. These movements inctude forelgn exchangs rales, interest rates, credit spreads, equity prices or
property prices. Market risk in the AMP group arises from the management of insurance conlracts and investment of shareholder capital
including investments in equitles, property, and interest bearing investments.

(b} Market risk sensitivity analysls

The paragraphs below include sensitivity analysis tables showing how the profit after tax and equity would have been impacted by
changes in market risk variables including interest rate risk and currency risk as defined In AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.
They show the direct impact on the profit after tax or equity of a reasonably possible change In factors which affect the carrying vafue of
financial assets and financial liabilities held at the end of the reponiing period.
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19, RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The sensitivity is required to show the impact of a reasonably possible change in market rale (it is not intended 1o illustrate a remote,
worst case, slress test scenario nor does it represent a forecast. In addition it does not include the impact of any mitigaling management
actions) over the period to the subsequent reporting date. The categoeries of risks faced and methods used for deriving sensitivity
Information did not change from previous periods.

(i} Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of an impact on AMP group's profit after tax and equity from mavements in market interest rates, including
changes in the absolule levels of interest rates, the shape of the yield curve, the margln between ditferent yfeld curves and the volatility

of interest rates.

Interest rale risk arises from Interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities in various activities of the AMP group. Management
of those Hsks Is decentrallsed according to the activity. Detalls are as follows:

*  AMP Lite— As discussed in Note 1{b), AMP Life conduct their wealth management and life insurance business through separate
life statutory funds. Investment assets of the life statutory funds including interest-bearing financial assets are held fo back
investment contract liabilities, life insurance contract liabilities, retained profits and capital.

The interest rate risk of AMP Life which impacts the shareholder arises in respect of financlal assets and liabilities held in the
shareholder fund and in the life statutory funds. A risk arlses to the extent that there is an economic mismatch befween the fiming
of paymenls to life policyholders and the duration of the assets held in the life statutory funds to back the policyholder liabilities.
Where a liability in respect of investment contracis is directly linked to the value of the assets {where applicable, net of related
liabilities) held fo back that liability (investment-linked business), there is no residual interest rate exposure which would impact the
shareholder.

Management of various risks associated with investments undertaken by life statutory funds and the life shareholder fund, such as
interest rate risk Is subject to the relevant regulatory requirements governed by the Life Act. AMP Life and NMLA are required to
satisfy solvency requirements, including holding statutory reserves to cater for interest rate risk to the extent that assets are not
matched against fiabifities.

AMP Life manage inlerest rate and other market risks pursuant to an asset and liability management policy that has regard to
policyholder expectalions and risks {o the AMP Life Board's target surplus philosophy for both capital adequacy and solvency as
advised hy the Appointed Actuary.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

This analysis demonstrates the impact of a 100 basis paint change in Australian and International Interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, on profit after tax and equity. [t is assumed that afl underlying exposures and related hedges are included in the
sensitivity analysis, that the 100 basis point change occurs as at the reporting date and that there are concuirent movements in interest
rates shifis, The impact on equity includes both the impact an profit affer tax as well as the impact of amounts that would be taken
directly to equity in respect of the portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that qualify as cash flow hedges for hedge
accounting. A sensitivity level of 100 basis points is determined considering the range of interest rates applicable to interest bearing
financial assets and financial liabliities in the AMP Life.

2042 2011
Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on
profit atter tax aquity profit after tax equity
Increase increase Increase Increase
{decrease) {decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
Change in variables $m $m $m $m
+ 100 basis points (49) {49) (22) {22)
- 100 basls points 53 53 43 43

{ii) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of an impact on AMP group’s profit after tax and equity from movements in foreign exchange rates. Changes in
value would aceur in respect of translating the AMP group’s capital invested in overseas operations Inta Australian dollars at reporting
date (translation risk) or from foreign exchange rate movements on specific cash flow transactions (transaction risk).

Other than where the impact would be immaterial, corporate debt is typically converted to Australian dollars through cross-currency
swaps. Individual investment assets in shareholder capilal (excluding the Inlernational equities portfolio attributable to the shareholder
within the life Statutory Fund No.1 fund) and in the Seed Pool are hedged, and expected forelgn currency receipts and paymenls are
hedged once the value and timing of the expected cash flow is known.

Subject to Group ALCO approval, Group Treasury may allow for natural hedging of foreign exchangs risk through unhedged foreign
cuirency borrowings, or enter into discretionary foreign exchange transactions to hedge enterprise-wide exposures,

AMP group does not hedge the capltal invested in overseas operations {other than foreign Seed Pool investments), thereby accepting
the forelgn currency translation risk on Invested capital.
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Currency risk sensitivity analysils

This analysis demonstrales the impact of a 10 per cent movement of currency rates against the Australian dollar, with all other variables
held constant, on the profit after tax and equity due to changes in falr value of currency sensitive monetary assets and liabilities at the
reporting date. It is assumed that the 10 per cent change occurs as at the reporting date. A sensitivily level of 10 per cent Is determined
considering the range of currency exposures in the AMP Life,

2012 2011
Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on
profi after tax equity proflt after tax equity
Increase Increase Increase Increase
{decrease) {decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
Change in variables $m $m $m $m
10% depreciation of AUD 1 1 i {1
10% apprecialion of AUD N {1} 1 1

(iil} Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the sk of an Impact ont AMP group's profit afier tax and equity from movemnents in equily prices. AMP Life measures
equity securities at fair value through profit or loss. Group Treastry may, with Group ALCO approval, use equity exposures or equity
futures or options to hedge other enterprise-wide equity exposures.

Equity price risk sensitivity analysis

The analysis demonstrates the impact of a 10 per cent mavement in Australian and International equities held at the reporting date. This
sensitivity analysis has been performed to assess the direct risk of holding equity instruments. Any potential indirect impact on fees from
AMP group's investment linked business is nof included. A sensilivity level of 10 per cent is determined considering the widely spread
portfelios held by the AMP group and the range of movemenits in equity markets for the periods.

2012 2011
Impact on Impact on impact on Impact on
proilt after tax equity profit after tax equity
Increase Increase Increase Increase
(decrease) {decrease) (decrease) {decrease)
Change in variables $m $m $m $m
10% increase in Australian equities 12 12 8 11
10% increase in International equities a 9 (1 -
10% decrease in Australian equities (8) (8) (18) (18)
10% decrease in hternational equities {n {1} 1 -

(c) Liquidity and refinancing risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the AMP group is not able to mee! its debt obligations or other cash outllows as they fall due because of an
inability te liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding when required. Refinancing risk, a sub-set of liquidity risk, is the risk that the
maturily prafile of existing debt is such that it would be difficult to refinance {or rollover) maturing debt, or there is excessive exposure to
potantially unfavourable market conditions at any given time.

To ensure that the AMP group has sufficient funds avallable, in the form of cash, liquid assets, borrowing capacity and un-drawn
committed funding faciiities to meet its liquidity requirements, Group Treasury maintains a defined surplus of cash plus six months of
debl maturities to mitigate refinancing risk, satisfy regulatory requirements and protect against liquidity shocks in accordance with the
liquidity risk management policy approved by the AMP Limited Board,

Financiers of loans owing by controfled entities of the life statulory funds do not have legal recourse beyond the operaling subsidiary
borrower and there is no direct effect on any other AMP group debt.
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The following table summarises the maturity profiles of AMP Life’s undiscounted financial liabilities and ofi-balance sheet items at the
reporting date. The maturity profiles are based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations. Repayments thal are subject to
notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately

Maturity profiles of undiscounted financiat liabilitie s

Upto 1 Year ito5  More than

or no term Years 5 Years Other® Total
$m $m $m $m $m
2012
Payables 829 i - : - 830
Borrowings 567 - - - b67
Invesiment contract liabflities® 1,573 1,063 1,654 49,190 53,480
Total undiscounted financial liabilities and off
balalnce sheet items® 2,969 1,064 1,654 49,150 54,877
2011
Payablss 710 - - - 710
Borrowings 573 - - - 573
Ihvesiment contract kabifities®! 1,247 1,111 1,685 44,246 48,289
Total undiscounted financial liabilities and off
balance sheet items® 2,530 1,111 1,685 44,246 49,572

Footnotes:

{1 Thetable providas maturity analysis of AMP Life financial Tabilities and non-linked investment contracts including Lerm anrnuities.

(2) Investment coniract liabilities of $49,00m (201t $44,246m) are Kabilitles to paticyholders for investment linked business linked Lo the performance and value
of assets that back those liabilities, i allthose policyholders claimed thelr funds, there may be some delays in settling the fiability as assels are Equidated, but
the shareholder has no direct expasure to any liguidity risk.

(3) Eslimated net cash autllow prafile of fife insurance contract liabilities Is disclosed In Note 17(i}.

(d) Credit risk

Credit risk includes both settlement credit exposures and traded credit exposures. Credit default risk Is the risk of an adverse impact on
results and asset values relative to expectations due to a counterparty falling to meat their confraciual commitments in full and on time
(obligator's non-payment of a debt). Traded credit risk is the risk of an adverse impact on results and asset values relative fo
expectations due to changes in the value of a traded financial instrument as a result of changes in credit risk on that instrument,

The AMP Concentration Risk Policy sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk. The policy has set
exposure limits for each counterparty and credit rating, Compliance with this policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are
reported to sentor management and the AMP Audit Committees through weekly and quarterly FRM reports.

Credit risk management Is decentralised in business units within the AMP group. However, credit risk directly and indirectly (fe. in the
participating business) impacting shareholder capital is measured and managed by Group Treasury on a Group basis, by aggregating
risk from credit exposures taken in business units, as detailed below.

+  AMP Life - Gredit risk on the invested fixed income portfolios in the AMP Life statutory funds fs managed by the AMP Capital Risk
and Compliance Committee {AMP Capital R&C) and reported to the fund managers, within specified credit criteria In the mandate
approved by the AMP Life Board. The shareholder portion of credit risk in AMP Life Is reported to Group ALCO by Group Treasury.

(i) Management of credit risk concentration
Congcentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are enlered inte with the same counterparly or

where a number of counterparties ars engaged in similar business aclivities that would cause their ability o meet contractual obligations
to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk Is managed through both aggregate
credit rating limits and individual counterparly limits, which are determined predominantly on the basis of the counterpaity’s credit rating.

Al reporting dale, there is no specific concentration of credit risk with a single counterparty arising from the use of financial instruments,
other than the normal clearing-house expostres assoclated with dealings through recognised exchanges.

The counterparties to non-exchange traded contracts, at the time of entering those contracts, are limited to companies with investment
grade credit (BBB- or greater). The credit risks assoclaled with these counterparties are assessed under the same management poficies
as applied to dirgct investments in AMP group's portfolio.

Compliance is monitored and exposures and breaches are reporied fo senior management and the AMP Audit Commiites through the
weekly and quarierly FRM Report. :
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{ii) Exposure to credit risk

The exposures on interest bearing securiies and cash equivalents which impact the AMP group’s capital position are managed by AMP
Treasury within limits set by the AMP Concentration Risk Policy. The following table providas informalion regarding the credit risk
exposures for items monitored by AMP Treasury according to the credit rating of the counterpariies,

2012 2011

$m $m
AAA 2,543 3,574
AA-to AA+ 8,881 7.491
A-to A+ 2,220 3,368
BBB- to BBB+ 877 1,185
BB+ and below 66 165
Total financlal assets wlith credit risk exposure managed by AMP Treasury 14,587 15,783

(iii} Past due but not impalred financial assels
The following 1able providas an aging analysis of financial assels that are past due as at reporling date but not Impaired. Ne disclosures
are required for the parent entity as the parent entity does not have any financial assets that are past due but not impaired at reporiing

dale,

(Iv) Adjustment for own credit risk in the determination of the fair value of life investment contract policy liabilities
The fair value of nen-Investment linked investment contract fiabilities includes the following allowance for the credit risk that an external

party would ascribe to an amount due from AMP Life:

2012 2011

$m $m

Cumulative adjustment 20 26
Change during the period (7) 7

The adjustment has been determined as the difference between the fair value recognised and an amount calculated on the same basis
using a risk-free interest rate in place of the fair value discount rate.

{v) Collateral
AMP Life enters into debt security repurchase agreements and part of the agreement includes the receipt of collateral which is required

to be relumed to the counterparty on settlement.

(e} Derivative financlal instruments

Derivative financial Instruments are measurad at falr value in the Stalement of financial position as assets and liabilities. Asset and
liability values on individual transactions are enly netted if the transactions are with the same counlerparty and the cash flows will be
setiled on a net basis. Changes in values of derivative financfal instruments are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income
unless they qualify as effective cash flow hedges or net Investment hedges for accounting purposes, as set out in Note 1(0).

(i} Derivative transactions underiaken by AMP life insurance entitias as part of life insturance opéraﬁons

The AMP group uses derivalive financial instruments including financlal futures, forward foreign exchange contracts, exchange traded
and other options and forward rate agreements to hedge the impact of market movements on the value of assets in the investment
portfolios, and to effect a change in the asset mix of invesiment portfolios.

In respect of ihe risks associated with the use of derivative financial instruments, price fisk is conlrolled by exposura limits, which are
subject to monitoring and review. Foreign exchange hedges are monilored on a regular basis to ensure they are effective in the

reduction of price risk.

(i) Risk relating to derivalive financial Instruments
The market risk of derivatives is managed and controlled as an integral part of the financial risk of the AMP group. The credit risk of

derivatives is also managed in the context of the AMP group's ovérall credit risk policles.

(fy Falr value measures .
Financial instruments measured at fair value are categorised under a three level hierarchy, reflecting the availability of observable
market inputs when estimating the fair value. If different levels of inpuls are used to measure a finangial instrument's fair value, the
classification within the hierarchy Is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The three levels

are:

Level 1: Valued by reference to quoted prices in aclive markets for identical assets or llabiliies, These quoted prices represent aciual
and regutarly ocourring market transactions on an arm's length basis.
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Level 2: Valued using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices), including: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in
markets in which there are few transactions for identical or similar assels or Hiabilities, and other Inputs that are not quoted prices but are
chservable for the asset or liability, for example interest rate yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, currency rates,
oplien volatilities, credit risks, and default rates.

Level 3: Valued in whale or in part using valuation techniques or modsals that are based on uncbservabla inputs that are neither
supported by prices from cbservable current market transactions in the same instrument nor based on available markel data.
Unobservable inputs are determined based on the best information available, which might include the AMP group’s own dala, reflecting
the AMP group's own estimates about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation
techniques are used to the extent that observable inputs are not avallable, and include estimates about the timing of cash fiows,
discount rates, earnings multiples and other inputs,
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The following 1able shows an analysis of financlal instruments measured at fair value by each level of the falr value hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Totalfalr value
2012 $m $m $m $m
Assets
Fquity securities and fisted managed investment schemes 8,264 1,658 194 11,116
Debt securities - 9,180 119 9,299
hwestments in unlisted managed investment schemes - 47,339 189 47,528
Derivative financial assets 152 214 - 366
Other financial assets 139 139
Tolal financial assets 9,416 58,530 502 68,449
Liabillities
Borrow ings - 567 - 567
Other financial Eabilties 594 80 - 674
lwestmant coniract liabifties - 3,443 49,621 83,064
Total financial liabilities 594 4,090 49,621 54,305

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total falr value
2011 $m $m $m $m
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes 9,559 7 232 9,798
Debt securitles - 9,317 151 9,468
Investments in unlisted managed investmant schemes - 42,234 222 42,456
Derivative financlal asgets 227 308 - 538
Other financial assels - 125 - 125
Total financial assets 9,766 51,991 608 62,382
Liabilities )
Borrowings - 573 - 573
Qther financial Tlabifties 677 67 - 744
hvestment contract Babilities - 3,062 44,737 47,799
Total inancial liabilities 677 3,702 44,737 49,116
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The following table shows a reconciliation of the movement in the fair value of financial instruments categorised within Level 3 between
the beginning and the end of the reporiing dale:

Total gains and
losses on
Balance at Sales/ Net Bafance at assets and

the beginning FX gains Total gains/ Purchases!  with- transfers the end of labilitles held at

of the year orlosses losses  deposils drawals inf{oul) the year reporling date
2012 $m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m
Assets
Eguity securities and Fsted
managed invesiment schenes 232 ) (36) 17 (19) _ i 184 (38)
Debt Securilies 151 - 4) 1 {75) 46 119 (4)
lnvestments in unfsted managed
investment schemes 222 i (33) ¢ © i 189 (33}
Total financial assels 605 - (73) 27 {103) 44 502 {73)
Liabflitles
Investment cantract ¥abilties 44,737 - 5,357 8,312  (8,785) - 49,621 5,105
Totat tinancial liabilities 44,737 - 5,357 8312 (8,785 - 48,621 5,105
2011
Assets
Equity securities and ksted
managed invesiment schamas Al i 17 2 i 2 232 17
Debt Securities 113 - 30 - {46} 54 151 30
nvesimenls in unlsted managed
invesiment schemes 183 ) (18) 8 () 5% 2e2 (18)
Total financlal assets 507 - 32 5 (51} 112 605 32
Llabifities
hvestment contract Fablfies 46,585 ] {1,494) 8972 (9,328) 2 44,737 {1,441)
Total financfal fiabilities 46,585 {2) {1,494} 8,972  {9,326) 2 44,737 {1,441}
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The following table shows the sensltivily of the fair value of leve! 3 instruments to changes in key assumptions:

Etfect of reasonably possible
alternative assumptions

Carrying amount (+} -}
2012 $m ‘ $m $m
Assets
Ruity securities and Bsted managed investment schemes 194 9 {9)
Debt securities 119 - -
hvestments In unlisted manzaged investment schames 189 - -
Financlal assets 502 9 ' {9
Liabilitles .
fwestment contract fiabilities 49,621 6 {6)
Financial liabilities 49,621 6 (8)
Effect of reasonably possible
alternative assumptions
Carrying amount (+} )
2011 $m $m $m
Assets .
Enuity securiies and listed managed invesiment schemes 232 24 -
Deht securities 151 -
hvestments in unlisted managed investment schemes 222 - -
Financial assets 605 24 -
Liabilities
Investment conlract fabilities 44,737 9 9
Financial fiabilities 44,737 9 (%
Foaolnate:

{9 The sensitivity has been caleulated by changing keyinputs such as discount rates and earnings multiples by a reasonably possile amount.
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20. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

AMP Life and its subsidiaries hold capital lo protect customers, creditors and the shareholder against unexpected losses to a level that
is consistent with AMP's risk appetite approved by the Board.

AMP Life and its subsidiaries assess the adequacy of ifs capital requirements against regulatory capital requirements. AMP Life is an
operating entily within the AMP group and is an APRA regulated company. Controlled entities of AMP Life also include an APRA
regutated approved superannuation Irustee (RSE) and companies that hold Australian Financial Services Licences (AFSL).

The AMP group's capital management strategy forms part of the AMP group's broader strategic planning process. In addition to
managing the level of capital resources, the AMP group also aims to optimise the mix of capital resources to minimise the cost of capital

and maximise shareholder value.

The minimum regulatory capital requirement (MRR) is the amount of shareholder capital required by each of AMP's regulated

businesses o meel their capital requirements as sel by the appropriate regulator. These requirements are as follows:

*  AMP Life — Solvency, capital adequacy and management capital requirements as specified under the Life Act and APRA Life
Insurance Prudential Standards. From 1 January 2013, these will be replaced with revised APRA prudential standards.

+  Controlled enlities of AMP Life that ho!d an AFSL and RSE license - capital and liquidity requirements under the appropriate AFSE
and RSE.

AMP Life and its subsidiaries have at all times during the current and prior financial year complied with the externally Imposed capital
requirements to which it is subject.

AMP's regulated businesses each target a level of capital equal o MRR plus a target surplus.

The AMP Life Statutory Funds larget suiplus is set hy refarence to a probability of breaching regulatory capital requirements. This is a
two tiered test where the largst surplus is set as the grealer of the amount required for a:

* 1 per cent probability of breaching solvency over one year

e 10 per cent probability of breaching capital adequacy over one year.

The target surplus policy for AMP Life has baen revised following the introduction of revised life insurance APRA Prudential Standards,
which take effect 1 January 2013.

APRA has introduced revised Prudential Standards refating to minimum financtal requirements of superannuation funds. These revised
prudential standards will commence on 1 July 2013, with transitional arrangemants applying over the thres years following the
commencement date.
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21. NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2012 201
$m $m
(a) Reconciliation of the net profit after income tax to cash flows from operating activities
Net profit for the year 532 680
Depreciation of aperaling assets 9 9
hvestment gains and losses - realised and unrealised (5,247) 3,487
Dividend and distribution income reinvested {1,645) (2,131)
Dacrease / {increase) in receivables and other assets 36 (71)
herease / (decrease) in nat policy liabilties 5,864 (1,197}
hcrease / (dacrease) in income tax balances 397 (356)
hcrease in other payables AN 545
Cash tlows from (used in) operating activities 37 966
2012 2011
$m $m
(b} Becenclliation of cash
Cash on hand 12 }
Cash on deposit 3,690 3,260
Short term bills and notes {included in debt securities) 495 1,591
4,597 4,851

Balance at the end of the period
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22, INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Betails of significant investments in controlled entities are as follows:

% Holdings
NAME OF ENTITY INCORPORATION  Share type Footnote 2012 2011
255 George Street lhvestment A Py Ltd Australia Ord 100 100
255 George Street lhwvasiment B Py Ltd Australia Ord 100 100
35 Ocean Keys Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Abbey Capital Real Estate Py Limited Australia Ord 100 100
ACIT Finance Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
ACN 155 075 040 Py Ltd Australia Ord,Class A Pref 4)] 100 -
Aged Care hvestment Services No. 1 Pty Limited (formerly PHF No. 1 Auslralia Ord
Managenmant Pty Limitad) 100 100
Aged Care lhvestment Services No. 2 Ply Limited (formerly PHF No. 1 Ausfrala Ord 100 100
Pty Limited)
Allmarg Corparation Linited Nz Ord, Fref 100 100
AMP ASAL Ry Ltd Australa Ord 100 100
AMP Capital hwestments No. 2 Limited NZ Ord A &B, Pref 100 100
ANP Capital hvestments No. 8 Linited NZ Ord A &B, FPref 100 160
AP Capital hvestmenis No 11 Limited NZ OrdA &B 100 100
ANP Capital hvestments No. 14 Linited NZ OrdA &B 1060 100
AMP Capital Investor Lifestyls Limited Ausiralia Crd (2) - 52
AMP CVBS No. 1 Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
ANP CvBS No, 2 Pty Limited Auslralia Ord 100 100
AMP Finance Linited Australia Ord 100 100
AMP Financial Planning Pty Lirited Australia Ord 100 100
AMP GBS Limited Australia Fixed 100 100
AMP hsurance hwvestment Holdings Pty Limited Ausfralia Ord 100 100
ANP Life (NZ) Investments Holdings Limited NZ Ord 100 100
AMP Life (NZ) lhwesimants Limited NZ Ord 100 100
ANP Personal lwestment Services Limited Australia Ord 100 100
ANP Fanner Register Conpany Ply Linitad Australia Ord 100 100
AMP Direct Pty Limited { formerly AMP Private Wealth Management Pty Australia Ord
Limited ) 160 100
AMP Property lnvestments (Qid) Ply. Ltd. Australia Ord 100 100
ANP Real Estate Advisory Holdings Pty Limitad -Australia Ord (1) 100 -
AMP Remuneration Rew ard Flans Nominees Ry. Limited Australia Ord 100 100
AMP Services {NZ) Limited NZ Ord 100 100
AMP SMSF Holding Co Limited Australia Ord 100 100
AMP SMSF lvestments Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
AWP Superannuation (NZ) Limited NZ Ord 100 100
ANP Superannuation Limited Australia Ord 100 100
ANP/ERGO Mortgage and Savings Limited NZ Ord 100 100
Arrive Wealth Management Limited Ausiralia Crd 100 100
Australian Securities Administration Limited Auslralia Ord 100 100
CBD Financial Planning Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Callins Flace No. 2 Py Ltd Auslralia Ord 100 100
Collins Face Piy Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Donaghys Australia Pty Limited NZ Ord (2 - 58
Donaghys Industrles Lirited NZ Ord (2) - 58

60




AMP Life Limited Financial Report

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

22, INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (GONTINUED)

Details of significant investmeants in controlled entitles are as follows:

% Holdings
NAME OF ENTITY INCORPORATION Share type Footnote 2012 2011
Donaghys International Linited NZ Ord (2} . 58
Donaghys Limited NZ Ord, Pref (2} 58
Donaghys Ry Limited NZ Ord @ . 58
Focus Property Services Py Limited Australia Ord (3) a2 g2
Glendenning Py Limited Australia : Crd 100 100
Hillross Afiances Limited Australia Ord 100 100 ‘
Hikkoss Financial Services Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Hilross Innisfail Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Hilross Wealth Management Centre Mefoourne Pty Limited Australia Qrd 100 100
Honaysucke 231 Py Limited Australia Ord 60 80
INSSA Rty Limited Australia Ord 160 100
Jeminex Pty Limited Australia Crd 51 51
Kent Sirest Pty Limited Australia Crd 100 100
Kiwi Kat Limited NZ Ord 70 70
Knox City Shopping Centre nvestmerits (No. 2) Pty Limited Australia Ord 60 100
Kramar Holdings Pty Limted Australia Crd (2 - 78
Mow la Piy. Limited Australia Crd 78 79
National Fire Holdings Pty Umited Australia Ord 59 51
Ona Group Retail Holdings Pty Limited Australla Ord 52 52
PHFT Finance Ply Lirrited Australia Crd 100 100
PremierCne Nortgage Advice Ry Limited Australia Crd 100 100
Principal Healthcare Finance No. 2 Piy Lirited Australia Ord 100 100
Frincipal Healthcare Finance Piy Limited Austrafia Ocd 400 100
Frincipal Healthcare Holdings Pty Limited Australia Crd 100 100
Priority One Financial Services Limited Australia Ord 1006 100
Quay Maing (No. 2) Limited Bermuda Ord, Red Pref 160 100
Quay Mining Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Roost 2007 Limited NZ Crd 100 100
Scrabster Bay Py Limited Australia Ord 100 100
SPPNo. 1 (Alexandra Canal) Py Limited Australia Ord 86 86
SPPNo. 1 (Cowes) Py Limited Australia Ord 8 88
SPP No, 1 (H) Pty Limited Australia Ord 86 86
SPP No. 1 (Mona Vale) Pty Limited Australia Ord 85 86
SPPNo. 1 (Mornington) Pty Limited Australia Ord 86 86
SPP No. 1 (Mew caslle) Py Limited Ausiralia Ord 86 86
8PP No. 1 {North Melbourng) Pty Limited Australia Ord 86 86
SPP No. 1 (Pakenham) Pty Limited Australia Ord 86 86
SPP No. t (Foint Cook) Py Limited Australia Ord 86 86
SPP No. 1 (Q Stores) pty Limited Australia Ord 86 86
SPP No. 1 (Rosebery) Pty Linited Australia Ord 86 86
SPP No. 1 Holdings Pty Liméited Australia Ord 86 88
SPP No. 1 {Hawthorn) Pty Linited Australia Crd 86 86
SPPNo. 1 {Mt. Waverley Financing) Pty Limied Australia Ord 86 a6
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22, INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Daetails of significant investments in controlied entities are as follows:

) % Holdings

NAME OF ENTITY INCORPORATION Share type Footnote 2012 2011
SPP No. 1 (M. Waverley) Pty Limited Australia Crd 86 86
SPP No. 1 {Port Melbourne) Pty Limited Australia Ord 86 86
Sunshine West Development Pty Limited Australia Ord 75 75
The India ifrastruciure Fund LLC Mauritius Red Pref 100 100
TOA Pty Ltd Australia Ord 100 100
United BEquipment Holdings Piy Limited Australia Ord {3) 56 56
Waterfront Place (No. 2) Py. Ltd. Australia Ord 100 100
Waterfront Flace (No. 3) Pry. Ltd. Australia Ord 100 100
Footnote:

{1 Canlrolling interest acquired in 2012,
{2) Controflinginterest disposedin 2012,
(3) Mot audited by Ermnst & Young.
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22, INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES {CONTINUED)

Details of significant investments in controlled frusts are as follows:

TRUSTS AND OTHER ENTITIES COUNTRY OF % Holdings
NAME OF ENTITY REGISTRATION Footnote 2012 2011
140 St Georges Terrace Trust Australia 100 100
ACPP Holding Trust Australia 100 100
ACPP Industrial Trust Australia 100 100
ACPP Office Trust Australia 100 100
ACPP Retail Trust Australia 100 100
Active Quant Share Fund Australia 75 76
AFS Alernative Fund t Australia {1) 100 -
AFS Australian Share Fund 8 7 Australia {1) 100 -
AFS BExtended Alpha Fund (formerly AMP Capital Sustainable Extended Alpha Fund) Australia 100 100
AFS International Share Fund 1 Austratia 100 100
Agaressive Enhanced Index Fund Austrafia 100 100
AHGI Martineau Fund Australia 100 100
AHGI Martineau Galleries Fund Australia 100 100
AMP Capital Alternative Defensive Fund - Delayed Redemption Australia (1) 100 -
AMP Capital Asla ex-Japan Fund Australia 100 100
AMP Capital Asia Local Currency Bond Fund Australia (1) 100 -
AMP Capitaf Asian Equity Grow th Fund Australia 75 73
AMP Capital Australian Equity Income Fund Ausfralia {1) 100 -
AMP Capiial Australian BEquity Opportunities Fund Australia {1} a1 -
AMP Capial Corporate Bond Fund Australia 76 86
AMP Capital Credit Strategles Fund Australia M 93
AMP Capital Extended Multi-Asset Fund Australa (1) 71 -
AMP Capital Global Equities Sector Rotation Fund Australia 100 100
AMP Capital Global infrasiructure Securities Fund {Hedged} Australia 80 84
AMP Capital Global Ihfrastructure Securitles Fund {Unhedged) Austrafia 80 84
AMP Capital Global Tactical Asset Allocation Fund Australia {2) - 100
AMP Capital Global Resource Fund Augiralia (1) 100 -
ANMP Capital Australian Equity Long Short Fund Australia 100 100
China Strategic Grow th Fund Australia 100 100
AMP Capital hrastructure Fund 1 Auslralia 100 100
ANP Capital Macro Strategies Fund Australia 84 84
AMP Capital Multi-Asset Fund Australia 73 99
ANP Capital Pacific Fair and Macquarie Shopping Centre Fund Australia 2} - a0
AMP Gapital Shelf Fund 1 Australia (1) 65 -
AMP Capital Shell Fund 2 Australia ) 100 -
AMP Capital Sustainable Share Fund Australia 68 66
AMP Life Cash Management Trust Austratia 100 100
AMP Macquarie Holdings Trust Australia {2) - a0
AMP Macquarie Trust Australia (2) - a0
ANMP Pacific Falr Trust Ausiralia (2} - a0
AMP Frivate Caphal Trust No.9 Australia 100 100
Australia 54 51

AMP Capital Australian Small Cormpanles Fund
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22, INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Petails of significant investments in controlled trusts are as follows:

TRUSTS AND OTHER ENTITIES COUNTRY OF % Holdings
NAME OF ENTITY REGISTRATION Footnote 2012 2011
AMP Shareholder Fixed hterest Fund Australia @) 100 -
AMP UK Shopping Centre Fund Australia 100 100
AMP Capital Wholesale Office Fund Austrafia {3) 34 36
AMPCI FD Infrastructure Trust Australia 97 97
Australian Pacific Airports Fund Australia 66 66
AWOF New Zealand Office Trust New Zealand (3) 34 38
Balanced Enhanced hdex Fund Ausfralia 100 100
Booragoon Trust Australia (N 100 -
Bourke PFlace Unit Trust Australia 3 25 26
Cautious Enhanced hdex Fund Australia 100 100
Conservative Enhanced ndex Fund Australia 99 98
Crossroads Trust Australia 100 100
Davidson Road Trust Australia 100 100
EFM Australian Share Fund 1 Australia 97 97
EFtd Australian Share Fund 2 Australia a9 99
EFM Australian Share Fund 3 Australia 98 a8
EFM Australian Share Fund 4 Australia 94 a4
EFM Australian Share Fund 6 Australia 99 99
EFM Australian Share Fund 7 Austrafia 98 98
EFM Fixed interest Fund 2 Australia 96 g7
EFM Fixed hnterest Fund 3 Australia 85 96
EFM Fixed interest Fund 4 Australia 94 94
EFM Infrastructure Fund 1 Australia 95 96
EFM International Share Fund 3 Australia a7 g7
EFM International Share Fund Australia 97 97
EFM international Share Fund 7 Australia a1 g2
EFM Listed Property Fund 1 Australia 96 a6
Enhanced Index International Share Fund Australia 81 82
Enhanced Index Share Fund Australia 89 a0
FD Australian Share Fund 1 Australia 97 a7
FD Australian Share Fund 3 Australia 93 93
FD Global Property Securities Fund 1 Australia (2) - 94
FD International Share Fund 1 Australia : 95 a5
FD International Share Fund 3 Australia 99 99
FD Ihternational Share Fund 4 Ausiralia g6 97
Floating Rate lhcome Fund Australia 96 97
Future Direction Australian Bond Fund Australia 96 96
Future Directions Asia ex Japan Fund Australia 74 74
Future Directions Australian Share Fund Australia 93 94
Future Directions Australian Small Conpanies Fund Australia 90 89
Future Directions Balanced Fund Australia 98 a8
Fulure Directions Censervative Fund Australia 95 94
Future Directions Care International Share Fund 2 Australia b9 58
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22, INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Detalls of significant investments in controlled trusts are as follows:

Principal Healthcare Holdings Trust

TRUSTS AND OTHER ENTITIES COUNTRY OF % Holdings
NAME OF ENTITY REGISTRATION Footnote 2012 2011
Future Directions Credit Opportunities Fund Australia 95 97
Future Directions Diversified Alternatives Fund Australia (1) a7 -
Future Directions Bnhanced Index Australian Share Fund Australia a7 a7
Fulure Directions Enhanced index Global Praperty Securities Fund Australia a7 96
Future Directions Enhanced Index ihternational Bond Fund Australia (2) - 81
Future Directions Geared Australian Share Fund Austrafia 93 92
Future Directions Glabal Credit Fund {formerly FD International Bond Fund 3) Austrafia 95 89
Future Directions Global Government Bond Fund Australia {1) 92 -
Future Directions Grow th Fund Australia 97 96
Future Directions Hedged Core International Share Fund Australia 61 63
Future Directions Hgh Grow th Fund Australia 95 95
Future Directions Inflation Linked Bond Fund Auslralia 95 97
Future Directions Infrastructure Fund Australia a7 97
Future Directions bhternational Bond Fund Australia 95 a3
Future Directions International Share Fund Austrafia 58 57
Future Directions Moderately Conservative Fund Australia 95 a5
Future Directions Opportunistic Fund Australia a7 a7
Future Directions Private Fquity Fund 1A Australia 97 97
Future Directions Private Fguity Fund 1B Auvsiralia 100 100
Future Directions Private Equity Fund 2A Auslralia 97 a7
Fulure Direclions Private Fquily Fund 2B Australia 100 160
Future Direclions Private Fquily Fund 3A Austratia 97 100
- Future Directions Private Fquity Fund 3B Austrafia 100 100
Fulure Directions Property {(Feeder) Fund Australia 97 96
AMP Capital Alternative Defensive Fund {formerly Future Directions Total Return Fund) Australia 98 97
Future Directors Emerging Markets Share Fund Australia 52 51
Global Gredit Strategies Fund Australia 87 87
Global Growth Ogportunities Fund Auslralia 96 86
Global Listed infrastructure Fund Australia i00 100
Goldman Sachs Commadity Index Light Energy - E92 Porifolio Austrafia {2) - a6
International Bond Fund Australia 93 a1
ipac Diversified lnvesiment Strategy No 2 Auslralia (1) 63 -
ipac Diversified Investment Strategy No 4 Australia (1) 69 -
Kent Street lnvestment Trust Ausiralia 100 100
Kent Sireet Unit Trust Australia 100 100
Lofius Street Trust Australia (3) 36 36
Macquarie Balanced Grow th Fund Ausiratia 83 78
Managed Treasury Fund Australia 92 76
Moderately Agaressive Enhanced index Fund Australia 100 100
Moderately Conservative Enhanced ihdex Fund Australia 100 100
Monash House Trust Australig 100 100
Australia 100 100
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22. INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Details of significant investments in controlled trusts are as follows:

TRUSTS AND OTHER ENTTIES % Holdings
. COUNTRY OF
NAME OF ENTITY REGISTRATION Footnhote 2012 2011
Private Equity Fund [IlA Australia 94 g4
Private Equity Fund I8 Australia 94 494
Responsible Investment Leaders Conservative Fund Australia 95 94
Responsible Investiment Leaders Grow th Fund Austrabia 97 96
Responsible lhvestment Leaders High Grow th Fund Ausltrafia 100 100
Riverskle Plaza Trust Australia 100 100
Select Property Portfolio No. 1 Australia 86 86
Sydney Cove Trust Australia 100 100
The Glendenning Trust Australia 100 100
The Finnacle Fund Australia 99 99
Warringah Mafl Trust Australia 50 67
Wholesale Australian Bond Fund Australia ao 93

Footnotes: )
(%) Cantroliing interest acquiredin 202

{2) Controlling interest disposedof in 2012

{3} Not more than 50% holding, but consolidated because AM P relains control over the operating functions
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23. ASSOCIATES

Investments In assoclates held by the life statutory funds measured al falr vatue through profit or toss™

Ownership Interest Carrylng amount
COMPANIES PRINCIPAL 2012 2011 2012 2011
NANME OF COMPANY ACTIVITY® % % Sm $m
Gove Aluminium Finance nvestment into atuminium smeller 30% 30% 108 137

Tomago,NSW

Asian Giant Infrastructure hfrastructure investrent 37% 37% 20 12
Total investments held by the life statutory funds in assoclated companies 128 149
WNIT TRUSTS®)
NAME OF TRUST
Aged Care Invesiment Trust No.1 Investment frusts 48% 48% 73 69
Aged Care Investment Trust No.2 Investment trusts 48% 48% 73 89
AMP Capitaf China Grow th Fund nvestment trusts 34% 34% 79 . 73
ANP Capital Global Property Securities Fund nvestment trusts 36% 27% 468 268
ANP Capital Infrastructure Bquity Fund (formally lnvestment trusts 3%  29% 131 190
Infrastructure Equity Fund)
ANP Capital Pacific Fair and Macquarie Shopping  hvestiment trusis (5) 26% - 304
Centre Fund
AMP Capital Shopping Centre Fund investment trusts 34% 37% 632 842
AMP Capital Eguity Fund hvestment trusts 42% 42% 189 181
AMP Shareholder Cash Fund Investment trusts (5) 24% - 154 -
Australian Pacific Airports Fund lnvestment trusts {4) - 36% - 64
Future Directions International Small Companies Investment trusts 39% 40% 159 137
Fund
Listed Property Fund Investment trusts 31% 33% 57 44
Property lhcome Fund lnvesiment trusts 30% 35% 126 201
Responsible hvestments Leader Balanced Fund nvestment trusts 44% 1% 229 212
Schroder Fixed lncome Fund nvestment trusts {5} _ 24% - 178 -
Cthers (each less than $50m) nvestment trusts Various 163 245
Footnote:

(0 Investmentin associated entities that back investment contract and life insurance ¢conleact lizbilities are treated as linancia! assels and are measured at fair

value. Referto Mote {f).

(2) The balance datefor all significant associated entities 1s 31December.

{3) Inlhe course of normal operaling Investment aclivities, the tife statutory Tunds hold investments in various operating businesses. Investments in associated
enlities reffect investments where the life statutory funds hold belween a 20%and 50% equity interest,

{4} Trust ceased baing an associate during 202,
{8) Trustbecame an assoclate during 2022,

24, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

AMP Life from time to time may lncur obligations arising from litigation or various types of contracts entered into in the normal
course of business; Including guarantees issued by AMP Life for performance obligations to controlled entitles in the AMP Life

group.
Where it Is determined that the disclosure of information in relation to a contingent Hability can be expected to prejudice
seriously the position of AMP Life {or its Insurers) In a dispute, accounting standards allow AMP Life not 1o disclose such
information and it Is AMP Life's policy that such information Is not to be disclosed In this note.

At reporting date there were no other matertal contingent liabifities where the probability of any outilow in settlement was greater
than remole, :

f
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25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

{a) Keymanagement personnel detalis
The following individuats were the key management personne! (being those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, Including any director (whether executive or otherwise}) of AMP

Life for the whole or part of the reporting period as indicated:

Catherine Brenner Chairman, Non-Executive Director

Craig Dunn Director, Chief Execulive Officer - AMP Limited

Craig Mellar Managing Director — AMP Financial Services

Anthony Colaman MNon-Executive Birector

Diana Hlert Nan-Executive Director Appointed: 10 August 2012
John Palmer Non-Executive Director

Geoffrey Roberis Non-Execulive Director Resigned: 31 March 2012
Peter Shergold Non-Executive Director

{b) Remuneration of key managemant personnel
The following table provides aggregate details of the compensation of key management personne! of AMP Life Limited.

. Post
Short Term Employment Share Based
Bonefits Benefits Payments Total
$ ] $ $
2012 5,613,295 103,037 3,376,600 9,002,332
2011 5,396,426 85,318 3,341,000 8,822,744
Footnole:

The fees peld lo non-executive directors of AMP Life are the combined fees for AMP Life Limited and the National Mutual Life Assoclation of
Australasia Limited. ’

{c) Transactions with key management parsonnel
During the year, key management personnel and thair personally related entities have entered Into transactions with the disclosing

entity or its subsidiaries. All such fransactions have occurred within a normal employes, customer or supplier relationship on terms and
conditions no more favourable than those that It is reasonable to expect AMP Life would have adopted if dealing at arm's length with an

unrelated individual, These transactions include:
*  Purchase of Insurance products avallable to other employees and policy owners;
Purchase of superannuation products available to other employees and policy owners;

. Placement of funds on deposit; and
+  Acquisition and disposal of units in controlled managed investment scheme and receipts of trust distributions.

Information about such transactions does not have the potential to affect adversely decisions about the allocation of scarce resources
made by users of this Financial Report, or the discharge of accountability by the specified executives or specified directors.

No Director or Director-related entitles had foans with AMP Life in 2012 (2011: nil).

A number of Directors of the company are also Directors of public companies and/or are a Partner of a professlonal service partnership
which have lransactions with AMP Life. The Directors do not believe that they have the capacity to control or significantly influence the
financial or operaling policies of either company in their dealings with each other. Those companies are therefore not considered to be

Director-related entities.

{d} Transactions with key related parties
Transactions with related parties are made at arms iength and on normat commerclat terms, Qutstanding balances at 31 December

2011 and 31 December 2012 are unsecured, non interest bearing and settlement ocours in cash or through Intercompany accounts as
necessary.

AMP Life purchases administrative services from AMP Services Limited and AMP Services (NZ} Limited on a fee service basis. (2012:
$661m, 2011: $645m), Services purchased include product distribution, marketing, payroll, persennel, computing and accounting

services.

AMP Life recelves investment services from AMP Caplial Investors Limited and AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited (AMP
Capital) on a normal commercial basts (2012: $196m, 2011: $211m). AMP Capital is a related entity of AMP Life and manages the

invesiment assets of the policyholder fund and the shareholders fund. AMP Capital Is also the responsible entity of a number of the
controlled and associated unit trusts detailed in Note 22 and Note 23, Investment management services provided by AMP Capital to

AMP Life are charged at normal commercial rates.

The company receives financial planning services from AMP Financial Planning Pty Limited, Hillross Financlal Services Limited and
AMP Superannuation Limited, and is charged on commercial terms and conditions.
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25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The company has amounts In deposits with AMP Bank Limited (2012: $3,680m, 2011: $3,253m). Deposils earn interest at normal
commercial rates. As al 31 December 2012, a put and cail agreement exists between AMP Bank Limited and AMP Life whereby AMP
Life will indemnify AMP Bank against any losses incurred by AMP Bank for practice finance loans issued by AMP Bank to financial
planners. .

The following table provides the tolal amount of significant transaciions which AMP Life has entered into with related parties for the
relevant financial year:

Service, Service,
management management .
and other fees and other fees Amounts Amounts
received from paid to owed by owedto
related parties related parties related parties related parties
Fellow subsidiarles of AMP Limited $m $m $m $m
ACPP Hokling Trust 2012 8 - - -
2011 8 .
AMP AAPH Limited 2012 - - - -
2011 - 2 - -
ANMPASAL Py Lid 2012 - - 5 -
2011 - - 5 -
AMP Bank Limited 2012 . - 3,680 -
2011 - - 3,253 -
ANMP Barmuda Lid 2012 - - - ra!
2011 - - - 71
AMP Capital lnvestors Limited 2012 12 196 - 26
2011 9 211 - 30
AMP Gapital Shopping Centre 2012 - 6 - -
2011 - 6 - -
AMP CMBS Na. 1 Piy Limited 2012 - - - -
2011 - - 10
AMP CMBS No. 2 Py Lirited 2012 - . - -
2011 - - 19 -
AMP Finance Services Limited 2012 - - - -
2011 - - 12 -
AMP Financial Fanning Ply Limited 2012 - 287 8 -
2011 - 283 5 -
ANMP Financial Services Holdings Linvted 2012 - - - -
2011 - - 173 -
AMP Insurance Investment Holdings Pty Limited 2012 - - 12 -
2011 - - 13 -
ANPLife (NZ) Investments Holdings Limited 2012 - - 798 -
20114 - - 764 -
AMP Life (N2) Invesiments Holdings Limited - IL 2012 - - 54 -
Fund 2011 - - 51 -
ANP Life (NZ) lhvestments Limited 2012 - - 36
2011 - - - 2
AMP Life (NZ) Investments Limited - L Fund 2012 - - - 36
2011 - - - 22
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25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED})

Service, Service,
management management
and other fees and other fees Amounts Amounts
received from pald to owed by owed to
refated parties related parties related parties related partles
Fellow subsldiarles of AMP Limlted $m $m $m $m
ANP Fanner Register Company Pty Limited 2012 - - 45 1
2011 - - 41 1
AMP Property hwvestments (Qid) Pty. Limited. 2012 - - - 54
2011 - - - 54
AMNP Services Limited 2012 46 625 4
2011 48 608 4
AMP Superannuation Limited 2012 7
2011 6 -
AMP Services (NZ) Limited 2012 36 - 2
© 201 37 B 2
Charter Finangial Panning Ltd 2012 - 2 - -
2011 B - - -
Ergo Mortgage and Savings 2012 - - 1
2011 - - - -
Hillross Alliances Limited 2012 - - 4 -
2011 - 4 1
Hillross Financial Sarvice 2012 19 4] -
2011 20 5 -
INSSA Ry Limited 2012 - - 2
2011 - - - 1
Jigsaw Support Services Ltd 2012 - 1 - -
2011 - - - -
Kent Street hvestment Trust 2012 1 - 44 -
201t 1 - 44 -
NMFM Limited 2012 1
2011 .
NMiA Shareholders Fund 2012 - 3 -
2011 - - - -
NMLA No1 Stat Fund 2012 - - - 2
2011 - - - -
Private Equity Fund Hl 2012 - - 37 -
2011 - - 38 -
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25, RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Service, Service,
management management
and other fees and other fees Amounts Amounls
received from paid to owed by owedto
related parties refated parties related parties  related parties
Fellow subsidiarles of AMP Limited $m $m $m $m
Sydney Cove Trust 2012 1 . - -
2011 1 - -
TOA Ry Limited 2012 - - 319
2011 - - 39
140 St Georges Terraca Trust 2012 1 - - -
2011 1 - -

26. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

All auditors’ remuneration payable to the auditors of AMP Life Limited for the audit of the controlled companies within the AMP Life
Group is setlled by a relaled entily. Gertain controlled property and privale equily funds within the AMP Life Group tncur auditors'

remuneration directly,

Amounts paid or payable 1o the audlitors of AMP Life Limited for:
Auditing the financlal statements of AMP Life Limited and #ts controled

entities

Total amounts recelved or due and receivable by ihe auditors

of AMP Life Limited

2012 2011
$'000 $'000
1,040 1,360
1,040 1,300

Footnotes:

() Pedadically, the AMP Life Graup gains control, through the investing activityaf the AMP Life statutory funds, of enlities whose Incumbent auditaris an audit
firm other than Exast & Young, Theseimmaterial additional audit fees pald to non-Ernst & Young audit firms are not included in this note.

27. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any matter or clicumstance that has arisen since the reporting date which has
significantly affected or may significantly atfect the operations of the AMP L.ife group, the results of its operations or its state of affairs,
which is not already refiected in this report, other than the following:

*  From t January 2013, revised life insurance APRA Prudential Standards relating to capital adequacy apply to AMP Life
Limited. As at 31 December 2012, AMP Life Limited's capital adequacy multiple would have been 2.1 had these revised
requirements applied {the capital adequacy multiple is a coverage ratio that expresses the total capital base divided hy the
prescribed capltal amount). The equivalent multiple under the curent standards at 31 December 2012 Is 1.4. As at 1
January 2013, the total capital base of each AMP Life Limited statutory fund and its shareholders’ fuad exceed its
prescribed capital amount under these revised standards,
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In accordance with a resolution of the directors of AMP Life Limited, the purposes of Section 295(4) of the Corporations Act
2001, the Dlrectors declare that:

(a) in the opinion of directors there are reasonable grounds to belleve that the company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable;

{b) in the opinion of directors the financial statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Including
Section 296 (compliance with accounting standards) and Section 297 (true and fair view); and

(c) the notes to the financiat statements include an explicit and unreserved statement of compliance with the Internatienal
Financlal Reporiing Standards as discussed in Note 1(a).

ChA M £ freon

{signature) (signature)

CrRAG MAerd, CATHER IME  ERENNETC

(name} {nams)
Director Director
Sydney, 27 March 2013 . Sydney, 27 March 2013
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Independent auditor's report to the members of AMP Life Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial report of AMP Life Limited, which comprises the statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2012, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors' declaration.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for
such internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors
also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that
the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporfing Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australlan Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
refevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disciosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's Judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls refevant to the entity's preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit cpinion,

Independence

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001. We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor's Independence Declaration, a
copy of which is included in the directors’ report.

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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Opinion
in our opinicn:

a, the financial report of AMP Life Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

i giving a true and fair view of the company's financial position as at 31 December 2012 and
of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

it  complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001
and

b. the financial report also complies with international Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in
Note 1.

(=rusk w\(%w
Ernst & Young S

10/
L

Andrew Price
Partner
Sydney

27 March 2013







Appointed Actuary’s Report
To the Directors of AMP Life Limited (“AMP Life”)

This report has been prepared for AMP Life in accordance with Section 78 of the Insurance
(Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (“the Act”).

In terms of Section 77(1) of the Act, | have reviewed the actuarial information contained in, or
used in the preparation of the Directors’ Report and Financial Report for AMP Life Limited for the
year ended 31 December 2012 (“the Financial Statements”).

For the purposes of this report, “actuarial information” is as defined in Section 77(4) of the Act,
together with paragraph 4.1.1 of the Attachment to the Section 59 “Exemption from Compliance
with Solvency Standard” granted to AMP Life by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand under the
Act.

| certify that in my opinion:

a) The value of policy liabilities of AMP Life and the solvency of AMP Life have been determined
using methods and assumptions consistent with the actuarial prudential standards issued by
the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (“APRA”).

b) The allocation and distribution of the profits of the Statutory Funds of AMP Life have been
made in accordance with Divisions 5 and 6 of Part 4 of the Australian Life Insurance Act 1995
(Life Act) and the Constitution of AMP Life.

c¢) Proper records have been kept by AMP Life from which its policy liabilities and solvency have
been able to be properly determined.

d) The apportionment of income and outgo used in preparing the AMP Life accounts at 31
December 2012, as required under Sections 78 and 79 of the Life Act, is appropriate.

e) | have obtained all of the information and explanations that | require from AMP Life.

In addition, | certify that in my opinion, and from an actuarial perspective:

f) The actuarial information contained in the Financial Statements has been appropriately
included in those statements.

g) The actuarial information used in the preparation of the Financial Statements has been used
appropriately.

h) AMP Life has fully complied with the APRA solvency standard and capital adequacy standard
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012. Note that the APRA solvency standard is the
applicable standard that applies under the Section 59 exemption granted by the Reserve
Bank of New Zealand.

Other than my relationship as Appointed Actuary of AMP Life Limited, | am an employee of the
AMP Group, of which AMP Life forms part, and a member of the AMP Employees’
Superannuation Plan. | hold shares and options in AMP Limited, the ultimate holding company
of AMP Life. |1 am a customer of AMP Bank Limited, which is also part of the AMP Group.

This report is provided solely in my capacity as the AMP Life Limited Appointed Actuary. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, | do not accept responsibility to anyone for the contents of this
report other than the Reserve Bank of New Zealand, AMP Life Limited and its directors and
shareholders.

A

Rocco Mangano FIAA
Appointed Actuary, AMP Life Limited
24 April 2013



